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/ / e are pleased to report that 2002 was another outstanding year for Hudson Valley Bank.

"Our 28 consecutive year of increased earnings was achieved in the yéar that we proudly celebrated
our 30t anniversary. We attribute this continuing success to staying true to our founding principles of

independence, local ownership, superior customer service and community involvement. This formula has

proven itself to be our cornerstone to high achievement year in and year out.

Over the years, individuals and local businesses have accepted our invitation to “experience the
commitment” that differentiates us from our competitors. That commitment is evident in the strong
relationships we forge with our customers, the flexibility and innovations we bring to meeting their specific

financial needs and the personal efforts and commitment we pour into our communities.

Earnings, assets, loans, deposits and earnings per share all reached new record levels this past year.
The Bank's financial performance, progress and success validates our commitment to customer relationships

and satisfaction.

As indicated in the financial highlights, 2002 net income increased 14% to $21.6 million, or $3.59
per share as compared to $3.20 per share in 2001. Further, our return on equity, a key indicator of share-
holder value, was measured at 18.7%, the 15th consecutive year that this benchmark has exceeded 18%.
This continuing high performance enabled the Directors to share this success with the shareholders, as they

increased the cash dividend 9% to $1.45 per share and granted a 10% stock dividend in the fourth quarter.




During the past year we achieved a

milestone in the Bank'’s history as total
deposits topped $1 billion for the first
time ever, rising 16% over the prior
year's level. Of particular note, non-
interest bearing demand deposits grew
by 30%, the greatest single year per-
centage increase in our history for this

most important funding source. We

achieved this gain by staying true to our

founding vision of paying special atten-
tion to small businesses, attorneys and
other professionals, local governments,
community service organizations and
individual entrepreneurs in our market
place. Focusing on these niches has
been a key element to our success.
Total assets rose 10% to more than
$1.5 billion and net loans grew 7% to
$642 million. While there was strong
new loan activity in 2002, the heavy
volume of refinancings created by
record low interest rates dampened our
loan portfolio growth, aswe made a
conscious decision to maintain loan
pricing at certain base levels. We believe
maintaining prudent, yeticompetitive

pricing benefits the Bank-both now and .

in the future. The Bank's continuous
emphasis on superior credit quality and
our reluctance to buy business at low
rates allowed us to end the year with

a high quality, good yielding loan port-
folio. We are encouraged about growth
prospects in this area in 2003 as we
entered the year with a healthy pipeline
of new loan prospects.

The investment portfolio remains
well positioned for the current environ-
ment. We maintain a prudent and
conservative philosophy regardless of
changing conditions. With interest rates
expected to stay low in the near term, we
have weighted the portfolio with instru-
ments that match that expectation.

The Bank has awarded stock options
for more than ten years. We believe that
stock options motivate management to
produce the best possible financial
results for shareholders since stock
options cause part of management'’s
compensation to be dependent on
increased shareholder value. Beginning
in 2002, we elected to include as com-
pensation expense the value of stock
options awarded by the Bank. We believe
this is the preferred method of account-
ing for stock options and is consistent
with the Bank's long-standing practice
of full disclosure and further reflects
our commitment to good corporate
governance. This resulted in $204,000
of expense in 2002. '

The Bank’s unwavering commitment
to profitable growth, asset quality and
efficient operations was evident on all
fronts in 2002. Our accomplishments
have not gone unnoticed. The
Independent Community Bankers
of America ranked us the fifth most
profitable community bank in America
with assets over $1 billion. Similarly,
American Banker, a national industry
publication, rated us as one of the 25
most efficient banks in the country.

We are proud of these recognitions.

We significantly expanded our
market presence in 2002, opening three
new branches, the most ever in one year,
giving us a total of 17 locations. This
included our second branch in the
Bronx located at 975 Allerton Avenue
and our sixth branch in Yonkers,
located in our Headquarters building

at 21 Scarsdale Road. These two
branches will altow us to add to our
existing business in these two core mar-
kets. We also ventured for the first time
into Manhattan locating a full service
branch in the Lincoln Building across
the street from Grand Central Terminal.
This branch has achieved great success
in a short period of time, as individuals
and businesses respond to our unique,
customer-focused style of banking.
Based on the overwhelming success of
these new offices, we are exploring addi-
tional opportunities in Westchester, the
Bronx and Manhattan for 2003. We are
already committed to open a new, full-
service branch in downtown White Plains
at 40 Church Street this summey,
complimenting our other White Plains
branch on Central Avenue.

The Bank moved forward on other
fronts as well in 2002. We upgraded
our electronic infrastructure, investing in
hardware and software that, among
other benefits, enhances the capabilities
of our lockbox operation that services
real estate management firms, munici-
palities and small businesses. We also
entered into new strategic alliances
enabling the Bank’s Investment
Management and Trust Department to
broaden its capabilities so that it could
offer an improved investment manage-
ment program for individuals, not-for-
profits and business and individual
retirement plans, as well as an enhanced
401-k product.

(Left to right)
William E. Griffin,
Chairman of the Board

James J. Landy, v .
President and Chief Executive Officer
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We will continue to invest in tech-
nology and infrastructure improvements
in 2003 so that we may provide better
customer service and improve the
efficiency of our operations. For
example, we will be automating our wire
transfer system with the Federal Reserve
Bank, which will enable customers to
receive immediate confirmations of
both incoming and outgoing wires,
along with other benefits.

While the Bank’s mission is to
provide unparalleled service to all our
customers and a superior returp to our

shareholders, community involvement is

also important to Hudson Valley Bank.
Our employees are actively involved in
hundreds of community organizations
where they live and work; while the Bank
directly supports civic, religious and
community groups as well as other
not-for-profits in our communities.

Executive Management

(Sitting left to right)

Mary Minieri, EVP

Stephen R. Brown, Senior EVP,
Chief Operating Officer &
Chief Financial Officer

Vincent T. Palaia, EVP,

Chief Lending Officer

Frank J. Skuthan, EVP

(Standing left to right)
Joseph L. Beflini, 11T, EVP
Michael P. Maloney, EVP

The Hudson Valley National
Foundation, established in 1981,
coordinates our charitable fund raising
and distribution activities. Since its
inception, the Foundation has given
more than $3 million to our communi-
ties by providing grants to a large array
of worthy charities, with a focus on the
smaller, less recognizable ones where a
little help can go a long way.

In2002, the Foundation made
grants totaling more than $550,000.
This year's grant recipients included
religious organizations, hospitals, health
and family organizations, nursing homes,
as well as organizations dealing with
children such as boys, and girls, clubs,
nurseries, day care centers and shelters
for troubled children. This past year

.the Foundation also distributed approxi-

mately $33,000 to the victims of
September 11t We are committed to
continuing the Foundation’s outstand-
ing work in 2003 and beyond.
Another way for us to keep our
finger on the pulse of the community is

the Bank’s Business Development Board.’

Consisting of over 100 business and
community leaders, these men and
women provide us invaluable market

intelligence as well as a unique perspec-

. tive on the communities where they live

and work. Their input is critical to our
mission and our strategy. This year

we added five new members to our
Business Development Board: Ken Ford,
Paul Jones, Erik Kaeyer, Sheryl Saidel
and Louis Vazquez. We welcome their

collective knowledge and experience
and we look forward to the contribution
that they will make to the Bank in the
years ahead. On a sad note, Lioyd Jones,
a long-time Board member, passed away
fast year. His efforts helped to make
Hudson Valley a better institution, and
he will be missed. '
As we begin our fourth decade,
we offer sincere and heartfelt thanks to
all - our customers, our shareholders,
our directors, our employees, as well as
our families and our communities — who
have helped us realize the vision our
founders set out 30 years ago. We are
proud of our accomplishments and
confident of the future. We invite you
to “experience the commitment” that'is

our Bank.

e

William E. Griffin
Chairman of the Board

James . Landy
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Enriching the experience:
Blythedale Children’s Hospital
Medical

* For more than 100 years, Blythedale Children’s Hospital has been dedicated to

improving the health and life of children with complex medical and rehabilitative
needs. It's the only independent, freestanding children’s hospital in New York State.

With more than 90 physicians on staff, Blythedale includes not only a
dedicated full time faculty but also numerous pediatric sub-specialists representing
the faculties of virtually every major teaching hospital in the tri-state region.

The facility is warm and inviting. A child and family friendly environment is
highlighted by cheerful colors, welcoming spaces and a compassionate staff.
Patients ranging from birth through age 19 aren’t found in bed wearing hospital
gowns, but rather navigating the large hospital via multiple modes of ambulation -
and wearing playclothes. :

In a fast-paced, financially complex institution such as Blythedale, a strong
banking relationship is critical. It is important to the smooth operation of day-to-
day business and to the success of longer-term capital projects as well. In the sum-
mer of 1999, dissatisfied with large commercial banks, the hospital began working
with Hudson Valley Bank.

Blythedale President Larry Levine remembered, “We were looking for a'smaller,

Blvthedale’ dfsiend! neighborhood bank that would spend more time thinking about, and responding

) ¥ .c ©° OP_CD andinendly to, our needs.” He was immediately impressed with Hudson Valiey's flexibility and
interior puts children at ease . . . . o
) . friendliness, and the relationship has grown stronger with time.
and counterpoints the setious . . o . .
.. . “They were here when we needed a short-term line of credit,” Mr. Levine said.
medicine practiced there. Here, S . . L
“When we asked about equipment leasing, they were in the hospital in three days to

Larry Levine, the hospital’s

. educate us. We have many of our fixed-income investments with them through our
President, stands next to

Hudson Valley’s Erika capital fund.

Goldsmith. Assistant Branch Now, said Mr. Levine, “We're going ta be developing a capital fund for addi-
Manager — Elmsford Office tions, new facilities and improvements. We intend to remain on the cutting edge of
and Lynn Bagliebter, Senior 21° century medicine.”

Vice President. Kathryn Malon, “We focus on special needs children, with complex medical problems and enor-
Blythedale’s Vice President and mous rehabilitative needs,” he summarized. “We open the doors to everyone,
4ChjefF'mancja1 Officer, isiseated ‘ regardless of need or ability to pay. Everyone here wears the mission on their sleeve;
with two young patients. everyone is here for those children.” ’
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Strengthening the experience:

Halpern Stillman

Real Estate Management

Hudson Valley achieves an
unusual degree of partnership
with customers. Here (I-r),ina
joint on-site examination,
Halpern Stillman’s principals
Jeff Stillman, Mark Lesser and
Roy Stilman, discuss property
issues with Hudson Valley’s
Diane Wilhelm, Assistant Vice
President & Branch Manager ~
White Plains Office and Vinny -
Palaia, Executive Vice President,
as Warren Lesser, another

Halpern Stillman principal, adds

his thoughts to the conversation.

There’s something inspirational about a family business. The idea of parents, chil-

dren, siblings and spouses pulling together towards common objectives is an ideal for
many and reality for a few.

Halpern Stillman is one such firm. For four generations, it has been a leading
property manager in Westchester County. Today, the grandsons and great-grandsons of
the founder, along with in-laws, keep the company on course and running smoothly.

The firm manages some 7,000 housing units under the company’s H & S Property
Management, Stillman Management and Meredith Management, some of which Halpern
Stillman built itself in cities such as Yonkers, Ossining and White Plains. “We were
formerly in the construction business,” explained managing partner Warren Lesser,

a grandson-in-law.

Over time, the firm turned many of the multi-family buildings it owned into
co-ops, selling the apartments to the existing tenants. When Halpern Stillman looked for
a bank that could provide loans to the prospective co-op buyers, they first met Hudson
Valley. “We had lunch with the bank president and brainstormed a number of different
approaches to the mortgages,” Mr. Lesser recalled.

Still, Halpern Stillman’s primary banking relationship remained elsewhere.

That changed in 2002. Needing better service and greater ﬂexibility, the company.
interviewed four different institutions before electing to move all operations to-
Hudson Valley. The bank’s expertise in property management allowed it to tailor a
package of services expressly for Halpern Stillman. “We went basically for the lockbox
system;" Mr. Lesser recalled. “It works very, very well.” A

Then, on September 1, 2002, Halpern Stillman moved approximately $10 million in
accounts to Hudson Valley. A changeover of this magnitude can cause a mass of annoying
problems. Systems .may not mesh, passwords may not work, records can be misplaced.

In the case of Halpern Stillman, however, “The changeover has been wonderful,”
said Mr. Lesser. “People at Hudson Valley have been extremely, extremely helpful. They
call you back. They fix things.” ‘

He paused, and then continued. “It’s nice to deal with a bank where officers can

make decisions,” he said.
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For Corey B. Rabin, Esq.,
attorney and real estate

developer, a reliable and

innovative bank is a crucial ally

in the journey to success.
Pictured here with his banker
Donna Carr, Senior Vice
President, Corey discusses the
strong relationship that he and
Hudson Valley have enjoyed

for more than 20 years.
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Relying on the experience:
Rabin, Panero & Herrick

Law Firm

In today’s world, it’s not uncommon for individuals to switch careers in mid-

stream. But to launch a successful second career while maintaining a highly profitable
first one is a rarity.

Meet Corey Rabin, attorney and real estate developer. He’s built a thriving,
eight-person law practice and he also develops commercial properties, recreational
properties and land.

Mr. Rabin credits much of his success to his ability to forge strong relationships
with his clients. “My rule is that there are a lot of lawyers for people to choose from,”
he said. “When somebody calls me, | make sure to call them back the same day.”
According to Mr. Rabin, Hudson Valley demonstrates the same attention to
its customers.

Mr. Rabin has banked with Hudson Valley for more than 20 years. He noted
that when he recommends the bank to his clients, they receive the same care and
responsiveness that he does, and Hudson Valley's personal service “always reflects
well on my firm.” ,

“As my practices have grown,” Mr. Rabin said, “Hudson Valley has been a
partner in providing financing, usually doing so with a very rapid turnaround.

That's unusual in today’s environment.” .

“I think Hudson Valley looks at the track record and credibility of an
individual, rather than basing the underwriting decision solely on the economics
of a transaction,” he continued. “They're able to consider factors that most
institutions ignore.” )

As a result, “All my business accounts are with Hudson Valley Bank, all my
personal accounts are with Hudson Valley, and any other real estate development
that | do, | will always give Hudson Valley the first opportunity to provide financing.”

“You know,” Mr. Rabin continued, “there’s no magic to success. It's a
combination of hard work, competence and caring for others.”

“With Hudson Valley, they always try their best. You can’t always get the answer

you want, but you never feel they're not trying.”










Developing the experience:

Lordae Realty
Real Estate Developer

Hands-on management, a passion
for detail, and in-depth customer
knowledge define Lordae. Those
characteristics apply to Hudson
Valley as well, which may explain
the productive relationship both
sides have enjoyed. Here, Lordae’s
President, Camillo Santomero
(seated}), reviews upcoming
projects with (1-r) Mike Maloney,
Hudson Valley Executive Vice
President, Linda Carrington,

Vice President & Branch Manager —
Mt. Kisco Office, and Mr.

Santomero’s son, Chris.

It's not easy to build a business — ask anyone who's tried. But with hard work,

personal sacrifice and perseverance it can be done. Lordae Realty is a case in point.

The company owns and manages retail and commercial property throughout
the metropolitan area. it's vertically integrated and self-sufficient: Lordae’s own staff
performs all work, from rentals to repairs. ‘

Camillo Santomero started Lordae more than 50 years ago, buying buildings
as an adjunct to his tuxedo business. Realizing that real estate offered greater
potential, he began assembling a stable of properties, always taking a long-term
view of the market. ' ,

“You can buy when the market is good or bad if you invest for the |onlg term,”
he said.

As Lordae expanded, Mr. Santomero began to feel stymied by the banks he
worked with. They seemed to adhere to corporate directives rather than evaluating
individual situations. “They should know the people they are doing business
with and treat them based on their histary, reputation and relationship,”

Mr. Santomero said.

Enter Hudson Valley. “They were introduced to us through a family friend,”
he explained. “We found them knowledgeable, aggressive and willing to take on
new ventures. Hudson Valley understands the local market. We're very satisfied
with their service.”

Mr. Santomero’s son, Chris, who represents the next generation of Lordae
Realty, drew a parallel between Lordae and Hudson Valley. “We know our clientele,”
he said. “We know the needs of a guy in the Bronx versus a woman in Westchester
versus a AAA company in Duchess County.”

“Hudson Valley Bank is very similar,” he continued. “They know everyone's
needs on a person-to-person basis.”

“Every day we have something different that goes on because of the diversify
of the tenants and the properties,” his father said of the business. “My family and my
business are very important to me. They are consistently full of fun and adventure.”




Mayor John D. Spencer,
pictured here, has overseen
many positive changes during
his tenure in office, but he’s the
first one to declare that he
hasn’t done it alone. It’s team-
work! He appreciates the help
he’s received from good
corporate citizens like Hudson
Valley. “They’re more than just
a bank,” Mayor Spencer said.
“They contribute to the fiber

and fabric of the community.”

20

Benefiting from the experience:

City of Yonkers
Municipality

Talk to Yonkers Mayor John Spencer and it's clear that he presides over a city
on the move. Jobs are up, crime is down and civic pride is ascendant.

“We're a big city made up of many small communities,” Mayor Spencer said.
“We're safe, we're clean and we offer tremendous amenities for people raising
their families.”

Today’s Yonkers is a world away from the Yonkers of the past, and Mayor
Spencer credits its citizens — individuals and businesses — for the efforts that
have led to the city's rebound. In a recent conversation, he singled out Hudson
Valley Bank.

“Hudson Valley is a hometown Yonkers bank,” said the mayor. “It's not just a
community bank in the banking sense, but it’s also a contributor to the many
good things that go on.”

Those good things extend from the bank helping the city attract business to
its participation in Hudson Riverfest, a celebration of the city's riverine heritage.
In addition, the mayor noted, Hudson Valley people give of themselves as well.

“They're incredibly civic minded citizens,” Mayor Spencer said of Hudson
Valley personnel. “They're trying to make life better for people. There are so
many events that we run,” he added, “and Hudson Valley is always there.”

Mayor Spencer knows that Yonkers still has challenges ahead. But by build-
ing on past successes and inaugurating new projects, he believes the city can
continue on its positive trajectory. And he knows that he has help in Hudson
Valley Bank.

“Hudson Valley Bank does a fine job for Yonkers,” he said. “It’s one of the
best: Ahometown bank with all the professionalism of a big bank. When | check
with my finance commissioner, he always says that service from Hudson Valley is
spectacular.”

“It's nice to be with a big bank that provides such good service and yet
is out on the street, supporting events and giving back to the community,”
he said.
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Building on the experience:
Belkin Buden Wenig & Goldman LLP

Law Firm

Hudson Valley has been instrumental
in helping Belkin Burden Wenig &

Goldman expand its presence in the

market. Here, managing partner
Howard Wenig, Esq. stands in the
firm’s new midtown Manhattan
office, flanked by two of his Hudson
Valley bankers: Arlene DeBenedictis,
Vice President & Branch Manager -
Lincoln Office, and Joseph Ruhl,

Senior Vice President.

In 1989, four partners opened a law firm. Fourteen years later, the firm of
Belkin Burden Wenig & Goldman LLP is a leader in real estate law, renowned for
its expertise in landlord-tenant Iitigation,'rent regulation, purchase, sale and
financing of properties, leasing and tax abatement credits.

With 29 lawyers, a staff of nearly 60 and offices in New York and Connecticut,
the firm represents an elite group of owners and landlords who demand the best
legal representation in questions of real estate.

As managing partner Howard Wenig put it, “We add value. We take a practical,
business-like approach to help owners increase the value of their buildings.”

As its business grew, the firm looked for larger quarters, a search that soon
brought it into contact with banks throughout the area. It was a frustrating experi-
ence until friends suggested to Mr. Wenig that he consider Hudson Valley Bank.

“At our first meeting with Hudson Valley,” Mr. Wenig recalled, “they said they
could meet our needs. And in a few days they committed in writing — which is
extraordinary in dealing with a bank.”

Things kept getting better. “We were able to speak with upper management
just by picking up the phone,” Mr. Wenig said. “And the bank had the ability to
formulate creative approaches to our financing needs.”

Mr. Wenig also appreciated the personal attention the firm received from
the bank. “Hudson Valley did more than just look at the numbers,” he said.

“They looked at us, our history, our business. They're almost like a partner.”

“We're a New York City law firm,” he continued. “Hudson Valley is a
metropolitan area bank. We both have the same sort of attitude - being the best
we can be. We've both developed a reputation for quality service. Our firm helps
our clients achieve their objectives, and Hudson Valley does the same thing.”

Then Mr. Wenig gave a quick summation of the philosophy that helped him
and Hudson Valley succeed: “Don’t try to be everything to everyone. Find what
you do wel! and stick to it.”
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Believing in the experience:

> D D D D Temple Shaaray Tefila

Religions Organization

Twenty-seven years ago, a small group of Jewish families came together to estab-
lish Temple Shaaray Tefila. While diverse in their backgrounds, they decided that the
congregation would welcome all who wished to be part of their new community.

Today, the congregants of Temple Shaaray Tefila number almost 1,000 families.
They are united in their desire to stimulate fellowship in the Jewish community,
to cultivate an appreciation of Jewish heritage and to encourage the principles of
righteousness and brotherhood in society at large.

In addition to serving as a house of worship and offering many attendant
programs, the Temple has also established a school for Jewish education - and
therein lies a story.

When Shaaray Tefila (the name means “Gates of Prayer”) began shopping
for financing to build the school, “Hudson Valley wasn’t our bank,” remembered
Jeffrey Cohen, the Temple’s former president. “But they came out of nowhere and

stepped up to the plate.”

As community-focused “They advanced the funds necessary to build a 20,000 square foot religious

organizations, Temple
Shaaray Tefila and Hudson
Valley Bank hold many values

school, plus they gave us a line of credit, plus they gave us additional funds to finance
cemetery plots for our congregation.”
Mr. Cohen was surprised that a local, independent bank was capable of handling

in common. Standi oud- . - .
1 common. Standing prou a loan project of several million dollars. Yet, “They bent over backwards to give us

tyinside the Temple are (l-r) what we needed,” he marveled
The school opened two years ago, with approximately 700 students. Now, said

Mr. Cohen, “We have close to 1,000 students plus a brand-new nursery school. We

Yonni Wattenmaker, Director
of the Religious School,
Rabbi David E. Gregory,

) have a wonderful educational director and a very strong religious school communi
Jerri Rosenfeld, Nursery y grehg ty

made up of volunteers.”

School Director, Robert
In additien to the mortgage, Temple Shaaray Tefila also has its operating

Weiner, Associate Rabbi,

Steven Allen. Executive accounts, checking accounts and investments with Hudson Valley. “No matter what

Director, and Lynn our needs are, they're there — with advice, counseling and action,” Mr. Cohen said.

Bagliebter, Hudson Valley “They're a helping hand, acting quickly in time of need,” he added. “When we

Senior Vice President. needed financing, Hudson Valley was there every step of the way.”
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Porsches, Ferraris and other
exotic cars crowd the floor at
Stingone Brothers, but every
vehicle receives the same level of
high-quality attention and care.
Here (1-r) Richard Stingone,
Dan Colangelo, Vice President
& Branch Manager - Port
Chester Office, Willie Stingone,
President and Biily Stingone,
Treasurer, discuss the fine points

of a classic automobile.

Customizing the experience:

Stingone Brothers
Auto Body Shop

William Stingone always had a thing for cars. While he was still a teenager,
he took a 1949 Ford convertible and made it distinctly his: he repainted it,
changed the headlights and the door handles, took off the chrome in some places

and added it to others. When he was finished, he had more than a great-tooking
car, he had a glimpse of his future. At 21, he opened his own auto body shop.

It was the 1950s, and young Mr. Stingone was fascinated by the hot-rod
school of exterior finishes: flames, candy-colored paints, all different kinds of
ideas to make cars more exciting. He was the first person on the East Coast to
experiment with metal-flake paints, even contacting Dow Chemical to obtain the
knowledge necessary to reach the highest levels of finishing aesthetics.

He rapidly became one of the leading car customizers in the region, a
position he has held ever since. Today, Mr. Stingone does business from a 12,000
square foot location in Port Chester, where he and his two grown sons, Billy and
Richard, supervise a crew of 11 working on some 20 cars a day.

As his business grew, he entered into a series of unsatisfying relationships
with many different banks. He found lackadaisical service, unresponsive
management and minimal personalization.

“Our bookkeeper had to stand in line while people cashed their weekly
checks,” he recalled. “There was no personal service at all.”

That changed, he said, when Stingone Brothers (named for Billy and
Richard, who are now central to the business) began working with Hudson Valley.
“Now all my accounts are there,” he said. “My whole family banks with Hudson
Valley - personal and business.”

“You know,” he added, “sometimes banking can be very complicated.

The service | get at Hudson Valley makes a big difference.”

Mr. Stingone has won many prizes for his custom cars at auto shows
throughout the United States. And his love for cars still burns brightly, just as
it did when he took his first spin in the '49 Ford.

“I feel grateful that | chose a career where | can make a good living and enjoy
myself at the same time,” he said.
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Busimess Development Board

Our Business Development Board is a resource of immeasurable value to us. Its 106 members, community leaders all, provide us
with valuable introductions to prospective business customers and they play an integral role in the Bank's development efforts.
They aiso serve as advisors and ambassadors for Hudson Valley, lending us their expertise and offering their insight and guidance.
We are proud to have them on our side.

Angelo R. Martinelti John P. Abplanalp Eugene Albert johnF. Alleva Leanard M. Anker { Mark ). Anker
| Chairman President Attorney & President Public Accountant CEO President
Business Development 'Precision Valve Corp. Albert Valuation Group, Inc. Alleva & Alleva Anker Management Corp. Anker Management Corp.

Board

Wiltiam G. Bastardi, jr.

i Andrew J. Balint William F. Banks Michael }. Borrelli Ellen M. Boyle J Emmett Burke
Attorney Attorney President President Attorney Housing Consultant
DelBello, Donnellan, Bariks, Curran & Schwam LLP B&B Auto Parts Borrelli & Russo Agency, Inc. Boyle Real Estate

Weingarten & Tartaglia

Gary O. Carman

Mae R. Carpenter

Robert W. Castro

Ernest R. Catenacci

Paul F. Cocozza

Cathy Alexis Comas

President & CEO
Julia Dyckman Andrus
Memorial, Inc.

Director
Westchester County Office
for the Aging

Accountant & Certified

Financial Planner

Certified Public Accountant
. Catenacci, Markowitz,
Delandri, Rosner & Co.

Attorney
Cocozza & Cocozza PEC.
Abstract Corp.

Vice President
M.J. Comas Co,, Inc.
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> Independent Auditors’ Report

Deloitte
& Touche

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

Hudson Valley Holding Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and its subsidiary, Hudson Valley Bank,
(collectively the “Company”), as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements

based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Hudson Valley Holding
Corp. and its subsidiary at December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut

January 27,2003
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\> Consolidated Statements of Income

/

/,/ Hudson Valley Holding Gorp. and Subsidiary

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts

Interest [ncome:
Loans, including fees
Securities:
Taxable
Exempt from Federal income taxes
Federal funds sold
Deposits in banks
Total interest income

Interest Expense:

Deposits

Securities sold under repurchase agreements and other
short-term borrowings

Other borrowings

Total interest expense

Net Interest Income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Non Interest Income:

Service charges ‘

Realized gain (loss) on sales of securities, net
Other income

Total non interest income,

Non Interest Expense:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy

Professional services
Equipment

Business development

FDIC assessment

Other operating expenses
Total non interest expense

Income Before Income Taxes
Income Taxes

Net Income

Basic Earnings Per Common Share
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share

See notes to consolidated financial|statements.
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2002 2001 2000
$48,469 $48,042 $42,272
27,098 33,804 37336

7,774 7273 6,923

1,364 759 735

38 — _

84,743 89.878 87266

7,885 18,450 25,742

2,317 5.855 10,181
12,780 8,212 4.862
22,952 32.517 40,785
61,761 57,361 46,481
3,902 4,380 1,144
57850 52,981 45,337

1,599 1,192 1,127

54 (180) 692

1,768 1,419 729
3,401 2.43] 2.548
17,718 15.262 14,780
2,501 2,307 2257
2,934 2212 2,560

1,936 1,887 1723
1,490 1119 948

164 166 165
4,373 4,083 3,469
30,516 27,036 25,902
30,744 28.376 21,983
9,160 9,495 5,825
$21,584 | $18,881 $ 16,158
$ 32.69 $ 3.29 $ 2.85
$ 3.50 $ 3.20 $ 277
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) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

/'/ Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and Subsidiary

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Dollars in thousands

Net Income

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale
arising during the year

Income tax effect

Reclassification adjustment for net (gain) loss realized on
securities available for sale
Income tax effect

Unrealized holding gain on securities, net
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Income tax effect

Other comprehensive income

Comprehensive Income

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2002

2001 2000
$21,584 $18,881 $ 16,158
12,182 9,307 22,847
(4,340) (3.867) . (9,365)
7,842 5,440 13,482
(54) 180 - (692)

22 (75) 284
(32) 105 (408)
7,810 . 5,545 13,074
(235) (17) (17)

98 7 7
(137) (10) (10)
7,673 5,535 13,064
$29,257 $24,416 $29,222
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and Subsidiary

December 31, 2002 and 2001

Dollars in thousands, except per share and share amounts

Assets

Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold
Securities available for sale, at estimated fair value
(amortized cost of $721,933 in 2002 and $614,385 in 2001)
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) stock

Loans

{net of allowance for loan losses of $11,510 in 2002 and $8,018 in 2001)
Accrued interest and other receivables
Premises and equipment,inet
Other real estate owned

Other assets
Total Assets
Liabilities
Deposits:

Non interest-bearing
Interest-bearing

Total deposits

Securities sold under repurchase agreements and other
short-term borrowings

Other borrowings

Deferred income taxes, net

Accrued interest and other liabilities

Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock, $0.20 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;
outstanding 5,887,600iand 5,260,158 shares in 2002 and 2001, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Treasury stock, at cost

Total stockholders’ equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2002 2001

$ 48,350 $ 29,821
29,393 76,300
743,884 624,209
10,459 10,459
642,438 600,377
9,043 8,976
12,629 12,129
1,833 2,021
8,856 8,161
$1,506,883 $1,372,453
$ 446,370 $ 342,112
580,806 546,265
1,027,176 888,377
139,212 143,529
188,171 209,197
825 3,958
14,692 14,056
1,370,076 1,259,117
1,366 1,232
146,393 125,057
894 4,829
12,688 5,015
(24,534) (22,791)
136,807 113,342
$1,506,883 $1,372,453
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Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and Subsidiary

» Consoclidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

For the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000

Dollars in thousands,
except share amounts

Balance at January 1, 2000

Net income

Exercise of stock options,
net of tax

Purchase of treasury stock

Sale of treasury stock

Stock dividend

Cash dividends

Minimum pension liability
adjustment

Net unrealized gain on
securities available for sale

Balance at December 31, 2000

Net income

Exercise of stock options,
net of tax

Purchase of treasury stock

Sale of treasury stock

Stock dividend

Cash dividends

Minimum pension liability
adjustment

Net unrealized gain on
securities available for sale

Balance at December 31, 2001

Net income

Exercise of stock options,
net of tax

Purchase of treasury stock

Sale of treasury stock

Stock dividend

Cash dividends

Minimum pension liability
adjustment

Net unrealized gain on
securities available for sale

Balance at December 31, 2002

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Accumulated

Number of Additional Other
Shares Common Treasury Paid-In Retained ~ Comprehensive

Outstanding Stock Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total
4,223,599 $ 1,011 $(20,083) $ 87011 $13,955 $(13,584) $ 68,310
16,158 16,158

85,112 17 2,209 2,226
(40,897) (1,436) (1,436)
6,825 166 68 234
428,021 86 15,537 (15,623) —
(5,211) (5.211)

(10) (10)

13,074 13,074

4,702,660 1,114  (21,353) 104,825 9,279 (520) 93,345
18,881 18,881

112,646 23 3,155 3,178
(48,677) (1,819) (1,819)
15,225 381 192 573
478,304 95 16,885 (16,980) —
(6,351) (6,351)

(10) (10)

5,545 5,545

5,260,158 1,232 (22,791) 125,057 4,829 5,015 113,342
21,584 ‘ 21,584

132,706 27 3,565 3,592
(48,672) (1,949) (1,949)
8,001 206 96 302
535,407 107 17,675 (17,782) —

, (7,737) (7.737)
(137) (137)

7,810 7,810

5,887,600 $1,366  $(24,534) $146,393 $ 894 $ 12,688 $136,807
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. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
’ Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and Subsidiary

for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Dollars in thousands 2002 2001 2000
Operating Activities:
Net income $ 21,584 $ 18,881 $ 16,158

Adjustments to reconcile het income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Provision for loan losses 3,902 4,380 1,144
Depreciation and amortization 1,703 1,841 1,697
Realized (gain) loss on security transactions, net (54) 180 (692)
Amortization of premiums on securities, net 1,340 1,217 188
Realized gains on sale of loans held for sale, net — — (5)
Stock option expense and related tax benefits 592 321 —
Originations of loans held for sale : — — (612)
Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale — — 617
Deferred taxes (benefit) (7,353) (1,629) 4,207
Increase (decrease) in deferred loan fees {(17) 14 (108)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest and other receivables {&7) 5,628 (5,048)
Increase in other assets (623) (894) (1,238)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest and other liabilities 636 (598) 4,039
Other changes, net (45) 79 169
Net cash provided by operating activities 21,526 29,547 20,516

Investing Activities:
Net (increase) decrease in short-term investments 46,907 (69,000) - 13,600
Increase in FHLB stock — (998) (100)
Proceeds from maturities of securities available for sale 788,712 311,796 79,330
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 77% 47,835 44,320
Purchases of securities available for sale (898,320) (320,721) (121,047)
(Increase) decrease in receivable for securities sold —_ 44,326 (44,326)
Increase (decrease) in payable for securities purchased — (14,913) 14,913
Net increase in loans (45,246) (98,797) (94,223)
Net purchases of premises and equipment (2,203) (625) (1,310)
Net cash used in investing activities (118,075) (101,097) (108,843)
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock . 3,000 2,857 2,133
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock 302 573 234
Net increase in depaosits 138,799 8,802 124,729
Cash dividends paid ' {7,737} - (6.351) ©(5,211)
Repayment of other borrowings (21,020) (18) (30,275)
Proceeds from other borrowings — 121,250 24,000
Net decrease in securities sold under repurchase agreements :

and other short-term borrowings {4,317) (54,343) (21,612}
Purchase of treasury stock (1,249) (1,819) (1,436)
Net cash provided by financing activities 107,078 70,951 92,562
Increase (decrease) in Cash and Due from Banks 18,522 (599) 4,235
Cash and due from banks, beginning of year 29,821 30,420 26,185
Cash and due from banks, end of year § 48,350 $29,82 $30,420
Supplemental Disclosures: :
Interest paid $ 23,452 $ 34,021 $ 39,055
Income tax payments | 17,332 10,031 4,331
Change in unrealized gain on securities

available for sale — net of tax 7,810 5,545 13,074

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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\ o ] L]
v Notes to Consolidated Fimancial Statememnts
S Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and Subsidiary

Dollars in thousands, except per share and share amounts
1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Operations and Basis of Presentation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hudson Valley
Holding Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hudson Valley Bank (the “Bank”), (collectively the “Company”). The Bank offers a broad
range of lending and depository products to businesses, individuals and government units through 13 branches and a business center in
Westchester County, New York, two branches in Bronx County, New York and one branch in Manhattan, New York. All inter-company
accounts are eliminated. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance sheet and income and expenses for the period. Actual
results could differ significantly from those estimates. An estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term
relates to the determination of the allowance for loan losses. In connection with the determination of the allowance for loan losses,

. management utilizes the work of professional appraisers for significant properties.

Securities — Securities are classified as either available for sale, representing securities the Bank may sell in the ordinary course
of business, or as held for investment, representing securities the Bank has the ability and positive intent to hold until maturity. Securities
available for sale are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses (net of tax) excluded fro.m operations and reported in other
comprehensive income. Securities held for investment are stated at amortized cost (specific identification). There were no securities held
for investment at December 31, 2002 and 2001. The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts is determined by using the level
yield method to the earlier of the cail or maturity date. Securities are not acquired for purposes of engaging in trading activities. Realized

gains and losses from sales of securities are determined using the specific identification method.

Loans — Loans are reported at their outstanding principal balance, net of charge-offs, and deferred loan origination fees and costs.
Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and recognized over the life of the related loan or commitment

as an adjustment to yield, or taken directly into income when the related loan is sold or commitment expires.

Loans Held for Sale — Loans held for sale are valued at the lower of cost or market, decreases in the carrying value, if any, are
reported in earnings. Realized gains or losses on sales of loans are reported in earnings in the period the sale occurs. There were no loans

held for sale at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Interest Rate Contracts — The Company, from time to time, uses various interest rate contracts such as forward rate agreements,
interest rate swaps, caps and floors, primarily as hedges against specific assets and liabilities. Statement of Financial Accounting (SFAS)
No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities — Deferral of the Effective Date of SFAS Statement No. 133", which became effective on
January 1, 2001, requires that all derivative instruments, including interest rate contracts, be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair
value. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are recorded each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income,
depending on whether a derivative is designated as part of a hedge transactiLm and, if it is, the type of hedge transaction. The Company
has two interest rate floor contracts, one with a notional value of $25 million with a 4.5% strike rate and one with a notional value of $25
million with a 4.0% strike rate, which do not qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, the contracts were accounted
for at fair value with the resulting net gain of $1,105,000 and $832,000 included in other income as of December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Under prior accounting, these contracts were accounted for as hedges, with the premiums paid for them being amortized
against interest income over the life of the contract. The transition adjustment resulting from the adoption of SFAS No. 133 as of January 1,

2001 was not significant.
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Allowance for Loan Losses — The Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio based
on ongoing q.uarterly assessments of the estimated losses. The Bank’s methodology for assessing the appropriateness of the allowance
consists of several key combonents, which include a specific compaonent for identified problem loans, a formula component, and an
unallocated component. The specific component incorporates the results of measuring impaired loans as provided in SFAS No. 114,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” and SFAS No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan — Income
Recognition and Disclosures.” These accounting standards prescribe the measurement methods, income recognition and disclosures
related to impaired loans. A loan is recognized as impaired when it is probable that principal and/or interest are not collectible in
accordance with the loan’sicontractual terms. A loan is not deemed to be impaired if there is a short delay in receipt of payment or if,
during a longer period of delay, the Company expects to collect all amounts due including interest accrued at the contractual rate during
the period of delay. Measurement of impairment can be based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. This
evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant change. If the fair value of the
impaired loan is less than the related recorded amount, a specific valuation allowance is established within the allowance for loan losses

or a writedown is charged against the allowance for loan losses if the impairment is considered to be permanent. Measurement of

impairment does not apply to large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment such as

the Company’s portfolios of home equity loans, rea! estate mortgages, installment and other loans.

The formula component is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by type. Loss factors are based on historical loss
experience. New loan types, for which there has been no historical loss experience, as explained further below, is one of the considerations

in determining the appropfriateness of the unallocated component.

The appropriateness of the unallocated component is reviewed by management based upon its evaluation of then-existing economic
and business conditions affecting the key lending areas of the Bank and other conditions, such as new loan products, credit quality trends
(including trends in nonperforming loans expected to result from existing conditions), collateral values, loan volumes and concentrations,
specific industry conditions within portfolio segments that existed as of the balance sheet date and the impact that such conditions were
believed to have had on the collectibility of the loan portfolio. Senior management reviews these conditions quarterly. Management'’s
evaluation of the loss related to these conditions is reflected in the unallocated component. Due to the inherent uncertainty in the
process, management does not attempt to quantify separate amounts for each of the conditions considered in estimating the unallocated
component of the allowance. The evaluation of the inherent loss with respect to these conditions is subject to a higher degree of

uncertainty because they are not identified with specific credits or portfolio segments.

Actual losses can véry significantly from the estimated amounts. The Bank’s methodology permits adjustments to the aflowance in
the event that, in management’s judgment, significant factors which affect the collectibility of the loan portfolio as of the evaluation date

have changed.

Management believes the allowance for loan losses is the best estimate of probable losses which have been incurred as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001. There is no assurance that the Company will not be required to make future adjustments to the allowance
in response to changing economic conditions, particularly in the Bank's service area, since the majority of the Bank's loans are collateralized
by real estate. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of the examination process, periodically review the Bank's
allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments at

the time of their examination.

Loan Restructurings — Loan restructurings are renegotiated loans for which concessions have been granted to the borrower that
the Company would not have otherwise granted. Restructured loans are returned to accrual status when said loans have demonstrated
performance, generally evidenced by six months of payment performance in accordance with the restructured terms, or by the presence of

other significant factors.
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Income Recognition on Loans — Interest on loans is accrued monthly. Net loan origination and commitment fees are deferred and

recognized as an adjustment of yield over the lives of the related loans. Loans, including impaired loans, are placed on a non-accrual status
when management believes that interest or principal on such loans may not be collected in the normal course of business. When a loan is
placed on non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued, but not collected, is reversed against interest income. Interest received on
non-accrual loans generally is either applied against principal or reported as interest income, in accordance with management’s judgment
as to the collectibility of principal. Loans can be returned to accruing status when they become current as to principal and interest, demon-

strate a period of performance under the contractual terms, and when, in management'’s opinion, they are estimated to be fully collectible.

Premises and Equipment — Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, generally 3 to 31.5 years. Leasehold

improvements are amortized over the lesser of the term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Other Real Estate Owned — Real estate properties acquired through loan foreclosure are recorded at the lower of cost or estimated
fair value, net of estimated selling costs, at time of foreclosure. Credit losses arising at the time of foreclosure are charged against the
allowance for loan losses. Subsequent valuations are periodically performed by management and the carrying value is adjusted by a charge
to expense to reflect any subsequent declines in the estimated fair value. Routine holding costs are charged to expense as incurred. Any

gains on dispositions of such properties reduce OREO expense.

Income Taxes — Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to
be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period the

change is enacted.

Transfers of Financial Assets — In September 2000, FASB issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”, replacing SFAS No. 125. SFAS No. 140 revises the standard for accounting and reporting for
transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities, providing consistent guidelines for distinguishing transfers of
financial assets that are sales from transfers that are secured borrowings. SFAS No. 140 is effective for transfers, servicing, or extinguish-
ments occurring after March 31, 2001, except for certain provisions relating to the accounting and disclosure for secured borrowings and
collateral, for which the effective date was December 15, 2000. The adoption of the remaining provisions of this statement did not have a

material impact on the Company'’s financial position or results of operations.

Business Combinations — In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combination” (“SFAS No. 141”). SFAS No. 141
requires the purchase method of accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the pooling-of-inter-
ests method. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 by the Company on July 1, 2001 did not have a significant impact on its financial position or

results of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation — The Company has stock option plans that provide for the granting of options to directors, certain
officers and to all eligible employees. SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” encourages but does not require compa-
nies to record compensation cost for stock-based employee compensation plans at fair value. In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123 (“SFAS
No. 148").” SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting
for stock-based compensation. Prior to 2002, the Company accounted for stock-based employee compensation plans under the recogni-
tion and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and
related interpretations. Accordingly, no stock-based employee compensation cost was recorded in 2001 or 2000 as all employee options

granted during those years had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the dates of grant.
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Non-employee stock options were expensed as of the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the fair value

recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 prospectively for all stock options granted, modified or settled on or after January 1, 2002. Certain
stock options under the Company's plans vest over a five year period commencing one year from date of grant. Therefore, the cost related
to stock-based employee compensation included in the determination of 2002 net income is less than that which would have been
recognized if the fair value method had been applied to all stock options granted since the original effective date of SFAS No. 123, The
following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the fair value based method had been applied to all outstand-

ing and unvested awards inieach period.

Years Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000
Net income, as reported . $21,584 $18,881 $16,158
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense

included in reported net income,
net of related tax effects ‘ 204 — —
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under the fair value based method for all

awards, net of related tax effects (256) (222) (351)
Pro forma net income $21,532 $18,659 $15,807
Earnings per share:

Basic — as reported $ 3.69 $ 3.29 $ 2.85

Basic — pro forma 3.68 3.25 2.79

Diluted - as reported ¢ 3.39 $ 3.20 $ 277

Diluted - pro forma 3.58 3.16 2.71

The fair value (present value of the estimated future benefit to the option holder) of each option grant in 2002, 2001 and 2000
is estimated on the date of|grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for
grants in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively: dividend yield of 3.8%, 3.5% and 3.5%; average expected volatility of 9%, 10% and 10%;
average risk-free interest rates of 4.11%, 4.36% and 5.05% and expected life of 5 years for 2002, and 6 years for 2001 and 2000. All
option grants expire within 10 years of the date of grant. The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2002, 2001 and 2000
was $2.84, $3.08 and $3.42, respectively.

Earnings per Common Share — SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share,” establishes standards for computing and presenting earnings
per share. The statement requires disclosure of basic earnings per common share (i.e. common stock equivalents are not considered) and
diluted earnings per common share (i.e. common stock equivalents are considered using the treasury stock method) on the face of the
statement of operations, along with a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic
earnings per common share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the period. The computation of diluted earnings per common share is similar to the computation of basic earnings per share except that
the denominator is increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the dilutive potential

common shares, consisting solely of stock options, had been issued.

Weighted average common shares outstanding used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share

were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Weighted average common shares: ‘
Basic 5,847,879 5,745,852 5,668,855
Effect of stock options 160,548 154,796 163,816

Diluted - 6,008,427 5,900,648 5,832,671
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In December 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Board of Directors of the Company declared 10 percent stock dividends. Share amounts

have been retroactively restated to reflect the issuance of the additional shares.

Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information — SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information,” establishes standards for the way business enterprises report information about operating segments in annual
financial statements and requires that those enterprises report selected information about operating segments in subsequent interim
financial reports issued to shareholders. It also establishes standards for related disclosure about products and services, geographic areas,
and major customers. The statement requires that a business enterprise report financial and descriptive information about its reportable
operating segments. Operating segments are components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance. The statement
also requires that business enterprises report a measure of segment profit or loss, certain specific revenue and expense items and segment
assets. It also requires that information be reported about revenues derived from the enterprises’ products or services, or about the
countries in which the enterprises earn revenues and holds assets, and about major customers, regardless of whether that information is

used in making operating decisions. The Company.has one operating segment, “Community Banking.”

Coodwill and Other Intangible Assets — In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”
(“SFAS No. 142", which became effective January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 142 requires, among other things, the discontinuance of goodwill
amortization as well as provisions for the reclassification of certain existing recognized intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the useful
lives of existing recognized intangibles and the identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing future impairments of goodwill.
SFAS No. 142 also required a transitional goodwill impairment test six months from the date of adoption. The adoption of SFAS No. 142

by the Company on January 1, 2002 did not have a significant impact on its financial positions or results of operations.

Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets — In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144"), which supersedes SFAS No. 121 and portions of APB Opinion No. 30. This
statement addresses the recognition of an impairment loss for long-lived assets to be held and used, or disposed of by sale or otherwise.
This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 and interim periods within
those fiscal years. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 by the Company on January 1, 2002 did not have a significant impact on its financial

positions or results of operations.

in April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement
No. 13, and Technical Corrections” (“SFAS No. 145”). This statement clarifies guidance related to the reporting of gains and losses from
extinguishment of debt and resolves inconsistencies related to the required accounting treatment of certain lease modifications. The
provisions of this statement relating to the extinguishment of debt become effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years begin-
ning after May 15, 2002. The provisions of this statement relating to lease modification are effective for transactions occurring after
May 15, 2002. The adoption of the effective provisions of SFAS No. 145 did not have a significant impact on the Company's financial posi-
tion or results of operations and the Company does not believe that the adoption of the remaining provisions will have a significant impact

on its financial position or results of operations.

Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions — In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, “Acquisitions of Certain Financial
Institutions” (“SFAS No. 147"}, which became effective October 1, 2002. SFAS No. 147 removes acquisitions of financial institutions from
the scope of SFAS No. 72, “Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions” and FASB Interpretation No. 9, “Applying
APB Opinions No. 16 and 17" “When a Savings and Loan Association or Similar Association is Acquired in a Business Combination
Accounted for by the Purchase Method” and requires that those transactions be accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” In addition, SFAS No. 147 amends SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” to include in its scope long-term customer relationship intangible assets of financial
institutions. The adoption of SFAS No. 147 by the Company on October 1, 2002 did not have a significant effect on the Company’s

financial position or results of operations.
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Other — Certain 2001 and 2000 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2002 presentation.

Pending Accounting Rronouncements

Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities — In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs

Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” (“SFAS No. 146"). The statement specifies the accounting for certain employee termination

benefits, contract termination costs and costs to consolidate facilities or relocate employees and is effective for exit and disposal activities

initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 146 by the Company on January 1, 2003 will not have a significant effect on

the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

2 Securities

Classified as Available for Sale
U.S, Treasury and
government agencies
Mortgage-backed securities
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions
Other debt securities
Total debt securities
Equity securities
Total

December 31
2002
Gross Unrealized Cross Unrealized
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Cains Losses Value
223,005 $ 1,671 $ 2 $224,674 $105,838 $ 1,344 $ 399 $106,783
323,898 10,309 208 333,999 348,116 5,052 398 352,770
167,346 2,469 4 176,811 155,742 4,275 484 159,533
6,714 288 — 7,002 3,817 25 40 3,802
720,263 21,737 214 742,488 613,513 10,696 1,321 622,888
7¢ 428 — 1,328 872 449 — 1,321
$721,933 $22,165 $214 $743,884 $614,385 $11,145 $1,321 $624,209

At December 31, 2002, securities having a stated value of approximately $398,176 were pledged to secure public deposits,

securities sold under agreements to repurchase, and for other purposes as required or permitted by law.

Gross gains of $54, gross losses of $180 and gross gains of $692 were recorded as a result of securities available for sale sold or
redeemed in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Applicable income taxes relating to such transactions were $22, $(75) and $284 in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The contractual maturity of all debt securities held at December 31, 2002 is shown below. Actual maturities may differ from

contractual maturities because some issuers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Contractual Maturity
Within 1 year

After 1 but within 5 years
After 5 but within 10 years
After 10 years
Mortgage-backed securities
Total
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Available for Sale

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
$161,344  $161,450
50,882 53,558
69,959 73,934
114,880 119,545
323,898 333,999
$720,963 $742,486




3 Credit Commitments and Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Bank has outstanding, at any time, a significant number of commitments to extend credit and also provide financial guarantees
to third parties. Those arrangements are subject to strict credit control assessments. Guarantees specify limits to the Bank's obligations.
The amounts of those loan commitments and guarantees are set out in the following table. Because many commitments and almost all

guarantees expire without being funded in whole or in part, the contract amounts are not estimates of future cash flows.

2002 2001

Contract Contract

Amount Amount

Credit commitments $129,442 $130,191
Guarantees written $ 5,287 $ 4,749

The majority of loan commitments have terms up to one year, with either a floating interest rate or contracted fixed interest rates

ranging from 3.75% to 8.50%. Guarantees written generally have terms up to one year.

Loan commitments and guarantees written have off-balance-sheet credit risk because only origination fees and accruals for
‘probable losses are recognized in the balance sheet until the commitments are fulfilled or the guarantees expire. Credit risk represents the
accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted. The credit
risk amounts are equal to the contractual amounts, assuming that the amounts are fully advanced and that, in accordance with the
requirements of SFAS No. 105, “Disclosure of Information about Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk arid Financial

Instruments with Concentrations of Credit Risk,” collateral or other security would have no value.

The Bank'’s policy is to require customers to provide collateral prior to the disbursement of approved loans. For loans and financial
guarantees, the Bank usually retains a security interest in the property or products financed or other collateral which provides repossession

rights in the event of default by the customer.

Concentrations of credit risk (whether on or off-balance-sheet) arising from financial instruments exist in relation to certain groups
of customers. A group concentration arises when a number of counterparties have similar economic characteristics that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. The Bank does not have a
significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty. A geographic concentration arises because the Bank operates principally in
Westchester County and Bronx County, New York. Loans and credit commitments collateralized by real estate including all loans where real

estate is either primary or secondary collateral are as follows:

Residential Commercial

Property Property Total

2002
Loans $181,564 $342,360 $523,924
Credit commitments 27,269 76,223 103,492
: $208,833 $418,583 $627,416

2001
Loans $183,160 $300,082 $483,242
Credit commitments 24,307 78,693 103,000

$207,467 $378,775 $586,242

The credit risk amounts represent the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties
failed completely to perform as contracted and any collateral or security proved to have no value. The Bank has experienced little difficulty

in accessing collateral when required.
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4 loans

The loan portfolio is comprised of the following:

December 31
2002 2001
Real Estate:
Commercial $231,411 $210,840
Construction ' 56,691 52,496
Residential 164,287 174,859
Commercial and industrial o 179,288 - 140,573
Individuals 3 14,509 11,824
Lease financing ‘ 9,224 19,282
Total 655,410 609,874
Deferred loan fees , (1,462) (1,479)
Allowance for loan losses (11,510} (8,018)

Loans, net $642,438 $600,377

The Bank has established credit policies applicable to each type of lending activity in which it engages. The Bank evaluates the credit
worthiness of each customer and extends credit based on credit history, ability to repay and market value of collateral. The customers’
credit worthiness is monitared on an ongoing basis. Additional collateral is obtained when warranted. Real estate is the primary form of
collateral. Other important forms of collateral are bank deposits and marketable securities. While collateral provides assurance as a second-
ary source of repayment, the Bank ordinarily requires the primary source of payment to be based on the borrower’s ability to generate

continuing cash flows..

A summary of the activity in the allowance for loan losses follows:

December 31

: 2002 2001 2000
Balance, beginning of year $ 8,018 $4,816 $4,047
Add (deduct): ‘
Provision for loan losses ‘ 3,902 4,380 1,144 -
Recoveries on loans previously charged-off : 69 250 53
Charge-offs : (472) (1,428) (428)
Balance, end of year $11,510 $8,018 $4,816

The recorded investment in impaired loans at December 31, 2002 was $4,672 for which an allowance of $1,282 has been
established. The recorded investment in impaired loans at December 31, 2001 was $2,485, for which an allowance of $807 had been

established. Generally, the fair value of these loans was determined using the fair value of the underlying collateral of the loan.

The average investment in impaired loans during 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $3,519, $2,317 and $2,154, respectively. During the

years reported, no income was recorded on impaired loans during the portion of the year that they were impaired.

Noﬁ-accrual and restructured loans at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 and related interest income are summarized as follows:

‘ 2002 2001 2000
| Non-Accrual Restructured Non-Accrual ~ Restructured Non-Accrual  Restructured
‘ Loans Loans Loans Loans Loans Loans
Amount $4,758 — $3,523 — $4,584 —
Interest income recorded ‘ - — — — — —
Interest income that would ‘
have been recorded under theoriginal contract terms 179 — 334 — 586 —
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Non-accrual loans at December 31, 2002 and 2001 include $4,172 and $2,485, respectively, of loans considered to be impaired
under SFAS No. 114. |

Loans made directly or indirectly to employees, directors or principal shareholders were approximately $17,192 and $17,239 at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. During 2002, new loans granted to these individuals and the effects of changes in board mem-
ber composition totaled $688 and payments totaled $735.

5 Premises and Equipment

A summary of premises and equipment follows:

December 31

2002 2001
Land § 1,139 $ 1,139
Buildings 18,715 - 10,452
Leasehold improvements 2,485 . 2,106
Furniture, fixtures and equipment : 13,011 11,592
Automobiles 447 321
Total . ‘ 27,797 25,610
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . 15,168 13,481
Premises and equipment, net 312,629 $12,129

6 Borrowings

Borrowings with original maturities of one year or less totaled $139,212 and $143,529 at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Such short-term borrowings consisted of securities sold under agreements to repurchase of $139,212 and $143,529 at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Other borrowings totaled $188,171 and $209,191 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respec-

tively, consisting of borrowings from FHLB with stated maturities of ten years and 1 to 4 year call options.

Interest expense on all borrowings totaled $15,097, $14,067 and $15,043 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. ln December
2002, the Company prepaid $21 million of it's FHLB borrowings resulting in a prepayment penalty of $2.6 million. This penalty is included
ininterest expense on other borrowings in the 2002 Consolidated Statement of Income. Excluding the aforementioned prepayment
penalty, the weighted average interest rate on other borrowings for 2002 was 4.9%. The following table summarizes the average balances,
weighted average interest rates and the maximum month-end outstanding amounts of securities sold under agreements to repurchase and

FHLB borrowings for each of the years:

2002 200t 2000

Average balance:

Short-term $148,585 | $154,311 $165,993

Other Borrowings 208,886 '@ 160,255 89,011
Weighted average interest rate: . :

Short-term : 1.6% 3.8% 6.1%

Other Borrowings i 6.1 5.1 55
Maximum month-end outstanding amount:

Short-term : . $161,757 $164,222 $197,889

Other Borrowings ! 209,190 209,191 94,229

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, these borrowings were collateralized by loans and securities with an estimated fair value of
$343,752 and $370,356, respectively. ’

In addition, at December 31, 2002, the Bank had available unused lines of credit of $120 million from FHLB, and $25 million from
correspondent banks. In addition, the Bank has $110 million in available borrowings under Retail CD Agreements with two major
investment banking firms, all of which are subject to various terms and conditions.
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7 Income Taxes

A reconciliation of the income tax provision and the amount computed using the federal statutory rate is as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2002

2001 2000

Income tax at statutory rate $10,761 35.0%
State income tax, net of Federal benefit 1,038 3.4
Tax-exempt interest income (2,5%2) {8.4)
Non-deductible expenses and other {47} {0.2)

$9,932 35.0% $7474
1,036 3.7 472
(2,334) (8.2) (2,032)
861 3.0 (89)

Provision for income taxes $ 9,160 29.8%

$9,495 33.5% $5,825

The components of the provision for income taxes (benefit) are as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2002

2007 2000

Federal:
Current $14,194

State:
Current 2,312

Deferred {955)

Deferred {6,398)

$9,113 $ 866
(1,164) 4,218

2,0n 206

(465) 535

Total : ' $ 9,160

$9,495 $5,825

The tax effect of temporary differences giving rise to the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2001

December 31, 2002
Asset Liability
Allowance for loan losses $4,652
Treasury securities
Supplementa! pension benefit 1,519
Minimum pension liability 579
Deferred compensation 702
Securities available for sale . $8,406
Interest on non-accrual loans 200
Undistributed income from subsidiary
SFAS 123 compensation cost 87
Depreciation ‘ 158
Other
$7,739 $8.,564

Asset Liability
$3,243
$ 375
1,334
480
697
4,088
263
5,345
188
21
$6,038 $9,996

8 Stockholders’ Equity and Stock Options

The Company andithe Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory — and possibly additional discretionary —
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on their financial statements. Under capital adequacy guide-
lines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Cdmpany and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measiures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting

practices. Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk

weightings and other factors.
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Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum

amounts and ratios {set forth in the table below) of total and Tier | capital {as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as

defined), and of Tier | capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined).

Management believes, as of December 31, 2002, that both the Company and the Bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to

which they are subject.

The following summarizes the capital requirements and capital position at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Minimum
To Be Well
Minimum For Capitalized Under
Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provision
Bank Only Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2001:
Total Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) $114,590 16.5% $55.,667 8.0% $69,583 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) 106,572 15.3 27,833 4.0 41,750 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (To Average Assets) 106,572 7.9 53,992 4.0 67,490 5.0
As of December 31, 2002:
Total Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) $131,497 18.3% $57,554 8.0% $71,943 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) 122,504 17.0 28,777 4.0 43,165 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (To Average Assets) 122,504 8.3 59,318 4.0 74,148 5.0
Minimum For
Capital
Actual Adequacy Purposes
Consolidated Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31,2001:
Total Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) $115,059 16.5% $55,735 8.0%
Tier 1 Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) 107,041 15.4 27,867 4.0
Tier 1 Capital (To Average Assets) 107,041 7.9 54,027 4.0
As of December 31, 2002:
Total Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) $131,832 18.3% $57,630 8.0%
Tier 1 Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) 122,834 17.0 28,815 4.0
Tier 1 Capital (To Average Assets) 122,834 8.3 59,341 4.0

As of December 31, 2002, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk based, Tier 1 risk
based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management

believes have changed the institution’s category.
Stock Dividend

In December 2002 and 2001 the Board of Directors of the Company declared 10 percent stock dividends. Share and per share

amounts have been retroactively restated to reflect the issuance of the additional shares.
Stock Options

The Company has stock option plans that provide for the granting of options to directors, certain officers, and to all eligible employ-
ees. Options to purchase 466,414 shares of common stock were outstanding at December 31, 2002 under all plans. The stock options are
exercisable at prices that approximate the market value of the Company's stock at dates of grant. Certain options become exercisable in up
to five annual installments, commencing one year from date of grant. Other options become exercisable in their entirety, upon completion
of 5 years of service. Options have a maximum duration of 10 years.
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Stock option transactionsiunder the Plans were as follows:

Shares Weighted
Underlying Average Exercise
Outstanding Options Options Price Per Share
As of January 1, 2000 348,932 $13.89
Granted 186,729 2411
Cancelled or expired (5.326) 21.70
Exercised (112,814) 18.91
As of December 31, 2000 417,521 17.01
Granted 174,463 28.01
Cancelled or expired * (4,301) 25.51
Exercised (135,796) 21.03
As of December 31, 2001 451,887 19.96
Cranted ' 164,335 32.29
Cancelled or expired (4,854) 31.24
Exercised (144,954) 20.70
As of December 31, 2002 : 466,414 23.96
Exercisable as of December 31, 2002 423,323 23.32
Available for future grant 703,458

The following table summarizes the range of exercise prices of the Company’s stock options outstanding and exercisable at

December 31, 2002:

Weighted Average
Number of Remaining Exercise
Exercise Price Options Life (yrs) Price
$ 8.49t0$20.98 146,852 37 $14.43
21.02 t0 27.91 181,115 7.2 25.78
27.92 to 33.21 138,447 8.9 31.69
$ 8.491t0$33.21 466,414 6.6 $23.96
Exercisable $ 8.49t0$33.21 423,323 6.4 $23.32
Not Exercisable $19.40 to $33.21 43,09 8.5 $30.28

9 Benefit Plans

The Hudson Valley Bank Employees’ Defined Contribution Pension Plan covers substantially all employees. Pension costs accrued
and charged to current operations include 5 percent of each participant’s earnings during the year. Pension costs charged to other
operating expenses (including pension costs for directors) totaled approximately $756, $785 and $400 in 2002, 2001 and 2000,

respectively.

The Hudson Valley Bank Employees’ Savings Plan covers substantially all employees. The Bank matches 25 percent of employee
contributions annually, up to 4 percent of base salary. Savings Plan costs charged to expense totaled approximately $74, $67 and $64 in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company does not offer its own stock as an investment to participants of the Employees’ Savings Plan. The Company’s matching
contribution under the Employees’ Savings Plan as well as its contribution to the Defined Contribution Pension Plan is in the form of cash.

Neither plan holds any shares of the Company'’s stock.
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Additional retirement benefits are provided to certain officers pursuant to supplemental plans. Costs for the officers’ supplemental

pension plan totaled approximately $617, $650 and $605 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The Bank records an additional minimum

pension liability to the extent that its accumulated pension benefit obligation exceeds the fair value of pension plan assets and accrued

pension liabilities. This additional minimum pension liability is offset by an intangible asset, not to exceed prior service costs and of the

pension plan. Amounts in excess of prior service costs are reflected as a reduction in other comprehensive income net of related tax benefits.

The following tables set forth the status of the Bank’s plans as of December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gain) loss
Benefits paid
Benefit obligation at end of year
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on assets
Employer contributions.
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year
Funded status
Unrecognized transition obligation
Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized net loss
Accrued benefit cost
Weighted average assumptions:
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase

Components of net periodic benefit cost:

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of transition obligation
Amortization of prior service cost
Amortization of net loss

Net periodic benefit cost

2002 2001

$ 5,709 $ 4,995
180 223
396 356
813 634
(482) (499)
5,516 5,709
482 499
(482) (499)
(6,616) (5,709)
227 318
273 317
2,250 1,665
$(3,866)  $(3,409)
6.25% 7.00%
5.00% 4.00%

$ 180 $ 223
396 356

1 91

44 44

220 321

$ 931 $ 1,035

Set forth below is a summary of the amounts reflected in the Bank’s balance sheets as of December 31:

Accrued benefit liability
Intangible asset

Accumulated other comprehensive income (pre-tax net reduction in equity)

Accrued benefit cost

2002 2001
$(5,795) $(5.245)

500 635

1,429 1,201
$(3,866) $(3,409)
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10 Commitments, Confﬂﬁngen{t Liabilities and Other Disclosures

The Company is obligated under leases for certain of its branches and equipment. Minimum rental commitments for bank premises

and equipment under noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2003 $ 631
2004 338
2005 258
2006 122
2007 58
Thereafter 223

Total minimum future rentals $1,630

Rent expense for premises and equipment was approximately $993, $833 and $783 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
In the normal course of business, there are various outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the

consolidated balance sheets. No losses are anticipated as a result of these transactions.

In the ordinary coutise of business, the Company is party to various legal proceedings, none of which, in the opinion of management,

will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

At December 31, 2002, the Company was a party to two interest rate floor agreements, as more fully discussed in Note 1 to these
consolidated financial statements. These agreements are subject to the counterparties’ ability to perform in accordance with the terms of

the agreements.
Cash Reserve Requirements

The Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances under the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation D issued thereunder.

Such reserves totaled approximately $1,559 at December 31, 2002 and $941 at December 31,2001.
Restrictions on Funds Transfers

There are various restrictions which limit the ability of a bank subsidiary to transfer funds in the form of cash dividends, loans or
advances to the parent company. Under federal law, the approval of the primary regulator is required if dividends declared by the Bank in

any year exceed the net priofits of that year, as defined, combined with the retained net profits for the two preceding years.
11 Segment Information

The Company has ane reportable segment, “Community Banking.” All of the Company’s activities are interrelated, and each activity
is dependent and assessed based on how each of the activities of the Company supports the others. For example, commercial lending is
dependent upon the ability of the Bank to fund itself with retail deposits and other borrowings and to manage interest rate and credit risk.
This situation is also similar for consumer and residential mortgage lending. Accordingly, all significant operating decisions are based upon

analysis of the Company as one operating segment or unit.

General information required by SFAS No. 131 is disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes.
The Company operates only in the U.S. domestic market, primarily the counties of Westchester and Bronx, New York. For the years ended

December 31,2002, 2001 and 2000, there is no customer that accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s revenue.
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12 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial lnstrumenfs," requires the disclosure of the estimated fair value of certain
financial instruments. These estimated fair values as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 have been determined using available market infor-
mation and appropriate valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment is required to interpret market data to develop estimates of fair
value. The estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use

of alternative market assumptions and estimation methodologies could have had a material effect on these estimates of fair value.

December 31
2002 2001
Carrying Estimated’ Carrying Estimated

(in millions) Amount Fair Yalue Amount Fair Value
Assets:
Financial assets for which carrying value approximates fair value $ 79.6 $ 79.6 $108.1 $108.1
Securities, FHLB stock and accrued interest 758.7 758.7 640.1 640.1
Loans and accrued interest 656.8 660.9 611.1 614.1
Interest Rate Floor Contracts ' 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8
Liabilities: .
Deposits with no stated maturity and accrued interest 862.3 862.3 655.8 655.8
Time deposits and accrued interest 166.0 164.5 2341 233.0
Securities sold under repurchase agreements and other short-term borrowings

and accrued interest 132.3 139.3 143.8 143.8
Other borrowings and accrued interest 1892.3 176.0 210.3 208.2

Financial liabilities for which carrying value approximates fair value — - — —

The estimated fair value of the indicated items was determined as follows:

Financial assets for which carrying value approximates fair value — The estimated fair value approximates carrying amount because of
the immediate availability of these funds or based on the short maturities and current rates for similar deposits. Cash and due from banks as

well as Federal funds sold are reported in this line item.

Securities, FHLB stock and accrued interest — The fair value was estimated based on quoted market prices or dealer quotations.

FHLB stock and accrued interest are stated at their carrying amounts.

Loans and accrued interest — The fair value of loans was estimated by discounting projected cash flows at the reporting date using
current rates for similar loans, reduced by specific and general loan loss allowances. Additionally, under SFAS No. 114, ali loans considered
impaired are reported at either the fair value of collateral or present value of expected future cash flows. Accrued interest is stated at its

carrying amount.

Deposits with no stated maturity and accrued interest — The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity and accrued

interest, as applicable, are considered to be equal to their carrying amounts.

Time deposits and accrued interest — The fair value of time deposits has been estimated by discounting projected cash flows at the

reporting date using current rates for similar deposits. Accrued interest is stated at its carrying amount.

Securities sold under repurchase agreements and other short-term borrowings and accrued interest — The estimated fair value of
these instruments approximate carrying amount because of their short maturities and variable rates. Accrued interest is stated at its

carrying amount.

Other borrowings and accrued interest — The fair value of callable FHLB advances was estimated by discounting projected cash flows

at the reporting date using the rate applicable to the projected call date option. Accrued interest is stated at its carrying amount.

Interest rate floor contracts — The fair value was estimated using quoted market prices or dealer quotations.
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13 Condensed Financial Information of Hudson Valley Holding Corp. (Parent Company Only)

Condensed Balance Sheets '
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Dollars in thousands 2002 2001
Assets

Cash ‘ $ 249 $ 444
Investment in subsidiary ‘ : 136,224 112,625
Equity securities 228 896
Total Assets $137,471 $113,965
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity . -

Other liabilities $664 $623
Stockholders’ equity : 136,807 113,342
Total Liabilities and Stockhdlders’ Equity $137,471 $113,965

Condensed Statements of Income
For the years ended December 31,2002, 2001 and 2000

Dollars in thousands : 2002 2001 2000
Dividends from the Bank $ 6,406 $ 5,058 $ 3,926
Dividends from equity securities 38 56 29
Other income 1 — 25
Operating expenses 200 291 375
Income before equity in undistributed earnings in the Bank 6,245 4,823 3,605
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Bank : 15,339 14,058 12,553
Net Income $ 21,584 $18,881 $16,158

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31,2002, 2001 and 2000 -
Dollars in thousands 2002 2001 2000

Operating Activities:

Net income $21,584 $18,881 $16,158
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Bank (15,339) (14,058) (12,553)
Increase in other liabilities 41 174 83
(Increase) decrease in other assets — — 26
Other changes, net —_ —_ ) 2
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,286 4,997 3,716
Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sales of equity securities 3 — 275
Purchase of equity securities (100) (21) (23)
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (97) (21) 252
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and sale of treasury stock 3,302 3,430 2,367
Purchase of treasury stock (1,249) (1,819) (1,436)
Cash dividends paid {7,737) (6,351) (5,211)
Net cash used in financing activities (6,384) (4,740) (4,280)
Increase (decrease) in Cash and Due from Banks {195) 236 (312)
Cash and due from banks, beginning of year ' 444 208 520
Cash and due from banks, end of year $ 249 $ 444 $ 208

56




Management’s Report to the Stockholders

January 27, 2003
To the Stockholders of Hudson Valley Holding Corp.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The management of Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and its'subsidiary, Hudson Valley Bank, {collectively the “Company”}, is responsible for the
preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of its published consolidated financial statements and alf other information presented in this Annual
Report. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and, as such, include amounts based on informed judgments and estimates made by management.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by an independent accounting firm, which was given unrestricted access to all financial
records and related data, including minutes of all meetings of the stockholders, the Board of Directors and committees of the Board of Directors.
Management believes all representations made to the independent auditors during their audit were valid and appropriate.

" Internal Control
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, including safeguarding of assets,
for financial presentations in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and, for Hudson Valley
Bank, in conformity with the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income
(Call Report Instructions). The internal controf contains monitoring mechanisms, and actions are taken to correct deficiencies identified.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of internal control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding
of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal control can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation.
Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may vary over time.

Management assessed the Company's internal control over financial reporting, including safeguarding of assets, for financial presentations in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and, for Hudson Valley Bank, in conformity with the

Call Report Instructions as of December 31, 2002. This assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting,
including safeguarding of assets, established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management believes that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting, including safeguarding of assets, presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and, for Hudson Valley Bank, in conformity with the Call Report Instructions, as of December 31, 2002.

Audit Committee :

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised entirely of outside directors who are independent of the Company's management.
The Audit Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board of Directors the selection of independent auditors. The Audit Committee
meets periodically with management, the independent auditors, and the internal auditors to ensure that they are carrying out their responsibilities.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing an oversight role by reviewing.and monitoring the financial, accounting and auditing proce-
dures of the Company in addition to reviewing the Company’s consolidated financial reports. The independent auditors and the internal auditors
have full and free access to the Audit Committee, with or without the presence of management, to discuss the adequacy of internal control over
financial reporting and any other matters which they believe should be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee.

Compliance With Laws and Regulations

Management is also responsible for ensuring compliance with the federal laws and regulations concerning loans to insiders and the federal and
state laws and regulations concerning dividend restrictions, both of which are designated by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
as safety and soundness laws and regulations.

Management assessed Hudson Valley Bank’s compliance with the designated safety and soundness laws and regulations and has maintajned
records of its determinations and assessments as required by the FDIC. Based on this assessment, management believes that Hudson Valley Bank
has complied, in all material respects, with the designated safety and soundness laws and regulations for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Jie B2ty

James . Landy Stephen R. Brown
President & Senior Executive Vice President,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer & Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Accountants’ Report

Deloitie
& Touche

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

Hudson Valley Holding Corp.

We have examined management's assertion, included.in the accompanying Management’s Report to Stockholders, that Hudson Valley Holding
Corp. and its subsidiary, Hudson Valley Bank (callectively the "Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting, including
safeguarding of assets, presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and, for Hudson
Valley Bank, in conformity with the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Councif Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and
Income as of December 31, 2002 based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO report). Management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control

over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assertion based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and, accordingly, included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, testing, and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our

examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Because of inherent limitations in any internal control, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal control may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assertion that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting, including safeguarding
of assets, presented in corfformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and, for Hudson Valley Bank,
in conformity with the Federal Financial institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and income as of

December 31, 2002, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in the COSO report.
Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
January 27,2003
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ITEM I — BUSINESS

General

Hudson Valley Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a New York corporation founded in 1982, The
Company is registered as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956.

The Company provides financial services through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hudson Valley Bank (the
“Bank”), a New York chartered commercial bank established in 1972. The Bank is the largest independent
bank headquartered in Westchester County, New York. The Bank has 14 branch offices in Westchester
County, New York, 2 in Bronx County, New York and 1 in Manhattan, New York. The Bank has received all
necessary regulatory approval to open one new branch office at 40 Church Street, White Plains, New York.
The Company and the Bank derive substantially all of their revenue and income from providing banking and
related services to small and medium-sized businesses, professionals, municipalities, not-for-profit organiza-
tions and individuals located in Westchester County, the Bronx and, beginning in 2002, in Manhattan.

Our principal executive offices are located at 21 Scarsdale Road, Yonkers, New York 10707.

The Bank’s principal customers are small and medium-sized businesses, professionals, municipalities,
not-for-profit organizations and individuals, located in Westchester County and Bronx County, New York and,
to an increasing extent, Manhattan, New York. The Bank’s strategy is to operate as a community-oriented
banking institution dedicated to providing personalized service to customers and focusing on products and
services for selected segments of the market. The Bank believes that its ability to attract and retain customers
is due primarily to its focused approach to its markets, its personalized and professional services, its product
offerings, its experienced staff, its knowledge of its local markets and its ability to provide responsive solutions
to customer needs. The Bank provides these products and services to a diverse range of customers and does not
rely on a single large depositor for a significant percentage of deposits. The Bank anticipates that it will
continue to open new branch offices in Westchester County and in New York City.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements relate to future events or
our future financial performance. We have attempted to identify forward-looking statements by terminology
including “anticipates,” “believes,” “can,” “continue,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,”
“plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “should” or “will” or the negative of these terms or other comparable
terminology. These statements are only predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors, that may cause our or the banking industry’s actual results, levels of activity, performance or
achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected
in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity,
performance or achievements. For a discussion of some factors that could adversely effect our future
performance, see “Risk Factors” and “Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations Forward-Looking Statements.”
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Subsidiaries of the Bank

In 1987, the Bank formed a wholly-owned subsidiary, Hudson Valley Mortgage Corp., for the purpose of
providing mortgage banking services primarily in Westchester County and surrounding areas. This subsidiary
discontinued operations in 1993, sold its assets and transferred its employees to the Bank. In late 2000, this
subsidiary was renamed HVB Leasing Corp. It commenced operations in early 2001, originating lease
financing transactions on behalf of the Bank.




In 1991, the Bank formed a wholly-owned subsidiary, Hudson Valley Investment Corp., a Delaware
corporation, primarily for the purpose of acquiring and managing a portfolio of investment securities, some of
which were previously owned by the Bank.

In 1993, the Bank formed a wholly-owned subsidiary, Sprain Brook Realty Corp., primarily for the
purpose of holding property obtained by the Bank through foreclosure in its normal course of business.

In 1997, the Bank formed a subsidiary (of which the Bank owns more than 99 percent of the voting
stock), Grassy Sprain Real Estate Holdings, Inc., a real estate investment trust, primarily for the purpose of
acquiring and managing a portfolio of mortgage-backed securities, loans collateralized by real estate and other
investment securities previously owned by the Bank.

In 2002, the Bank formed two wholly-owned subsidiaries. HVB Realty Corp. owns and manages five
branch locations in Yonkers, New York and HVB Employment Corp. which leases certain branch staff to the
Bank.

The Company has no separate operations or revenues apart from the Bank and its subsidiaries. The Bank
and its subsidiaries are referred to collectively as the “Bank”.

Employees

At December 31, 2002, we employed 253 full-time employees and 35 part-time employees. We provide a
variety of benefit plans, including group life, health, dental, disability, retirement and stock option plans. We
consider our employee relations to be satisfactory.

Our Market Area

Westchester County is a suburban county located in the northern sector of the New York metropolitan
area. It has a large and varied economic base containing many corporate headquarters, research facilities,
manufacturing firms as well as well-developed trade and service sectors. The median household income, based
on 2000 census data, was $60,882. The County’s 1999 per capita income of $36,726 placed Westchester
County sixth highest among the nation’s counties. In 2002, the County’s unemployment rate was 4.1 percent,
as compared to New York State at 6.1 percent and the United States at 5.8 percent. The County has over
40,000 small and medium sized businesses, which form a large portion of the Bank’s current and potential
customer base.

Bronx County is one of the five boroughs of New York City and borders on Westchester County. While it
also has a large and varied economic base, the median household income in the Bronx is much lower than
Westchester County. The median household income, based on 2000 census data was $27,547, while the
County’s 1998 per capita personal income was $19,841. The northern part of Bronx County has a base of
professionals and small and medium size businesses. The Company believes that this potential business
customer base offers growth opportunities similar to those the Bank has developed in Westchester County,
despite the differing demographic profiles of the two counties as a whole. The Bank’s second branch office in
the Bronx opened during the first quarter of 2002.

Manhattan is one of the five boroughs of New York City. It has a large and varied economic base. The
median household income in Manhattan, based on 2000 census data, was $72,194, while Manhattan’s 1998 per
capita personal income was $35,201. Sections of Manhattan have a well-developed base of professionals and
small and medium sized businesses. The Company believes that this potential customer base offers growth
opportunities similar to those the Bank has developed in Westchester County and Bronx County. The Bank
opened its first branch office in Manhattan in the second quarter of 2002.

Competition

The banking and financial services business in New York generally, and in Westchester and Bronx
Counties specifically, is highly competitive. There are approximately 19 commercial banks with branch
banking offices in our Westchester and Bronx market area and additional commercial banks have branches in
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Manhattan. In addition, a number of other depository institutions compete in our market area including
savings banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions and brokerage houses. The Westchester and Bronx
branches of the Bank compete with local offices of large New York City commercial banks due to their
proximity to New York City. Other financial institutions, such as mutual funds, finance companies, factoring
companies, mortgage bankers and insurance companies, also compete with the Bank for both loans and
deposits. The Bank is smaller in size than most of its competitors. In addition, many non-bank competitors are
not subject to the same extensive federal regulations that govern bank holding companies and federally insured
barks.

Competition for depositors’ funds and for credit-worthy loan customers is intense. A number of larger
banks are increasing their efforts to serve smaller commercial borrowers. Competition among financial
institutions is based upon interest rates and other credit and service charges, the quality of service provided,
the convenience of banking facilities, the products offered and, in the case of larger commercial borrowers,
relative lending limits.

Federal legislation permits adequately capitalized bank holding companies to expand across state lines to
offer banking services. In light of this, it is possible for large organizations to enter many new markets,
including our market area. Many of these competitors, by virtue of their size and resources, may enjoy
efficiencies and competitive advantages over the Bank in pricing, delivery and marketing of their products and
services. The passage of the Financial Services Modernization Act of 1999 (the “Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act”)
may also increase the number of powerful competitors in our market by allowing other financial institutions to
form or acquire banking subsidiaries.

In response to competition, we have focused our attention on customer service and on addressing the
needs of small businesses, professionals and not-for-profit organizations located in the communities in which
we operate. We emphasize community relations and relationship banking. We believe that, despite the
continued growth of large institutions and the potential for large out-of-area banking and financial institutions
to enter our market area, there will continue to be opportunities for efficiently-operated, service-oriented, well-
capitalized, community-based banking organizations to grow by serving customers that are not served well by
larger institutions or do not wish to bank with such large institutions.

The Company’s strategy is to increase earnings through moderate growth within its existing market. The
Bank’s primary market area, Westchester County, Bronx County and Manhattan, has a high concentration of
the types of customers that the Bank desires to serve. The Bank expects to continue to expand by opening new
full service banking facilities, by expanding loan originations in its market area, by enhancing and expanding
computerized and telephonic products and through strategic alliances and contractual relationships.

During the past five years, the Company has focused on maintaining existing customer relationships and
adding new relationships by providing products and services that meet these customers’ needs. The focus of
the Bank’s products and services continues to be small and medium size businesses, professionals, not-for-
profit organizations and municipalities. The Bank has expanded its market from Westchester County to
include sections of Bronx County and Manhattan. The Bank has opened five new facilities during the past five
years, one in New Rochelle, Westchester County, one in Yonkers, Westchester County, one in Manhattan,
New York and two in Bronx County, New York and anticipates opening one additional facility during 2003.
The Bank expects to continue to open additional facilities in the future. The Bank has invested in technology
based products and services to meet customer needs. In addition, the Bank has expanded products and
services, particularly in its lending programs, and its offering of investment management and trust services. As
a result, the Bank has approximately doubled its total assets during this five year period.




Lending

The Bank engages in a variety of lending activities which are primarily categorized as real estate,
commercial and industrial, individual and lease financing. At December 31, 2002, gross loans totaled
$655.4 million. Gross loans were comprised of the following loan types:

Real estate 69.0%
Commercial and industrial 27.4
Individuals 2.2
Lease financing 1.4

00.0%

At December 31, 2002, the Bank’s unsecured lending limit to one borrower under applicable regulations
was approximately $20.1 million.

In managing its loan portfolio, the Bank focuses on:
(i) the application of its established underwriting criteria,

(i1) the establishment of individual lending authorities well below the Bank’s legal lending
authority,

(iii) the involvement by senior management and the Board of Directors in the loan approval process
for designated categories, types or amounts of loans,

(iv) an awareness of concentration by industry or collateral, and
(v) the monitoring of loans for timely payment and to seek to identify potential problem loans.

The Bank utilizes its credit department to assess acceptable and unacceptable credit risks based upon the
Bank’s established underwriting criteria. The Bank utilizes its loan officers, branch managers and credit
department to identify changes in a borrower’s financial condition that may affect the borrower’s ability to
perform in accordance with loan terms. Lending policies and procedures place an emphasis on assessing a
borrower’s income flow as well as collateral values. Further, the Bank utilizes systems and analysis which assist
in monitoring loan delinquencies. The Bank utilizes its loan officers, loan collection department and legal
counsel in collection efforts on past due loans. Additional collateral or guarantees may be requested where
delinquencies remain unresolved.

An independent loan review department reviews loans in the Bank’s portfolio and assigns a risk grading to
each reviewed loan. Loans are reviewed based upon the type of loan, the collateral for the loan, the amount of
the loan and any other pertinent information. The loan review department reports directly to the Board of
Directors.

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Loan
Portfolio” for further information related to the Company’s loan portfolio and lending activities.

Deposits

The Bank offers deposit products ranging in maturity from demand-type accounts to certificates of
deposit with maturities of up to 5 years. The Bank’s deposits are generally derived from customers within its
primary marketplace. The Bank solicits only certain types of deposits from outside its market area, primarily
from certain professionals and government agencies.

The Bank sets its deposit rates to remain generally competitive with other financial institutions in its
market, although the Bank does not generally seek to match the highest rates paid by competing institutions.
The Bank has established a process to review interest rates on all deposit products and, based upon this
process, updates its deposit rates weekly. The Company’s Asset/Liability Management Policy and its
Liquidity Policy set guidelines to manage overall interest rate risk and liquidity. These guidelines can affect
the rates paid on deposits. Deposit rates are reviewed under these policies periodically since deposits are the
Bank’s primary source of liquidity.




The Bank offers deposit pick up services for certain business customers. The Bank has 8 automated teller
machines, or ATMs, at various locations, which generate activity fees based on use by other banks’ customers.

For more information regarding the Bank’s deposits, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Deposits.”

Portfolio Management Services

The Bank provides portfolio management services to certain pension and retirement accounts and
executes securities transactions on behalf of certain customers by utilizing administrative support, investment
products and methodologies provided to the Bank through an alliance with a third party. The Bank terminated
its relationship with this third party, an unaffiliated commercial bank, during the first quarter of 2002 and
formed a relationship with an investment advisor to provide similar services to the Bank. The Bank believes
the new relationship will improve the portfolio management services offered. The Bank will continue to
periodically explore the possibility of developing relationships with others that provide similar investment
management services, and the Bank believes that a number of alternative providers of these services exist. The
Bank also provides a software application designed to meet specific administrative needs of bankruptcy
trustees through a marketing and licensing agreement with the application vendor. The Bank’s licensing
agreement expired in February 2003. In February 2003, the Bank entered into a new software licensing
agreement with another vendor. While the Bank is interested in developing new customer relationships with
bankruptcy trustees by offering them access to software, the Bank does not believe that its relationship with
this or any other application vendor is material to its business. In addition, the Bank has participated in loans
originated by various other financial institutions within the normal course of business and within standard
industry practices.

Supervision and Regulation

Banks and bank holding companies are extensively regulated under both federal and state law. We have
set forth below brief summaries of various aspects of supervision and regulation which do not purport to be
complete and which are qualified in their entirety by reference to applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Regulations to which the Company is subject

As a bank holding company, the Company is regulated by and subject to the supervision of the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “FRB™) and is required to file with the FRB an annual report
and such other information as may be required. The FRB has the authority to conduct examinations of the
Company as well.

The Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the “BHC Act”) limits the types of companies which we may
acquire or organize and the activities in which they may engage. In general, a bank holding company and its
subsidiaries are prohibited from engaging in or acquiring control of any company engaged in non-banking
activities unless such activities are so closely related to banking or managing and controlling banks as to be a
proper incident thereto. Activities determined by the FRB to be so closely related to banking within the
meaning of the BHC Act include operating a mortgage company, finance company, credit card company,
factoring company, trust company or savings association; performing certain data processing operations;
providing limited securities brokerage services; acting as an investment or financial advisor; acting as an
insurance agent for certain types of credit-related insurance; leasing personal property on a full-payout, non-
operating basis; providing tax planning and preparation service; operating a collection agency; and providing
certain courier services. The FRB also has determined that certain other activities, including real estate
brokerage and syndication, land development, property management and underwriting of life insurance
unrelated to credit transactions, are not closely related to banking and therefore are not proper activities for a
bank holding company.

The BHC Act requires every bank holding company to obtain the prior approval of the FRB before
acquiring substantially all the assets of, or direct or indirect ownership or control of more than five percent of
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the voting shares of, any bank. Subject to certain limitations and restrictions, a bank holding company, with
the prior approval of the FRB, may acquire an out-of-state bank.

In November 1999, Congress amended certain provisions of the BHC Act through passage of the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. Under this legislation, a bank holding company may elect to become a “financial
holding company’ and thereby engage in a broader range of activities than would be permissible for traditional
bank holding companies. In order to qualify for the election, all of the depository institution subsidiaries of the
bank holding company must be well capitalized and well managed, as defined under FRB regulations, and ail
such subsidiaries must have achieved a rating of “satisfactory” or better with respect to meeting community
credit needs. Pursuant to the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, financial holding companies are permitted to engage
in activities that are “financial in nature” or incidental or complementary thereto, as determined by the FRB.
The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act identifies several activities as “financial in nature”, including, among others,
insurance underwriting and agency activities, investment advisory services, merchant banking and underwrit-
ing, and dealing in or making a market in securities.

The Company believes it would meet the regulatory criteria that would enable it to elect to become a
financial holding company. The Company has not yet determined whether to make such an election.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act also makes it possible for entities engaged in providing various other
financial services to form financial holding companies and form or acquire banks. Accordingly, the Gramm-
Leach-Bliley Act makes it possible for a variety of financial services firms to offer products and services
comparable to the products and services offered by the Bank.

There are various statutory and regulatory limitations regarding the extent to which present and future
banking subsidiaries of the Company can finance or otherwise transfer funds to the Company or its non-
banking subsidiaries, whether in the form of loans, extensions of credit, investments or asset purchases,
including regulatory limitation on the payment of dividends directly or indirectly to the Company from the
Bank. Federal and state bank regulatory agencies also have the authority to limit further the Bank’s payment
of dividends based on such factors as the maintenance of adequate capital for such subsidiary bank, which
could reduce the amount of dividends otherwise payable. Under applicable banking statutes, at December 31,
2002, the Bank could have declared additional dividends of approximately $37.3 million to the Company
without prior regulatory approval.

Under the policy of the FRB, the Company is expected to act as a source of financial strength to the Bank
and to commit resources to support the Bank in circumstances where we might not do so absent such policy.
In addition, any subordinated loans by the Company to the Bank would also be subordinate in right of
payment to depeositors and obligations to general creditors of such subsidiary banks. The Company currently
has no loans to the Bank.

The FRB has established capital adequacy guidelines for bank holding companies that are similar to the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) capital requirements for the Bank described below. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Cperations — Capital
Resources” and Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2002, our Tier 1 and
Total risk-based capital ratios were 17.0 percent and 18.3 percent, respectively, and our leverage capital ratio
was 8.3 percent. All ratios exceed the requirements under these regulations and classify us as “well
capitalized.”

Regulations to which the Bank is subject

The Bank is organized under the Banking Law of the State of New York. Its operations are subject to
federal and state laws applicable to commercial banks and to extensive regulation, supervision and examina-
tion by the New York Superintendent of Banks and the Banking Board of the State of New York, as well as by
the FDIC, as its primary federal regulator and insurer of deposits. While the Bank is not a member of the
Federal Reserve System, it is subject to certain regulations of the FRB. In addition to banking laws,
regulations and regulatory agencies, the Bank is subject to various other laws, regulations and regulatory
agencies, all of which directly or indirectly affect the Bank’s operations. The New York Superintendent of
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Banks and the FDIC examine the affairs of the Bank for the purpose of determining its financial condition and
compliance with laws and regulations.

The New York Superintendent of Banks and the FDIC have significant discretion in connection with
their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination policies, including policies with respect to the
classification of assets and the establishment of adequate loan loss reserves for regulatory purposes. Any
change in such policies whether by the FDIC, Congress, the New York Superintendent of Banks or the New
York Legislature could have a material adverse impact on the Bank.

Federal laws and regulations also limit, with certain exceptions, the ability of state banks to engage in
activities or make equity investments that are not permissible for national banks. The Company does not
expect such provisions to have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Bank.

Capital Standards

The FDIC has adopted risk-based capital guidelines to which FDIC-insured, state-chartered banks that
are not members of the Federal Reserve System, such as the Bank, are subject. The guidelines establish a
systematic analytical framework that makes regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to the differences
in risk profiles among banking organizations. Banks are required to maintain minimum levels of capital based
upon their total assets and total “risk-weighted assets.” For purposes of these requirements, capital is
comprised of both Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital. Tier 1 capital consists primarily of common stock and retained
earnings. Tier 2 capital consists primarily of loan loss reserves, subordinated debt, and convertible securities.
In determining total capital, the amount of Tier 2 capital may not exceed the amount of Tier 1 capital. A
bank’s total “risk-based assets” are determined by assigning the bank’s assets and off-balance sheet items
(e.g., letters of credit) to one of four risk categories based upon their relative credit risks. The greater the risk
associated with an asset, the greater the amount of such asset that will be subject to capital requirements.
Banks must satisfy the following three minimum capital standards:

(1) Tier I capital in an amount equal to between 4 percent and 5 percent of total assets (the
“leverage ratio”);

(2) Tier 1 capital in an amount equal to 4 percent of risk-weighted assets; and
(3) total Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital in an amount equal to 8 percent of risk-weighted assets.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA”), defines specific
capital categories based upon an institution’s capital ratios. The capital categories, in declining order, are:
(i) well capitalized; (ii) adequately capitalized; (iii) undercapitalized; (iv) significantly undercapitalized; and
(v) critically undercapitalized. Under FDICIA and the FDIC’s prompt corrective action rules, the FDIC may
take any one or more of the following actions against an undercapitalized bank: restrict dividends and
management fees, restrict asset growth and prohibit new acquisitions, new branches or new lines of business
without prior FDIC approval. If a bank is significantly undercapitalized, the FDIC may also require the bank
to raise capital, restrict interest rates a bank may pay on deposits, require a reduction in assets, restrict any
activities that might cause risk to the bank, require improved management, prohibit the acceptance of deposits
from correspondent banks and restrict compensation to any senior executive officer. When a bank becomes
critically undercapitalized, (i.e., the ratio of tangible equity to total assets is equal to or less than 2 percent),
the FDIC must, within 90 days thereafter, appoint a receiver for the bank or take such action as the FDIC
determines would better achieve the purposes of the law. Even where such other action is taken, the FDIC
generally must appoint a receiver for a bank if the bank remains critically undercapitalized during the calendar
quarter beginning 270 days after the date on which the bank became critically undercapitalized.

To be considered “adequately capitalized,” an institution must generally have a leverage ratio of at least
4 percent, a Tier | capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of at least 4 percent and total Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital
to risk-weighted assets ratio of at least 8 percent. To be categorized as “well capitalized,” the Bank must
maintain 2 minimum total risk-based capital ratio of 10 percent, a Tier | risk-based capital ratio of at least
6 percent and a Tier 1 leverage ratio of at least 5 percent. As of December 31, 2002, the most recent
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notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. There are no conditions that we believe have changed the Bank’s category.

See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Safety and Soundness Standards

Federal law requires each federal banking agency to prescribe for depository institutions under its
jurisdiction standards relating to, among other things: internal controls; information systems and audit
systems; loan documentation; credit underwriting; interest rate risk exposure; asset growth; compensation; fees
and benefits; and such other operational and managerial standards as the agency deems appropriate. The
federal banking agencies adopted final regulations and Interagency Guidelines Establishing Standards for
Safety and Soundness (the “Guidelines”) to implement these safety and soundness standards. The Guidelines
set forth the safety and soundness standards that the federal banking agencies use to identify and address
problems at insured depository institutions before capital becomes impaired. The Guidelines address internal
controls and information systems; internal audit system; credit underwriting; loan documentation; interest rate
risk exposure; asset quality; earnings and compensation; fees and benefits. If the appropriate federal banking
agency determines that an institution fails to meet any standard prescribed by the Guidelines, the agency may
require the institution to submit to the agency an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard set
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. The final regulations establish deadlines for submission and review of
such safety and soundness compliance plans.

The federal banking agencies also have adopted final regulations for real estate lending prescribing
uniform guidelines for real estate lending. The regulations require insured depository institutions to adopt
written policies establishing standards, consistent with such guidelines, for extensions of credit secured by real
estate. The policies must address loan portfolio management, underwriting standards and loan to value limits
that do not exceed the supervisory limits prescribed by the regulations.

Premiums for Deposit Insurance

The FDIC has implemented a risk-based assessment system, under which an institution’s deposit
insurance premium assessment is based on the probability that the deposit insurance fund will incur a loss with
respect to the institution, the likely amount of any such loss, and the revenue needs of the deposit insurance
fund.

Under this risk-based assessment system, banks are categorized into one of three capital categories (well
capitalized, adequately capitalized, and undercapitalized) and one of three categories based on supervisory
evaluations by its primary federal regulator (in the Bank’s case, the FDIC). The three supervisory categories
are: financially sound with only a few minor weaknesses (Group A), demonstrates weaknesses that could
result in significant deterioration (Group B), and poses a substantial probability of loss (Group C). The
capital ratios used by the FDIC to define well-capitalized, adequately capitalized and undercapitalized are the
same in the FDIC’s prompt corrective action regulations. The Bank is currently considered a “Well
Capitalized Group A” institution and, therefore, is not subject to any quarterly FDIC Bank Insurance Fund
(“BIF”) assessments. This could change in the future based on the capitalization of the BIF.

FDIC insurance of deposits may be terminated by the FDIC, after notice and hearing, upon a finding by
the FDIC that the insured institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, or is in an unsafe or unsound
condition to continue operations, or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule or order of, or conditions
imposed by, the FDIC. Neither the Company nor the Bank is aware of any practice, condition or violation that
might lead to termination of deposit insurance.

Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Developments

Under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”), as implemented by FDIC regulations, the Bank has
a continuing and affirmative obligation consistent with its safe and sound operation to help meet the credit
needs of its entire community, including low and moderate income neighborhoods. The CRA does not
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prescribe specific lending requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does it limit an institution’s
discretion to develop the types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its particular
community, consistent with the CRA. The CRA requires the FDIC, in connection with its examination of a
savings institution, to assess the institution’s record of meeting the credit needs of its community and to take
such record into account in its evaluation of certain applications by such institution. The Financial Institutions
Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act (FIRREA) amended the CRA to require public disclosure of an
institution’s CRA rating and require the FDIC to provide a written evaluation of an institution’s CRA
performance utilizing a four-tiered descriptive rating system. Institutions are evaluated and rated by the FDIC
as “Outstanding”, “Satisfactory”, “Needs to Improve” or “Substantial Non Compliance.” Failure to receive
at least a “Satisfactory” rating may inhibit an institution from undertaking certain activities, including
acquisitions of other financial institutions, which require regulatory approval based, in part, on CRA
Compliance considerations. As of its last CRA examination in December 2001, the Bank received a rating of
“Satisfactory.”

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act

The present bank regulatory scheme is undergoing significant change, both as it affects the banking
industry itself and as it affects competition between banks and non-banking financial institutions. There has
been a significant regulatory change in the bank merger and acquisition area, in the products and services
banks can offer, and in the non-banking activities in which bank holding companies may engage. Under the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act enacted by Congress on November 12, 1999, banks and bank holding companies
may now affiliate with insurance and securities companies. In part as a result of these changes, banks are now
actively competing with other types of non-depository institutions, such as money market funds, brokerage
firms, insurance companies and other financial services enterprises. To date these changes in the regulatory
scheme have had little impact on the Bank.

Governmental Monetary Policy

The Company’s and Bank’s business and earnings depend in large part on differences in interest rates.
One of the most significant factors affecting the Company’s and the Bank’s earnings is the difference between
(1) the interest rates paid by the Bank on its deposits and its other borrowings (liabilities) and (2) the interest
rates received by the Bank on loans made to its customers and securities held in its investment portfolio
{assets). The value of and yield on its assets and the rates paid on its liabilities are sensitive to changes in
prevailing market rates of interest. Therefore, the earnings and growth of the Company and the Bank will be
influenced by general economic conditions, the monetary and fiscal policies of the federal government,
including the Federal Reserve System, whose function is to regulate the national supply of bank credit in order
to influence inflation and overall economic growth. Its policies are used in varying combinations to influence
overall growth of bank loans, investments and deposits and may also affect interest rates charged on loans,
earned on investments or paid for deposits. ‘

In view of changing conditions in the national and local economies, no prediction can be made by the
Company as to possible future changes in interest rates, deposit levels, loan demand, or availability of
investment securities and the resulting effect on the business or earnings of the Company and the Bank.

Risk Factors

Our markets are intensely competitive, and our principal competitors are larger than us.

We face significant competition both in making loans and in attracting deposits. This competition is based
on, among other things, interest rates and other credit and service charges, the quality of services rendered, the
convenience of the banking facilities, the range and type of products offered and the relative lending limits in
the case of loans to larger commercial borrowers. The Westchester County, Bronx County, and Manhattan
area of New York has a very high density of financial institutions, many of which are branches of institutions
which are significantly larger than us and have greater financial resources and higher lending limits. Many of
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these institutions.offer services that we do not or cannot provide. Nearly ail such institutions compete with us
to varying degrees.

Our competition for loans comes principally from commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan
associations, credit unions, mortgage banking companies, insurance companies and other financial service
companies. Our most direct competition for deposits has historically come from commercial banks, savings
banks, savings and loan associations, and money market funds and other securities funds offered by brokerage
firms and other similar financial institutions. We face additional competition for deposits from non-depository
competitors such as the mutual fund industry, securities and brokerage firms, and insurance companies.

Competition may increase in the future as a result of regulatory change in the financial services industry.
We expect to face increased competitive pressure from non-banking sources as a result of the Gramm-Leach-
Bliley Act, which permits banks and bank holding companies to affiliate more easily with other financial
service institutions, such as insurance companies and brokerage firms.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and could be adversely affected by governmental monetary policy
or regulatory change.

The Company, as a bank holding company, and the Bank are subject to regulation by several government
agencies, including the FRB, the FDIC, the New York Superintendent of Banks, and the Banking Board of
the State of New York. Changes in governmental economic and monetary policy not only can affect the ability
of the Bank to attract deposits and make loans, but can also affect the demand for business and personal
lending and for real estate mortgages. ‘

Government regulations affect virtually all areas of our operations, including our range of permissible
activities, products and services, the geographic locations in which our services can be offered, the amount of
capital required to be maintained to support operations, the right to pay dividends and the amount which the
Bank can pay to obtain deposits. The passage of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which permits banks and bank
holding companies to affiliate more easily with other financial service firms, could significantly change the
nature of the financial services market over the next few years. There can be no assurance that we will be able
to adapt successfully to changes initiated by this or other governmental or regulatory action.

QCur income is sensitive to changes in interest rates.

The Bank’s profitability, like that of most banking institutions, depends to a large extent upon its net interest
income. Net interest income is the difference between interest income received on interest-earning assets,
including loans and securities, and the interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities, including deposits and
borrowings. Accordingly, the Bank’s results of operations and financial condition depend largely on movements
in market interest rates and its ability to manage its assets and liabilities in response to such movements.

The Bank tries to manage its interest rate risk exposure by closely monitoring its assets and liabilities in
an effort to reduce the effects of changes in interest rates primarily by altering the mix and maturity of the
Bank’s loans, investments and funding sources.

Currently, the Bank’s income would be minimally changed due to changes in the interest rate
environment. However, the current prolonged low rate environment has had an adverse effect on the Bank’s
net interest income by decreasing the spread between the rates earned on assets and paid on liabilities.
Changes in interest rates also affect the volume of loans originated by the Bank, as well as the value of its loans
and other interest-earning assets, including investment securities.

In addition, changes in interest rates may result in an increase in higher cost deposit products within the
Bank’s existing portfolio, as well as a flow of funds away from bank accounts into direct investments (such as
U.S. Government and corporate securities, and other investment instruments such as mutual funds) to the
extent that the Bank does not pay competitive rates of interest. “See Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk.”
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We may incur liabilities under federal and state environmental laws with respect to foreclosed properties.

Approximately 80% of the loans held by the Bank as of December 31, 2002 were secured, either on a
primary or secondary basis, by real estate. Approximately half of these loans were commercial real estate
loans, with most of the remainder being for single or multi-family residences. The Bank currently does not own
any property acquired on foreclosure. However, the Bank has in the past and may in the future acquire
properties through foreclosure on loans in default. Under federal and state environmental laws, the Bank could
face liability for some or all of the costs of removing hazardous substances, contaminants or pollutants from
properties acquired by the Bank on foreclosure. While other persons might be primarily liable, such persons
might not be financially solvent or able to bear the full cost of the clean up. It is also possible that a lender that
has not foreclosed on property but has exercised unusual influence over the borrower’s activities may be
required to bear a portion of the clean up costs under federal or state environmental laws.

A downturn in the economy in our market area would adversely affect our loan portfolio and our growth
potential.

Our lending market area is concentrated in Westchester County, New York and, to a growing but lesser
extent, Bronx County, New York and Manhattan, New York with a primary focus on small to medium-sized
businesses located in this area. Accordingly, the asset quality of our loan portfolio is largely dependent upon
the area’s economy and real estate markets. A downturn in the economy in our primary lending area would
adversely affect our operations and limit our future growth potential.

Technological change may affect our ability to compete.

The banking industry is undergoing rapid technological changes, with frequent introductions of new
technology-driven products and services. In addition to improving customer services, the effective use of
technology increases efficiency and enables financial institutions to reduce costs. Our future success will
depend, in part, on our ability to address the needs of customers by using technology to provide products and
services that will satisfy customer demands, as well as to create additional efficiencies in our operations. Many
of our competitors have substantially greater resources to invest in technological improvements. There can be
no assurance that we will be able to effectively implement new technology-driven products and services or be
successful in marketing such products and services to the public.

In addition, because of the demand for technology-driven products, banks are increasingly contracting
with outside vendors to provide data processing and core banking functions. The use of technology-related
products, services, delivery channels and processes expose a bank to various risks, particularly transaction,
strategic, reputation and compliance risk. There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully
manage the risks associated with our increased dependency on technology.

Our profitability depends on our customers’ ability to repay their loans and our ability to make sound
judgments concerning credit risk.

There are risks inherent in making all loans, including risks with respect to the period of time over which
loans may be repaid, risks resulting from changes in economic conditions, risks inherent in dealing with
individual borrowers, and, in the case of a collateralized loan, risks resulting from uncertainties about the
future value of the collateral. We maintain an allowance for loan losses based on, among other things,
historical experience, an evaluation of economic conditions, and regular reviews of delinquencies and loan
portfolio quality. Our judgment as to the adequacy of the allowance is based upon a number of assumptions
which we believe to be reasonable but which may or may not prove to be correct. Thus, there can be no
assurance that charge-offs in future periods will not exceed the allowance for loan losses or that additional
increases in the allowance for loan losses will not be required. Additions to the allowance for loan losses would
result in a decrease in net income and capital.
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Available Information

The Company’s website address is http://www.hudsonvalleybank.com. The Company does not yet post

its periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on its website, but is investigating
various ways to make the reports available on or through its website. The Company expects that, beginning
sometime in the second quarter of 2003, it will start to make available free of charge on or through its website
its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all
amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with
or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commlssmn The Company provides electronic or paper copies of
its filings free of charge upon request.

ITEM 2 — PROPERTIES

The principal executive offices of the Company and the Bank, including administrative and operating
departments, are located at 21 Scarsdale Road, Yonkers, New York, in premises that are owned by the Bank.
The Bank’s main branch is located at 35 East Grassy Sprain Road, Yonkers, New York, in premises that are
leased by the Bank.

In addition to the main branch, the Bank operates 13 branches in Westchester County, New York. The
following seven branches are owned by the Bank: 37 East Main Street, Elmsford, New York; 61 South
Broadway, Yonkers, New York; 150 Lake Avenue, Yonkers, New York; 865 McLean Avenue, Yonkers,
New York; 512 South Broadway, Yonkers, New York; 21 Scarsdale Road, Yonkers, New York; and 664 Main
Street, Mount Kisco, New York. The following six branches are leased by the Bank: 403 East Sandford
Boulevard, Mount Vernon, New York; 1835 East Main Street, Peekskill, New York; 500 Westchester
Avenue, Port Chester, New York; 233 Marble Avenue, Thornwood, New York; 328 Central Avenue, White
Plains, New York, and Five Huguenot Street, New Rochelle, New York.

In addition to the branches in Westchester County, the Bank operates two branches in Bronx, New York,
one at 3130 East Tremont Avenue and one at 975 Allerton Avenue, both in premises leased by the Bank. The
Bank also operates one branch in Manhattan, New York at 60 East 42nd Street, New York, New York in
premises leased by the Bank.

Of the leased properties, 2 properties, located in Thornwood and Bronx, New York, have lease terms that
expire within the next 2 years, with each lease subject to the Bank’s renewal option. The Bank expects to
exercise its renewal option on the leases of each of these properties. Two properties, located in White Plains
and Yonkers, New York, have leases expiring in 2003, with no additional renewals. The Bank has negotiated
new leases on both properties.

The Bank also operates 8 ATM machines, 6 of which are located in the Bank’s facilities. Two ATMs are
located at different off-site locations — Yonkers General Hospital in Yonkers, New York; and St. Joseph’s
Hospital in Yonkers, New York.

In the opinion of management, the premises, fixtures and equipment used by the Company and the Bank
are adequate and suitable for the conduct of their businesses. All facilities are well maintained and provide
adequate parking.

ITEM 3 — LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the Company and its subsidiaries in the ordinary course
of business. In the opinion of management, after consultation with legal counsel, resolution of each matter is
not expected to have a material effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

ITEM 4 — SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholders of Hudson Valley Holding Corp during the fourth
quarter of 2002.

12



PART I

ITEM 5 — MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHCLDER
MATTERS

The Company’s common stock was held of record as of March 3, 2003 by approximately 737
shareholders. The Company’s common stock trades on a limited and sporadic basis in the over-the-counter
market under the symbol “HUVL”. A very limited and sporadic public trading market has developed. The
Company has historically purchased shares of common stock from shareholders at a price that the Company
believes to be the fair market value at the time. Some of these purchases are made pursuant to Stock
Restriction Agreements which give the Company a right of first refusal if the shareholder wishes to sell his or
her shares. The majority of transactions in the Company’s common stock are sales to the Company or private
transactions. There can be no assurance that the Company will purchase any additional stock in the future.

The table below sets forth the high and the low prices per share at which the Company purchased shares
of its common stock from shareholders in 2002 and 2001. The price per share has been adjusted to reflect the
10 percent stock dividends to shareholders in December 2002 and 2001.

2002 2001
High Low High Low
First Quarter......... ..o it R $36.82 $33.27 $32.03 $27.89
Second Quarter ........ ... 38.18 33.41 32.03 29.14
Third Quarter . .. ... .o 41.82 34.55 37.19 30.16
Fourth Quarter. .. ... ...t 39.09 33.18 35.45 31.41

The foregoing prices were not subject to retail markup, markdown or commission.

In 1998, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a policy of paying quarterly cash dividends to
holders of its common stock. Quarterly cash dividends were paid as follows: In 2002, $0.31 per share to holders
of record on February 4; $0.34 to shareholders of record May 6, August 5 and November 4. In 2001, $0.26 per
share to holders of record on February 5; $0.28 to shareholders of record May 7, August 6 and November 5.
Dividends per share have been adjusted to reflect the 10 percent stock dividends to shareholders in December
2002 and 2001.

Stock dividends of 10 percent each (one share for every 10 outstanding shares) were declared by the
Company for shareholders of record on December 2, 2002 and December 3, 2001.

Effective December 2, 2002, the Board of Directors of the Company adjusted the price at which the
Company would purchase shares to $36.50 per share, taking into consideration the ten percent stock dividend
to shareholders in December 2002.

Any funds which the Company may require in the future to pay cash dividends, as well as various
Company expenses, are expected to be obtained by the Company chiefly in the form of cash dividends from
the Bank and secondarily from sales of common stock pursuant to the Company’s stock option plan. The
ability of the Company to declare and pay dividends in the future will depend not only upon its future earnings
and financial condition, but also upon the future earnings and financial condition of the Bank and its ability to
transfer funds to the Company in the form of cash dividends and otherwise. The Company is a separate and
distinct legal entity from the Bank. The Company’s right to participate in any distribution of the assets or
earnings of the Bank is subordinate to prior claims of creditors of the Bank.

There is currently no active market for the common stock and there can be no assurance that a market will
develop.

Our common stock trades from time to time in the over-the-counter bulletin board market under the
symbol “HUVL”. Trading in this market is sporadic. In the absence of an active market for our common
stock, there can be no assurance that a shareholder will be able to find a buyer for his or her shares. Stock
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prices as a whole may also be lower than they would be if an active market were to develop, and may tend to
fluctuate more dramatically.

We have determined not to apply, at this time, for the listing of the common stock on a securities
exchange. If we do apply in the future for such listing, there can be no assurance that the common stock will
be listed on any securities exchange. Even if we successfully list the common stock on a securities exchange,
there can be no assurance that any organized public market for the securities will develop or that there will be
any private demand for the common stock. We could also fail to meet the requirements for continued
inclusion on such exchange, such as requirements relating to the minimum number of public shareholders or
the aggregate market value of publicly held shares.

The liquidity of the common stock depends upon the presence in the marketplace of willing buyers and
sellers. Liquidity also may be limited by other factors, including restrictions imposed on the common stock by
shareholders.

The Company has historicaily created a secondary market for its stock by issuing offers to repurchase
shares from any shareholder. However, the Company is not obligated to issue such offers to repurchase shares
in the future and may discontinue or limit such offers at any time.

If the common stock is not listed on an exchange, it may not be accepted as collateral for loans, or if
accepted, its value may be substantially discounted. As a result, investors should regard the common stock as a
long-term investment and should be prepared to bear the economic risk of an investment in the common stock
for an indefinite period. Investors who may need or wish to dispose of all or a part of their investments in the
common stock may not be able to do so except by private, direct negotiations with third parties.

The development of a market for the common stock could be limited by existing agreements with respect to
resale.

A significant number of our shareholders are current or former directors and employees (or their family
members) who purchased their shares subject to various Stock Restriction Agreements. Pursuant to these
Stock Restriction Agreements, we enjoy a right of first refusal if the shareholder proposes to sell his or her
shares to a third party. Historically, we have exercised our right of first refusal and have purchased a
substantial portion of the shares offered to us pursuant to the Stock Restriction Agreements. Qur repurchase
of stock has effectively created a secondary market for the stock. We have no obligation to repurchase the
common stock under the Stock Restriction Agreements or otherwise and there can be no assurance that we
will purchase any additional stock in the future. If we continue to exercise our right to repurchase shares
subject to the Stock Restriction Agreements, this will limit the availability of shares in public markets.

Government regulation restricts our ability to pay cask dividends.

Dividends from the Bank are the only significant source of cash for the Company. However, there are
various statutory and regulatory limitations regarding the extent to which the Bank can pay dividends or
otherwise transfer funds to the Company. Federal and state bank regulatory agencies also have the authority to
limit further the Bank’s payment of dividends based on such factors as the maintenance of adequate capital for
the Bank, which could reduce the amount of dividends otherwise payable. The Company paid a cash dividend
to our shareholders of $1.32 per share in 2002, $1.10 per share in 2001 and $0.92 per share in 2000 (adjusted
for subsequent stock dividends). Under applicable banking statutes, at December 31, 2002, the Bank could
have declared dividends of approximately $21.1 million to the Company without prior regulatory approval. No
assurance can be given that the Bank will have the profitability necessary to permit the payment of dividends
in the future; therefore, no assurance can be given that the Company would have any funds available to pay
dividends to shareholders.

Federal and state agencies require the Company and the Bank to maintain adequate levels of capital. The
failure to maintain adequate capital or to comply with applicable laws, regulations and supervisory agreements
could subject the Company, the Bank or its subsidiaries to federal and state enforcement provisions, such as
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the termination of deposit insurance, the imposition of substantial fines and other civil penalties and, in the
most severe cases, the appointment of a conservator or receiver for a depositary institution. Moreover,
dividends can be restricted by any of the Bank’s regulatory authorities if the agency believes that the Bank’s
financial condition warrants such a restriction.

In addition, the Company’s ability to declare and pay dividends is restricted under the New York
Business Corporation Law, which provides that dividends may only be paid by a corporation out of its surplus.

In the event of a liquidation or reorganization of the Bank, the ability of holders of debt and equity
securities of the Company to benefit from the distribution of assets from the Bank upon any such liquidation or
reorganization would be subordinate to prior claims of creditors of the Bank (including depositors), except to
the extent that the Company’s claim as a creditor may be recognized. The Company is not currently a creditor
of the Bank.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information regarding the Company’s Stock Option Plans. All equity
compensation plans have been approved by the Company’s stockholders. The amounts presented are as of
December 31, 2002, and do not include awards made in January 2003. Additional details related to the
Company’s equity compensation plans are provided in Notes 1 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Avaijlable
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity
Plan Category Qutstanding Options  QCutstanding Options  Compensation Plans
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders. ......... .. ... .. .. .. .. ... 466,414 $23.96 703,458
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ITEM 6 — SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected historical consolidated financial data for the years ended and as of
the dates indicated. The selected historical consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, are derived from our consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-X. The selected historical consolidated financial data as
of December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 and for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 are derived from
our consolidated financial statements that are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
information set forth below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” appearing

elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
" (09C’s except share data)
Operating Resuits:
Total interest iNCOME . ...\ttt it niiirneanss $ 84743 $ 89878 § 87,266 $§ 70816 § 62,445
Total interest EXPense . ... .ovv v ter et erionn e, 22,982 32,517 40,785 29,658 27,622
Netinterest INCOME. . .. ... ittt i inee e 61,761 57,361 46,481 41,158 34,823
Provision (credit) for loan losses........................... 3,902 4,380 1,144 600 (300)
Income before income taxes ...........coovniiiiiiiiiiinnn 30,744 28,376 21,983 18,648 15,821
Netincome ......cooiiiniiiiii i 21,584 18,881 16,158 14,004 12,254
Basic earnings per common share ........... ... .. ... ... 3.69 3.29 2.85 2.49 2.19
Diluted earning per common share .................... .. ... 3.59 3.20 277 2.43 2.13
Weighted average shares outstanding ....................... 5847879 5745852 5,668,855 5,631,561 5,592,055
Adjusted weighted average shares outstanding ............... 6,008,427 5,900,649 5,832,671 5,758,229 5,756,149
Cash dividends per common share ......................... 3 132 § 1.10 § 092 $ 076 $ 0.62
December 31,
2002 2001 2600 1999 1998
Financial Position:
SeCUrties . ...t e $ 743,884 § 624,209 $ 655,029 $ 634,973 $565,616
Loans, Met. ... . i e e 642,438 600,377 506,101 412,914 308,131
Total @SSELS. .. .vtt ettt e 1,506,883 1,372,453 1,289,970 1,147,472 939,802
DePOSItS . ot e e 1,027,176 888,377 879,575 754,846 627,297
BOITOWINES .. ..ottt i 327,383 352,720 285,831 313,718 223,683
Stockholders’ equity ........... i 136,807 113,342 93,345 68,310 75,696
Financial Ratios
Significant ratios of the Company for the periods indicated are as follows:
December 31,
2002 2001 2060 1999 1998

Earnings Ratios
Net income as a percentage of:

Average €arning assets . ... ...ttt 1.58% 1.51% 1.41% 1.39% 1.40%

Average total @ssets ... ...t e 1.50 1.43 1.32 1.31 1.32

Average total stockholders’ equity(1) ................... 18.72 18.74 18.61 18.60 18.44
Capital Ratios

Average total stockholders’ equity to average total assets(1) 8.02% 7.64% 7.12% 7.06% 7.16%

Average net loans as a multiple of average total

stockholders’ equity(1) ............ ..ol 5.37 5.56 5.15 4.72 4,20

Leverage capital ......... ... .. it 8.28 7.90 7.30 7.20 7.40

Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) .................. 17.05 15.36 14.80 15.70 19.40

Total risk-based capital (to risk weighted assets) ......... 18.30 16.47 15.60 16.50 20.20
Other
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of year-end loans. . . 1.76% 1.31% 0.94% 0.97% 1.00%
Loans (net) as a percentage of year-end total assets......... 42.63 43.74 39.23 3598 32.79
Loans (net) as a percentage of year-end total deposits ... . ... 62.54 67.58 57.54 54.70 49.12
Securities as a percentage of year-end total assets........... 49.37 4548 50.78 55.34 60.18
Average interest earning assets as a percentage of average

interest bearing liabilities.......................... ... 147.71 138.43 133.91 134.46 134.74
Dividends per share as a percentage of diluted earnings per

SharE . .., 36.69 34.38 33.21 31.28 29.11

(1) Excludes unrealized gains in 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1998 and unrealized losses in 1999, net of tax, on

securities available for sale
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ITEM 7 — MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This section presents discussion and analysis of the Company’s consolidated financial condition at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and consolidated results of operations for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2002. The Company is consolidated with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hudson Valley
Bank, and the Bank’s subsidiaries, Hudson Valley Investment Corp., Grassy Sprain Real Estate Holdings,
Inc., Sprain Brook Realty Corp., HVB Leasing Corp., HVB Employment Corp., and HVB Realty Corp.
(coltectively the “Bank™). This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and supplementary financial information contained elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Policies

Application of Critical Accounting Policies — The Company’s consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The Company’s
significant accounting policies are more fully described in the Accounting Policy note to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Certain accounting policies require management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, management evaluates its
estimates and assumptions, and the effects of revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period in
which they are determined to be necessary. The accounting policies described below are those that most
frequently require management to make estimates and judgements, and therefore, are critical to understanding
the Company’s results of operations. Senior management has discussed the development and selection of these
accounting estimates and the related disclosures with the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of
Directors.

Allowance for Loan Losses — The Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses to absorb losses inherent
in the loan portfolio based on ongoing quarterly assessments of the estimated losses. The Bank’s methodology
for assessing the appropriateness of the allowance consists of several key components, which include a specific
component for identified problem loans, a formula component, and an unallocated component. The specific
component incorporates the results of measuring impaired loans as provided in SFAS No. 114, “Accounting
by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” and SFAS No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a
Loan-Income Recognition and Disclosures.” These accounting standards prescribe the measurement meth-
ods, income recognition and disclosures related to impaired loans. A loan is recognized as impaired when it is
probable that principal and/or interest are not collectible in accordance with the loan’s contractual terms. A
loan is not deemed to be impaired if there is a short delay in receipt of payment or if, during a longer period of
delay, the Company expects to coliect all amounts due including interest accrued at the contractual rate
during the period of delay. Measurement of impairment can be based on the present value of expected future
cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of
the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material
estimates that may be susceptible to significant change. If the fair value of the impaired loan is less than the
related recorded amount, a specific valuation component is established within the allowance for loan losses or
a writedown is charged against the allowance for loan losses if the impairment is considered to be permanent.
Measurement of impairment does not apply to large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans that are
collectively evaluated for impairment such as the Company’s portfolios of home equity loans, real estate
mortgages, installment and other loans.

The formula component is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by type. Loss factors
are based on historical loss experience. The introduction of new loan types, for which there has been no
historical loss experience, as explained further below, is one of the considerations in determining the
appropriateness of the unallocated component.

The appropriateness of the unallocated component is reviewed by management based upon its evaluation
of then-existing economic and business conditions affecting the key lending areas of the Bank and other
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conditions, such as new loan products, credit quality trends (including trends in nonperforming loans expected
to result from existing conditions), collateral values, loan volumes and concentrations, specific industry
conditions within portfolio segments that existed as of the balance sheet date and the impact that such
conditions were believed to have had on the collectibility of the loan portfolio. Senior management reviews
these conditions quarterly. Management’s evaluation of the loss related to these conditions is reflected in the
unallocated component. Due to the inherent uncertainty in the process, management does not attempt to
quantify separate amounts for each of the conditions considered in estimating the unallocated component of
the allowance. The evaluation of the inherent loss with respect to these conditions is subject to a higher degree
of uncertainty because they are not identified with specific credits or portfolio segments.

Actual losses can vary significantly from the estimated amounts. The Bank’s methodology permits
adjustments to the allowance in the event that, in management’s judgment, significant factors which affect the
collectibility of the loan portfolio as of the evaluation date have changed.

Management believes the allowance for loan losses is the best estimate of probable losses which have
been incurred as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. There is no assurance that the Company will not be required
to make future adjustments to the allowance in response to changing economic conditions, particularly in the
Bank’s service area, since the majority of the Bank’s loans are collateralized by real estate. In addition, various
regulatory agencics, as an integral part of the examination process, periodically review the Bank’s allowance
for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additions to the allowance based on their
judgments at the time of their examination.

Income Recognition on Loans — Interest on loans is accrued monthly. Net loan origination and
commitment fees are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of yield over the lives of the related loans.
Loans, including impaired loans, are placed on a non-accrual status when management believes that interest or
principal on such loans may not be collected in the normal course of business. When a loan is placed on non-
accrual status, all interest previously accrued, but not collected, is reversed against interest income. Interest
received on non-accrual loans generally is either applied against principal or reported as interest income, in
accordance with management’s judgment as to the collectability of principal. Loans can be returned to
accruing status when they become current as to principal and interest, demonstrate a period of performance
under the contractual terms, and when, in management’s opinion, they are estimated to be fully collectible.

Securities — Securities are classified as either available for sale, representing securities the Bank may sell
in the ordinary course of business, or as held for investment, representing securities the Bank has the ability
and positive intent to hold until maturity. Securities available for sale are reported at fair value with unrealized
gains and losses (net of tax) excluded from operations and reported in other comprehensive income. Securities
held for investment are stated at amortized cost (specific identification). There were no securities held for
investment at December 31, 2002 and 2001. The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts is
determined by using the level yield method to the earlier of the call or maturity date. Securities are not
acquired for purposes of engaging in trading activities. Realized gains and losses from sales of securities are
determined using the specific identification method.

Results of Operations for Each of the Three Years in the Period Ended December 31, 2002

Summary of Results

The Company reported net income of $21.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, a 14.3 percent
increase over 2001. Net income was $18.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, a 16.9 percent
increase over 2000 net income of $16.2 million. The increase in 2002 net income, compared to 2001, reflects
higher net interest income, higher non interest income and net gains on securities transactions, a lower
provision for loan losses and a lower effective tax rate partially offset by higher operating expenses. The
increase in 2001 net income, compared to 2000, primarily reflects higher net interest income and higher non
interest income partially offset by a higher provision for loan losses, higher operating expenses, a higher
effective tax rate and net losses on security transactions.
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Diluted earnings per share of $3.59 in 2002 increased 12.3 percent over the $3.20 recorded in 2001, while
diluted earnings per share increased 15.5 percent in 2001 compared to the $2.77 recorded in 2000, reflecting
the higher net income. Prior period per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the 10 percent stock
dividend distributed on December 4, 2002. Return on average equity (excluding the available for sale
securities unrealized gain in 2002, 2001 and 2000) was 18.72 percent in 2002, compared to 18.74 percent in
2001, and 18.61 percent in 2000. Return on average assets (excluding the available for sale securities
unrealized gain in 2002, 2001 and 2000) was 1.50 percent in 2002, compared to 1.43 percent in 2001, and
1.32 percent in 2000.

Net interest income for 2002 rose to $61.8 million, a 7.8 percent increase over the $57.4 million recorded
in 2001, while 2001 net interest income increased 23.4 percent compared to the $46.5 million recorded in
2000. The 2002 increase over 2001 was primarily due to a $117.1 million growth in the average balance of
interest earning assets which was in excess of the $22.5 million growth in the average balance of interest
bearing liabilities, partially offset by a decrease in the tax equivalent basis net interest margin. The 2001
increase over 2000 was primarily due to a $105.5 million growth in the average balance of interest earning
assets, which was in excess of the $48.2 million growth in the average balance of interest bearing liabilities,
together with an increase in the tax equivalent basis interest rate margin. The 2002 increase in average interest
earning assets was due to growth in loans, the Company’s highest yielding asset, together with an increase in
short term federal funds. The increase in federal funds resulted from managements’ caution in deploying
available liquidity from deposit growth and maturing assets into longer term assets in light of the current low
interest rate environment. The 200! increase in average interest earning assets was primarily due to loan
growth. The net interest rate margin, on a tax equivalent basis, decreased in 2002 to 4.82% compared to 4.89%
in 2001, which increased compared to 4.36% in 2000. The decrease in the 2002 tax equivalent basis net
interest margin resulted primarily from a $2.6 million interest penalty incurred as a result of managements’
decision to prepay $21 million of the Company’s long term borrowings in an effort to reduce the impact of the
current trend of margin compression which has resulted from the protracted period of low interest rates.
Excluding the prepayment penalty, the tax equivalent basis net interest margin for 2002 was 5.01%. If interest
rates continue at current levels, management anticipates continued downward pressure on the net interest
margin as higher yielding fixed rate assets prepay or mature. The increase in 2001 resulted from, in addition to
the aforementioned growth in net interest earning assets, a generally faster repricing of certain interest bearing
liabilities than that of certain interest earning assets during an extended period of declining interest rates. Non
interest income, excluding securities gains and losses, for 2002 increased to $3.3 million compared to
$2.6 million in 2001, which increased from $1.9 million in 2000. The increases were due to higher service
charge income and increases in the value of interest rate floor contracts. Sales of investment securities resulted
in a net gain of $54,000 in 2002, net loss of $180,000 in 2001 and net gain of $692,000 in 2000, respectively.
The overall increases in revenues were partially offset by increases in non interest expense of $3.5 million and
$1.1 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively, reflecting increases in such expenses as employee salaries and
benefits, occupancy and equipment expense and other expenses, as a result of the Company’s continuing
growth, investment in people, technology, products and branch facilities. The effective tax rate in 2002,
compared to 2001, decreased primarily due to the increase in tax exempt interest as a percentage of total
interest income and a reduction in the New York State Corporate tax rate. The higher effective tax rate in
2001 compared to 2000 increased primarily due to the decrease in tax exempt income as a percentage of total
interest income and an increase in the statutory federal income tax rate from 34% to 35%.

The Company’s total capital ratio under the risk-based capital guidelines exceeds regulatory guidelines
of 8 percent, as the total ratio equaled 18.3 percent and 16.5 percent at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The leverage capital ratio was 8.3 percent and 7.9 percent at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
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Average Balances and Intevest Rates

The following table sets forth the average balances of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities
for each of the last three years as well as total interest and corresponding yields and rates. The data contained
in the table has been adjusted to a tax equivalent basis, based on the federal statutory rate of 35 percent in
2002 and 2001 and 34 percent in 2000.

ASSETS
Interest earning assets:
Deposits in banks
Federal funds sold
Securities: (1)

Taxable

Exempt from federal
income taxes

Loans, net(2)
Total interest eaming assets . . .

Non interest earning assets:
Cash and due from banks
Other assets

Total non interest earning assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY

Interest bearing liabilities:

Deposits:

Checking with interest . . ..

Securities sold under repurchase
agreements and other short-
term borrowings. . .........

Other borrowings...........

Total interest bearing
liabilities . .......0... ...,

Non interest bearing
liabilities:
Demand deposits .........
Other liabilities ..........

Total non interest bearing
liabilities . . ......... ...

Stockholders’ equity(1)

Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity(1). ...

Net interest earnings........

Net yield on interest earning
assets. ...l

(1) Excludes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale.
(2) Includes loans classified as non-accrual.

(000’s except percentages)
Year ended December 31,

2002

2001

2000

Average
Balance

Interest(3)

Yield/
Rate

Average
Balance

Interest(3)

Yield/
Rate

Average
Balance

Yield/

Interest(3) Rate

80,747

505,152

161,321
619,098

$ 38
1,364

27,098

11,960
48,469

1,369,519

88,929

35,012
31,949

66,961
$1,436,480

$ 250,634 § 3,439
57,629 347
184,723 3,571
76,759 528
148,555 2,317
208,886 12,780
927,186 22,982
380,015
14,007
394,022
115,272
31,436,480
$65,947

1.19% —
169 § 23,954

5.36 519,852

7.41
7.83

148,048
560,584

§ 759

33,804

11,189
48,042

6.49 1,252,438

93,794

31,485

35,144

66,629

$1,319,067

1.37% $ 155,058 § 3,802
0.60 52,988 610
1.93 320,408 13,379
0.69 61,697 659
1.56 154,311 5,855
6.12 160,255 8,212
2.48 904,717 32,517

297,197

16,401

313,598

100,752

$1,319,067
$61,277

4.82%

317% § 11,661

6.50 547,619

7.56
8.57

140,782
446,843

7.49 1,146,905

28,509
44,680

73,189
$1,220,094

245% $ 148,663 § 4,323 291%
1.15 51,472 777 1.51
4,18 339,305 19,802 5.84
1.07 62,049 840 1.35
3.79 165,993 10,181 6.13
5.12 89,011 4,862 5.46
3.59 856,493 40,785 4.76
255,386
21,395
_ 276781
86,820
$1,220,094
$50,047
4.89% 4.36%

(3) Effect of adjustment to a tax equivalent basis was $4,186, $3,916 and $3,566 for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Interest Differential

The following table sets forth the dollar amount of changes in interest income, interest expense and net
interest income between the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000, on a tax equivalent basis.

(000’s)
2002 Compared to 2001 2001 Compared to 2000
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)
Due to Change in Due to Change in
Volume Rate Total (1) Volume Rate Total(1)

Interest income:
Deposits in banks . ...................... $ 120 § (82) § 38 — — —
Federal fundssold ...................... 1,800 (1,195) 605 § 775 § (751) § 24
Securities:

Taxable ................ .o il (956)  (5,750) (6,706) (1,893)  (1,639) (3,532)

Exempt from federal income taxes ...... 1,003 (232) 771 541 159 700
Loans,net ...............c.coviiinn... 5,015 (4,588) 427 10,760 (4,990) 5,770
Total interest income . ................... 6,982 (11,847) (4,865) 10,183 (7,221) 2,962
Interest expense:
Deposits:

Money market ............ .. ... ... 2,344 (2,707) (363) 186 (707) (521)

Savings ... 53 (316) (263) 23 (190) (167)

Time ..o e e e (5,666)  (4,142) (5,808) (1,103) (5,320) (6,423)

Checking with interest. ................ 161 (292) (131) (5) (176) (181)
Securities sold under repurchase agreements

and other short-term borrowings ........ (218)  (3,320) (3,538) (717)  (3,609) (4,326)
Other borrowings .................... ... 2,492 2,076 4,568 3,892 {542) 3,350
Total interest expense ................... (834) (8,701) (59,535) 2,276 (10,544) (8,268)

Increase (decrease) in interest differential .. $ 7,816 § (3,146) $ 4,670 § 7,907 $ 3,323 $11,230

{1) Changes attributable to both rate and volume are allocated between the rate and volume variances based
upon their absolute relative weights to the total change.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, the difference between interest income and interest expense, is the most significant
component of the Company’s consolidated earnings. The impact of declining interest rates particularly in 2001
and continuing throughout 2002 has presented challenges to the Company’s asset liability management efforts.
This rate environment has resulted in greatly accelerated prepayments of loans and mortgage backed securities
and calls of U.S. agency securities as consumers and companies prepay or refinance existing debt.
Additionally, the Company has seen a shift of customer time deposits into interest bearing demand deposits
and increases in the projected average lives of callable longer term borrowings. The initial impact of the sharp
decline of interest rates on the Company’s net interest income throughout 2001, and to a lesser extent, in early
2002 was positive. This was due to repayment of higher yielding fixed rate assets being considerably slower
than the more immediate impact on the repricing of interest bearing liabilities, particularly interest bearing
demand deposits and short term time deposits. Throughout this period, the Company has made efforts to
appropriately reposition its securities portfolio and funding sources in response to these changes to maintain or
minimize the decline of its net interest income while maintaining prudence in its asset and interest rate risk
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profiles. This resulted in an overall reduction in the average life of the securities portfolio and generally lower
yields on interest earning assets as well as lower costs on interest bearing liabilities. These efforts, when
combined with continued growth in the core businesses of loans and deposits enabled the Company to
maintain and grow met interest income in 2002 and 2001. The Company anticipates continued downward
pressure on net interest income if interest rates continue at these current low levels.

Net interest income of $65.9 million, on a tax equivalent basis, for 2002 reflects a 7.5 percent increase
over the $61.3 million for 2001. Net interest income, on a tax equivalent basis, for 2001 reflects an increase of
22.4 percent over the $50.0 million for 2000. Tax equivalent basis net interest income rose $4.7 million in
2002, compared to 2001, primarily as a result of an increase in the excess of average interest earning assets
over average interest bearing liabilities to $442.3 million in 2002 from $347.7 million in 2001 partially offset by
a decrease in net interest margin. The 2002 decrease in net interest margin as, compared to 2001, resulted
from a $2.6 million interest penalty from a prepayment of $21 million of the Company’s long term borrowings
incurred as part of ongoing asset liability management. Tax equivalent net interest income rose $11.2 million
in 2001, compared to 2000 as a result of an increase in the excess of average interest earning assets over
average interest bearing labilities to $347.7 million in 2001 from $290.4 million in 2000 and an increase in the
net interest margin for 2001 compared to 2000.

Interest income is determined by the volume of, and related rates earned on, interest earning assets.
Sharply lower interest rates and a slight volume decrease in securities available for sale, partially offset by
volume increases in loans and Federal funds sold contributed to lower interest income in 2002, compared to
2001. Volume increases in loans and Federal funds sold, partially offset by lower volume in securities together
with sharply lower overall interest rates contributed to only slightly higher interest income in 2001 compared
to 2000. Average interest earning assets increased in 2002 to $1,369.5 million from $1,252.4 million in 2001
and from $1,146.9 million in 2000, reflecting a 9.3 percent and 9.2 percent increase in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The Company’s ability to make changes in its asset mix allows management to capitalize on more
desirable yields, as available, on various interest earning assets.

Securities are the largest component of interest earning assets. Average total securities, excluding average
net unrealized gains in 2002 and 2001 and losses in 2000 on available for sale securities, decreased slightly in
2002 by $1.4 million or 0.2 percent to $666.5 million compared to $667.9 million in 2001, which decreased
$20.5 million or 3.0 percent compared to $688.4 million in 2000. Total securities, excluding net unrealized
gains, increased at December 31, 2002 by $107.5 million or 17.5 percent to $721.9 million compared to
$614.4 million at December 31, 2001, which decreased $40.3 million or 6.2 percent compared to Decem-
ber 31, 2000. The slight decrease in average total securities in 2002 compared to 2001 reflects volume
decreases in U.S. agency securities essentially offset by volume increases in mortgage backed securities,
including collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”), short-term U.S. Treasury securities and obligations
of states and political subdivisions, During 2002, the Company experienced continued acceleration of
paydowns and calls of U.S. agency and mortgage backed securities due to the persistence of the declining
interest rate environment throughout the year. The reinvestment of the majority of the paydowns and calls into
short term securities and shorter duration mortgage backed securities and CMQs reflects management’s desire
to maintain a securities portfolio with a relatively short average life. Management believes this strategy is
appropriate in the current low interest rate environment even though a shorter average life portfolio results in
lower yields. In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Bank invested approximately $150 million of this liquidity into
short term Treasury securities, which resulted in the increase in the total portfolio at year end 2002 compared
to year end 2001. Therefore, tax equivalent basis income on securities decreased in 2002 primarily due to lower
interest rates. The decrease in average total securities in 2001 compared to 2000 is offset by an increase in
short-term Federal funds. In 2001, due to steadily declining interest rates particularly towards the end of the
year, the Company experienced an increase in calls and an acceleration of paydowns in U.S. agency securities
and mortgage backed securities. The Company had not fully redeployed these additional funds into longer-
term instruments due to the declining interest rate environment. Therefore, tax equivalent basis interest
income on securities decreased in 2001 as a result of both lower volume and lower interest rates.

Average net loans increased in 2002 by $58.5 million or 10.4 percent to $619.1 million compared to
$560.6 million in 2001, which increased $113.8 million or 25.5 percent compared to $446.8 million in 2000. Net
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loans increased $42.0 million or 7.0 percent to $642.4 million at December 31, 2002 compared to $600.4 million
at December 31, 2001, which increased $94.3 million or 18.6 percent compared to $306.1 million at
December 31, 2000. The increases in average net loans in 2002 and 200! were primarily due to the Company’s
greater emphasis on making new loans through more effective market penetration in its primary market. Interest
rates were considerably lower in 2002 than in 2001 and in 2001 than in 2000 and as a result, interest income on
net loans increased in 2002 and 2001 as a result of higher volume, partially offset by lower interest rates.

Interest expense is a function of the volume of and rates paid, for interest bearing liabilities, comprised of
deposits and borrowings. Interest expense in 2002 decreased $9.5 million or 29.3 percent to $23.0 million while
interest expense in 2001 decreased $8.3 million, or 20.3 percent to $32.5 million, compared to $40.8 million in
2000. Average balances of interest bearing liabilities increased in 2002 by $22.5 million or 2.5 percent to
$927.2 million compared to $904.7 million in 2001, which increased $48.2 million or 5.6 percent compared to
$856.5 million in 2000. The increase in average interest bearing liabilities in 2002 was due to increases in
interest bearing demand deposits and other borrowings, partially offset by decreases in brokered certificates of
deposit and time deposits of municipalities, which are acquired on a bid basis, other time deposits and short
term borrowings. The increase in interest bearing demand deposits resulted from growth in existing customer
relationships and branches as well as from new relationships, including growth from three new branches
opened in 2002. The increase in average interest bearing liabilities in 2001 was due to increases in interest
bearing demand deposits and, excluding brokered certificates of deposit and time deposits of municipalities,
which are acquired on a bid basis, increases in time deposits. These increases resulted from growth in existing
customer relationships and branches as well as from new relationships, including growth from a new branch in
the Bronx, New York, opened in 1999. The combined aggregate balances of brokered certificates of deposit,
time deposits of municipalities, short-term borrowings and other borrowings also increased in 2001. This
increase reflects management’s continuing effort to effectively leverage capital. Overall increases in funding
were invested in loans, securities or short-term investments. Interest rates paid on average interest bearing
liabilities decreased in 2002, compared to 2001, and in 2001 compared to 2000 due primarily to a sharply lower
interest rate environment. In December 2002, the Company prepaid $21 million of its long term borrowings as
part of its ongoing asset liability management. A prepayment penalty of $2.6 million was incurred as a result of
the transaction and is included in interest expense on other borrowings. This increased the average cost of
other borrowings for 2002 to 6.1%. Excluding this transaction, the average cost of other borrowings in 2002
decreased to 4.85%, compared to 5.12% in 2001. Therefore, interest expense on average interest bearing
liabilities decreased in 2002 and 2001 due to lower interest rates, partially offset by higher volume. The
average balance of non interest bearing demand deposits which increased in 2002 to $380.0 million from
$297.2 million in 2001, compared to $255.4 million in 2000, is an important component of the Company’s
liability management and has a direct impact on the determination of net interest income.

The interest rate spread on a tax equivalent basis for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002 is as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Average interest rate on:

Total average interest €arning assets. .. ......oouveeeeuunennneeonn. 6.49% 749% 7.92%
Total average interest bearing hiabilities . .......................... 2.48 3.59 4.76
Total interest rate spread .. ......... ... ... i 4.01 3.90 3.16

In 2002 and 2001, the interest rate spread increased as the declining interest rate environment reduced
the average cost of interest bearing liabilities at a faster rate than it reduced the yield on interest earning
assets. Increases in loans and non interest bearing demand deposits also contributed to the increase interest
rate spread in 2002 and 2001. The leveraging of capital generally tends to decrease the interest rate spread,
however, it adds net interest income without adding significant operating costs. Management cannot predict
what impact market conditions will have on its interest rate spread and future compression in net interest rate
spread may occur.
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Non Interest Income

Non interest income increased 39.9 percent to $3,401,000 in 2002 from $2,431,000 in 2001. Non interest
income for 2001 was $2,431,000 compared to $2,548,000 for 2000. The increase in non interest income in 2002
compared to 2001 was the result of gains on security transactions, higher service fees and higher other income.
The decrease in non interest income in 2001 compared to 2000 was the result of losses on security transactions
partially offset by slightly higher services fees and higher other income.

Net gains on securities transactions of $54,000, net losses on securities transactions of $180,000 and net
gains on securities transactions of $692,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, principally resulted from the sale of securities to restructure the portfolio, manage cash flow and
enhance portfolio yield, and efforts to manage the Company’s overall interest rate risk in response to changes
in interest rates or changes in composition of the balance sheet.

Service charges increased by 34.2 percent in 2002 and by 5.8 percent in 2001. The increases reflect a
higher level of accounts and fees charged.

Other income increased $329,000, or 23.2 percent, to $1,748,000 in 2002 from $1,419,000 in 2001. Other
income increased to $1,419,000 in 2001 compared to $729,000 in 2000. The increase in other income in 2002
and 2001 was primarily the result of an increase in the fair value of interest rate floors contracts of $1,105,000
and $832,000, respectively.

Non Interest Expense

Non interest expense rose to $30.5 million for 2002, or a 13.0 percent increase over the $27.0 millien for
2001, compared to a 4.4 percent increase in 2001 over the $25.9 million in 2000. These increases reflect the
overall growth of the Company. The Company’s efficiency ratio (a lower ratio indicates greater efficiency)
which compares non interest expense to total adjusted revenue (taxable equivalent net interest income, plus
non interest income, excluding gain or loss on security transactions) was 44.0 percent in 2002, compared to
42.3 percent in 2001 and 49.9 percent in 2000.

Salaries and employee benefits, the largest component of non interest expense, rose 12.2 percent in 2002
to $17.1 million, compared to a 3.3 percent increase in 2001 to $15.3 million from $14.8 million for 2000. The
Company opened three new branches in 2002, resulting in increased staff. The increases in both 2002 and
2001 also reflected the cost of additional personnel necessary for the Bank to accommodate the growth in both
deposits and loans, the expansion of services and products available to customers, increases in the number of
customer relationships, and annual merit increases. The 2002 increase included the effects of the Company’s
election to expense employee stock options in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Increases in salaries and employee benefits in both
2002 and 2001 were also attributable to incentive compensation programs and other benefit plans necessary to
be. competitive in attracting and retaining high quality and experienced personnel, as well as higher costs
associated with related payroll taxes.

Employees at December 31, 2002 2601 2000
Full Time Employees . ........... 0., 253 220 214
Part Time Employees . . .. ... i, 35 53 44

(000’s except percentages)
Salaries and Employee Benefits

Salaries . ... . $12,448 $10,891 $10,431
Payroll Taxes. . ......ooouiinii i e 993 861 828
Medical Plans . ... 802 705 737
Incentive Compensation Plans............................ 1,415 1,209 1,009
Deferred Compensation Plans . ........................... 74 67 64
Employee Retirement Plans. . .......... .. ... ... ..., 1,059 1,050 825
OtheT . 327 479 886
Total . .o $17,118 $15,262 $14,780
. Percentage of total non interest expense ................... 56.1% 56.5% 57.1%




Occupancy expense increased 8.4 percent to $2.5 million in 2002 from $2.3 million in 2001. Occupancy
expense was essentially unchanged in 2001 compared to 2000. The increase in 2002 was due to the opening of
new branch offices as well as rising costs on leased facilities, real estate taxes, utility costs, maintenance costs
and other costs to operate the company’s facilities.

Professional services increased 32.7 percent to $2.9 million in 2002 from $2.2 million in 2001, which was
a 13.6 percent increase from $2.6 million for 2000. The increase in 2002 was due to higher audit costs, higher
legal costs and professionals engaged to assist in the expansion of the Company’s management information
services. The year 2001 professional services were lower than in 2000 due to additional professionals engaged
to assist with first-time filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and also due to professionals
engaged to perform a customer satisfaction survey in 2000.

Equipment expense increased 2.6 percent to $1,936,000 in 2002 from $1,887,000 in 2001, which was a 9.5
percent increase from $1,723,000 in 2000. The increase in 2002 reflected additional equipment necessary to
support the three new branch facilities which opened in 2002. The increase in 2001 reflected the early
retirement of certain equipment.

Business development expense increased 33.2 percent to $1,490,000 in 2002 from $1,119,000 in 2001,
which was a 18.0 percent increase over $948,000 in 2000. The increases reflected costs associated with
increased general promotion of products and services, expanded business development efforts and promotion
of three new branch offices which opened in 2002.

FDIC assessment slightly decreased to $164,000 for 2002 compared to $166,000 for 2001 and $165,000
for 2000. The decrease in 2002 resulted from a decrease in the Bank’s assessment rate. The increase in 2001
primarily resulted from increases in the Bank’s deposits subject to FDIC assessment as well as a general
increase in the overall assessment rate.

Other operating expenses, as reflected in the following table, increased 7.1 percent in 2002 and increased
17.7 percent in 2001.
2002 2001 2000
(0060’s except percentages)

Other Operating Expenses

Other INSUTANCE . .. .ottt it e e e e e ina e aeas $(128) $(104) § (36)
Stationery and printing . ........ N 605 4717 502
CommuUIICAtioNS EXPENSE . .« vvv vttt it 850 765 714
COUTIEL CXPEISE .« v v vttt ittt e e e iias e e s 520 452 367
Other 10an eXPense . .. ... u e it 194 248 160
OULSIAE SEIVICES . o o vt vttt t et ettt et 864 779 747
Dues, meetings and seminars. .. ...t 353 308 351
Other . 1,115 1,158 664
Total .. e P $4,373 $4,083 $3,469
Percentages of total non interest eXpense . ..........ovvvvvn.... 14.3% 15.1% 13.4%

The 2002 increases reflect higher outside service fees, higher customer service related expenses including
communications and courier expenses, higher stationery and printing costs, and an increase in dues and
seminar expense due to a expanded participation in such events, all related to the opening of three new
branches, growth in customer, and growth in business activities. The 2002 decreases reflect a reduction in the
estimates of net costs of certain life insurance programs, lower other loan expenses and slightly lower other
expense.

The 2001 increases reflect higher outside service fees, higher customer service related expenses including
communications and courier expenses, higher other loan expenses including credit checking expense, and
higher other expense, all related to growth in customers, growth in business activities and increases in
charitable contributions. The 2001 decreases reflect a reduction in the estimates of net costs of certain life
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insurance programs, lower stationery and printing costs, and a reduction in dues and seminar expense due to a
reduced participation in such events.

To monitor and control the amount of non interest expenses, as well as non interest income, the Company
continually monitors the system of internal budgeting, including analysis and follow up of budget variances.

Income Taxes

Income taxes of $9,160,000, $9,495,000 and $5,825,000 were recorded in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The Company is currently subject to a statutory incremental Federal tax rate of 35 percent
(34 percent for the first $10 million of taxable income), a New York State tax rate of 8.0 percent, plus a
17 percent surcharge and a New York City tax rate of 9 percent. The Company’s overall effective tax rate was
29.8 percent, 33.5 percent and 26.5 percent in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The decrease in the overall
effective tax rate for 2002 reflects an increase in tax exempt interest income as a percentage of total interest
income and a decrease in the New York State tax rate from 8.5% to 8.0%. The increase in the overall effective
tax rate for 2001 primarily reflects higher federal taxes and a decrease in tax exempt interest income as a
percentage of total interest income. In the normal course of business, the Company’s Federal and New York
State Corporation tax returns are subject to audit. Currently, the Company’s New York State Corporation tax
returns for tax years 1996 through 1998 are being audited by the New York State Department of Taxation and
Finance. Other pertinent tax information is set forth in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included elsewhere herein.

Financial Condition at December 31, 2002 and 2081

Securities Portfolio

Securities are selected to provide safety of principal, liquidity, pledging capabilities (to collateralize
certain deposits and borrowings), income and to leverage capital. The Company’s investment strategy focuses
on maximizing income while providing for safety of principal, maintaining appropriate utilization of capital,
providing adequate liquidity to meet loan demand or deposit outflows and to manage overall interest rate risk.
The Company selects individual securities whose credit, cash flow, maturity and interest rate characteristics,
in the aggregate, effect the stated strategies.

The securities portfolio consists of securities available for sale totaling $743.9 million, $624.2 million and
$655.0 million and Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (“FHLB”) stock totaling $10.5 million,
$10.5 million and $9.5 million at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In accordance with SFAS No. 115, the Bank’s investment policies include a determination of the
appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. If management has the intent and ability to
hold securities until maturity, they are classified as held-to-maturity and carried at amortized cost. Securities
held for indefinite periods of time and not intended to be held-to-maturity include the securities management
intends to use as part of its asset/liability strategy and liquidity management and the securities that may be
sold in response to changes in interest rates, resultant prepayment risks, liquidity demands and other factors.
Such securities are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value. All securities have been
classified as available for sale at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

Securities represent 48.7 percent, 53.3 percent and 60.0 percent of average interest earning assets in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. Emphasis on the securities portfolio will continue to be an important part of the
Company’s investment strategy. The size of the securities portfolio will depend on loan and deposit growth, the
level of capital and the Company’s ability to take advantage of leveraging opportunities.
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The following table sets forth the amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses and the estimated fair

value of securities classified as available for sale at December 31:

2002 (000’s)

Amortized
Classified as Available for Sale Cost

Gross Unrealized

Estimated
Fair Value

$223,005
323,898
167,346
6,714

U.S. Treasury and government agencies

Mortgage-backed securities
Obligations of states and political subdivisions
Other debt securities

Gains Losses

$ 1,671 $ 2
10,309 208
9,469 4
288 —

$224,674
333,999
176,811
7,002

Total debt securities 720,963
Equity securities 970

21,737
428

742,486
1,398

$721,933

$22,165

$743,884

2001 (000%s)

Amortized Estimated

Classified as Available for Sale : Cost Gross Unrealized Fair Value
Gains Losses
U.S. Treasury and government agencies ................ $105,838 $ 1,344 $ 399 $106,783
Mortgage-backed securities. . .............. ... . L 348,116 5,082 398 352,770
Obligations of states and political subdivisions........... 155,742 4,275 484 159,533
Other debt securities . ....... oot 3,817 25 40 3,802
Total debt securities. . ...t 613,513 10,696 1,321 622,888
Equity securities . .. .....coviiun i 872 449 — 1,321
Total o $614,385 $11,145 $1,321 $624,209
2000 (000’s)

Amortized Estimated

Classified as Available for Sale Cost Gross Unrealized Fair Value
Gains Losses

U.S. Treasury and government agencies ................ $225,591 $ 546 $ 2,923 $223,214
Mortgage-backed securities. ............ ... ... .. 281,663 1,322 2,216 280,769
Obligations of states and political subdivisions........... 144,024 3,735 311 147,448
Other debt securities . ... ... ottt 2,564 — 182 2,382
Total debt securities. . .. ... i 653,842 5,603 5,632 653,813
Equity securities ... ...... o 851 365 — 1,216
Total .. $654,693 $5,968 $ 5,632 $655,029

The following table presents the amortized cost of securities available for sale at December 31, 2002,
distributed based on contractual maturity or earlier call date for securities expected to be called, and weighted
average yields computed on a tax equivalent basis. Mortgage-backed securities which may have principal
prepayments are distributed to a maturity category based on estimated average lives. Actual maturities will
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differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalties.

After 1 but within After S but within
Within 1 Year S Years 10 Years After 10 Years Total

Amount Yield Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount Yield Amount  Yield
(000’s except percentages)

U.S. Treasury and

government agencies ... $212,796 2.63% $ 10,209 4.83% — —_ — —  $223,005 2.73%
Mortgage-backed

securities . ............ 172,615 5.34 124932 516 § 23,716 568% $2,635 5.69% 323898 5.29
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions . . . 18,487 6.02 77,263 7.49 69,889 7.33 1,707 7.42 167,346 7.26
Other debt securities . . . . . 750 5.07 1,567 7.71 3,885 5.31 512 7.42 6.714 6.01
Total .................. $404,648 3.94% $213971 6.01% $ 97,490 6.85% $4,854 6.48% $720,963 4.96%
Estimated fair value .. ... $412,701 $222,380 $102,350 $5,055 $742,486

Obligations of U.S. Treasury and government agencies principally include U.S. Treasury securities and
debentures and notes issued by the FHLB, the Federal National Mortgage Association {“FNMA”) and the
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”). The total balances held of such securities was
$224.7 million, $106.8 million and $223.2 million at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
December 31, 2002 balance increased $117.9 million resulting from $646.6 million in purchases, and other
increases of $2.0 million, offset by $530.7 million of maturities and calls. The December 31, 2001 balance
decreased $116.4 million, resulting from $106.1 million in purchases and other increases of $3.9 million offset
by $178.6 million of maturities and calls and sales of $47.8 million. In 2002, purchases and maturities included
$574.2 million and $424.4 million, respectively, of short-term U.S. Treasury and government agency
obligations with remaining maturities of less than 60 days at the time of purchase. The Company has increased
the amount of short-term investments as part of it’s ongoing asset/liability management during the current tow
interest rate environment. For 2001, purchases consisted primarily of callable U.S. government agency bonds
that offered attractive yields. The calls resulted from generally lower interest rates at the time of the calls. The
sales were conducted as part of the Company’s ongoing portfolio management.

The Company invests in mortgage-backed securities, including collateralized mortgage obligations
(“CMOQs”), that are primarily issued by the Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”),
FNMA, FHLMC and, to a lesser extent, such securities issued by others. GNMA securities are backed by the
full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury, assuring investors of receiving all of the principal and interest due
from the mortgages backing the securities. FNMA and FHLMC guarantee the payment of interest at the
applicable certificate rate and the full collection of the mortgages backing the securities; however, such
securities are not backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the
Company held $12.8 million of mortgage-backed securities issued by private issuers who have “AAA” ratings
issued by Standard and Poors, a nationally recognized credit rating organization.

Mortgage-backed securities, including CMO’s, decreased $18.8 million to $334.0 million and increased
$72.0 millien to $352.8 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, as compared to the $280.8
million at December 31, 2000. The decrease in 2002 was due to principal paydowns and redemptions of
$241.3 million and sales of $0.8 million offset by purchases of $220.4 million and other increases of
$2.9 million. The increase for 2001 results from purchases of $179.8 million and other increases of
$3.8 million, offset by principal paydowns of $111.6 million. The purchases were fixed and variable rate
mortgage-backed securities with average lives of less than ten years at the time of purchase.

During 2002, purchases of fixed rate mortgage-backed securities of $170.8 million and other increases of
$3.8 million were offset by principal paydowns of $226.3 miltion. During 2002, purchases of adjustable rate
mortgage-backed securities of $49.6 million were partially offset by sales of $0.8 million, principal paydowns of
$15.0 million and other reductions of $0.9 million. During 2001, purchases of fixed rate mortgage-backed
securities totaling $157.4 million and other increases of $0.3 million were partially offset by principal
paydowns of $89.7 million. During 2001, purchases of adjustable rate mortgage-backed securities totaling
$22.4 million and other increases of $0.8 million were partially offset by principal paydowns of $21.9 million.
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The outstanding balances in obligations of states and political subdivisions at December 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000 were $176.8 million, $159.5 million and $147.4 million, respectively. The December 31, 2002
balance increased $17.3 million resulting from purchases of $28.0 million and other increases of $5.6 million,
partially offset by maturities and redemptions of $16.3 million. The December 31, 2001 balance increased
$12.1 million resulting from purchases of $27.2 million, and other increases of $0.3 million offset by maturities
of $15.4 million. The obligations at year end 2002 were comprised of approximately 64 percent for New York
State political subdivisions and 36 percent for a variety of other states and their subdivisions all with diversified
final maturities. The Company considers such securities to have favorable tax equivalent yields and further
utilizes such securities for their favorable income tax treatment.

The Company invests in FHLB stock and other securities which are rated with an investment grade by
nationally recognized credit rating organizations. As a matter of policy, the Company invests in non-rated
securities, on a limited basis, when the Company is able to satisfy itself as to the credit. These non-rated
securities outstanding at December- 31, 2002 totaled approximately $7.7 million comprised primarily of
obligations of municipalities located within the Company’s market area. The Bank, as a member of the FHLB,
invests in stock of the FHLB as a prerequisite to obtaining funding under various advance programs offered by
the FHLB. The Bank must purchase additional shares of FHLB stock to obtain increases in such borrowings.

The Company continues to exercise a conservative approach to investing by purchasing high credit
quality investments with various maturities and cash flows to provide for liquidity needs and prudent asset
liability management. The Company’s securities portfolio provides for a significant source of income, liquidity
and is utilized in managing Company-wide interest rate risk. These securities are used to collateralize
borrowings and deposits to the extent required or permitted by law. Therefore, the securities portfolio is an
integral part of the Company’s funding strategy.

Except for securities of the U.S. Treasury and government agencies, there were no obligations of any
single issuer which exceeded ten percent of stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2002.

Loan Portfolio

Real Estate Loans: Real estate loans are comprised primarily of loans collateralized by interim and
permanent commercial mortgages, construction mortgages and residential mortgages including home equity
loans. The Bank originates these loans primarily for its portfolio, although a significant portion of its residential
real estate loans, in addition to meeting the Bank’s underwriting criteria, comply with nationally recognized
underwriting criteria (“conforming loans”) and can be sold in the secondary market.

Commercial real estate loans are offered by the Bank generally on a fixed or variable rate basis with
5 year terms and, exceptionally, up to 10 year terms. Amortizations generally range up to 25 years.

In underwriting commercial real estate loans, the Bank evaluates both the prospective borrower’s ability
to make timely payments on the loan and the value of the property securing the loan. The Bank generally
utilizes licensed or certified appraisers, previously approved by the Bank, to determine the estimated value of
the property. Commercial mortgages are generally underwritten for up to 75% of the value of the property
depending on the type of the property.” The Bank generally requires lease assignments where applicable.
Repayment of such loans may be negatively impacted should the borrower default or should there be a
substantial decline in the value of the property securing the loan, or a decline in general economic conditions.

Where the owner occupies the property, the Bank also evaluates the business’s ability to repay the loan on
a timely basis. In addition, the Bank may require personal guarantees, lease assignments or the guarantee of
the operating company when the property is owner occupied. These types of loans are often for larger amounts
than other types of loans made by the Bank and may involve greater risks than other types of lending. Because
payments on such loans are often dependent upon the successful operation of the business involved, repayment
of such loans may be negatively impacted by adverse changes in economic conditions.

Construction loans are short-term loans (generally up to 24 months) secured by land for both residential
and commercial development. The loans are generally made for acquisition and improvements. Funds are
disbursed as phases of construction are completed. The majority of these loans are made with variable rates of
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interest, although some fixed rate financing is provided on residential property. The loan amount is generally
limited to 75% of value. Most non-residential construction loans require pre-approved permanent financing or
pre-leasing with the Bank providing the permanent financing. The Bank does not generally fund construction
loans for single family homes or commercial real estate built by investors until the builder has a firm sales
contract for the building to be constructed, although in certain projects, model homes may be financed within
the overall site improvement financing. Repayment of such loans may be negatively impacted by the builders’
inability to complete construction, by a downturn in the new construction market, by a significant increase in
interest rates or by a decline in general economic conditions.

Residential real estate loans are offered by the Bank with terms of up to 30 years and loan to value ratios
of up to 95%. However, for loan to value ratios in excess of 80%, the Bank generally requires private mortgage
insurance. The Bank offers fixed and adjustable rate loans. Adjustable rate loans generally have a fixed rate for
the first 3, 5 or 7 years and then convert to an annual adjustable rate, generally based upon the applicable
constant maturity U.S. Treasury securities index plus 2.5% to 3.0%. These adjustable rate loans generally
provide for a maximum annual change in the rate of 2% with an interest rate ceiling over the life of the loan.
Fixed rate loans are generally underwritten to Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. guidelines that allow for
the sale of such loans in the secondary market. Repayment of such loans may be negatively impacted should
the borrower default, should there be a significant decline in the value of the property securing the loan or
should there be a decline in general economic conditions.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Bank began offering a home equity line of credit subject to
minimum and maximum limits of $50,000 and $1,000,000, respectively, for 1-4 family properties which are
the borrowers primary residence. The loan has a term of 30 years and does not convert to an amortizing ioan at
any point, The loan is subject to a maximum combined loan to value ratio of 80% and has an interest rate
equal to the prime rate, as published in the Wall Street Journal, for the entire term of the loan. The Bank pays
all costs of origination for loans between $50,000 and $500,000, subject to a minimum 25% utilization of the
line during the first two years.

The Bank also offers a home equity line of credit subject to a limit of $500,000 with a maximum
combined loan to value ratio of 80%. The interest rate for the first year is the Bank’s prime rate, with the rate
changing to prime plus 1% for the remaining term of the loan. The loan has a term of 25 years with the first 10
years structured as a line of credit with payments of interest only, with the loan converting to a fully amortizing
term loan for the remaining 15 years. The borrower pays all costs associated with originating this loan. There
are no prepayment penalties. The Bank also offers a home secured loan subject to a limit of $100,000 with a
maximum combined loan to value ratio of 80%. The loan has a 15 year term with a fixed rate of interest. The
Bank pays the costs associated with originating this loan and requires a prepayment penalty during the first
three years of the loan.

Commercial and Industrial Loans: The Bank’s commercial and industrial loan portfolio consists
primarily of commercial business loans and lines of credit to small and medium sized businesses and
professionals. These loans are usually made to finance the purchase of inventory, new or used equipment or
other short or long-term working capital purposes. These loans are generally secured, often with real estate as
secondary collateral, but are also offered on an unsecured basis. These loans generally have variable rates of
interest. Commercial loans, for the purpose of purchasing equipment and/or inventory, are usually written for
the terms of 1 to 5 years with, exceptionally, a 7 year term. In granting this type of loan, the Bank primarily
looks to the borrower’s cash flow as the source of repayment with collateral and personal guarantees, where
obtained, as a secondary source. The Bank generally requires a debt service coverage ratio of at least 125%.
The Bank is an approved Small Business Administration (SBA) lender and offers a variety of SBA products.
Commercial loans are often larger and may involve greater risks than other types of loans offered by the Bank.
Payments on such loans are often dependent upon the successful aperation of the underlying business involved
and, therefore, repayment of such loans may be negatively impacted by adverse changes in economic
conditions, management’s inability to effectively manage the business, claims of others against the borrower’s
assets which may take priority over the Bank’s claims against assets, death or disability of the borrower or loss
of market for the borrower’s products or services.
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Loans to Individuals and Leasing: The Bank offers installment loans and reserve lines of credit to
individuals. Installment loans are limited to $50,000 and lines of credit are limited to $5,000. These loans
have 5 year terms with fixed or variable rates of interest. The rate of interest is dependent on the term of the
loan and the type of collateral. The Bank does not place an emphasis on originating these types of loans.

In March 2000, the Company ended its participation, which began in 1998, in an automobile leasing
program due to the sale of the company that originated and serviced the leases and resulting changes to
various aspects of the program. The balance of $6.5 million of such leases at December 31, 2002 will continue
to decline as repayments of existing leases continue. The Company has not determined if it will seek to
participate in a similar program in the future.

During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Bank began originating lease financing transactions. These
transactions are primarily conducted with businesses, professionals and not-for-profit organizations and
provide financing principally for office equipment, telephone systems, computer systems and other special use
equipment. The terms vary depending on the equipment being leased, but are generally 3 to 5 years. The
interest rate is dependent on the term of the lease, the type of collateral, and the overall credit of the customer.

During 2002, average net loans increased $58.5 million to $619.1 million, and increased $113.8 miilion in
2001 to $560.6 million, as compared to $446.8 million in 2000. At December 31, 2002, gross loans increased
$45.5 million or 7.5 percent to $655.4 million, compared to $609.9 million at December 31, 2001, which
increased $97.6 million, or 19.1 percent compared to $512.3 million at December 31, 2000. This growth in
gross loans resulted primarily from:

o Increases during 2002 and 2001 of $20.6 million and $29.1 million, respectively, in commercial real
estate mortgages, due primarily to increased activity and greater market penetration,

o Increases in construction loans of $4.2 million and $19.6 million, respectively, resulting from a greater
emphasis on this product including an expanded offering and focused marketing,

o Decreases in residential real estate mortgages of $10.6 million and increase of $19.4 million,
respectively, primarily as a result of increased activity, offset in 2002 by accelerated prepayment
experience due to the low interest rate environment,

o Increases in commercial and industrial loans of $38.7 million and $33.3 million, respectively, primarily
due to increased activity and a greater emphasis on this product with resulting increased market
penetration,

o A decrease of $10.1 million and $1.7 million, respectively, in lease financings resulting from the
participation in an automobile leasing program beginning in late 1998 and discontinued in March 2000,
and

» Increases in loans to individuals of $2.7 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

Major classifications of loans, including loans held for sale, at December 31 are as follows:

(000°s)
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Real Estate:

Commercial ....................... $231,411 $210,840 $181,735 $153,823 $111,397

Construction ..................o... 56,691 52,496 32,869 26,526 12,311

Residential .. ...................... 164,287 174,859 155,449 127,959 114,020
Commercial and industrial . ............ 179,288 140,573 110,555 77,276 65,923
Individuals ................... .. ..... 14,509 11,824 10,677 9,280 5,801
Lease financing ...................... 9,224 19,282 20,970 23,543 2,755
Total ... ... 655,410 609,874 512,255 418,407 312,207
Deferred loan fees.................... (1,462) (1,479) (1,338) (1,446) (973)
Allowance for loan losses . ............. (11,510) (8,018) (4,816) (4,047) (3,103)
Loans, et ........ovvuuunuiaen... $642,438 $600,377 $506,101 $412,914 $308,131

31




The Company’s primary lending emphasis is for loans to businesses and developers, primarily in the form
of commercial real estate mortgages, construction loans, and commercial and industrial loans, including lines
of credit. The Company will continue to emphasize these types of loans, which have increased significantly
during both 2002 and 2001, and which enable the Company to meet the borrowing needs of businesses in the
communities it serves. These loans are made at both fixed rates of interest and variable or floating rates of
interest, generally based upon the prime rate as published in the Wall Street Journal. At December 31, 2002,
the Company had total gross loans with fixed rates of interest of $374.3 million, or 57.1 percent, and total gross
loans with variable or floating rates of interest of $281.1 million, or 42.9 percent, as compared to $355.1 million
or 58.2 percent of fixed rate loans and $254.8 million or 41.8 percent of variable or floating rate loans at
December 31, 2001.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had approximately $129.4 million and $130.2 million,
respectively, of committed but unissued lines of credit, commercial mortgages, construction loans and
commercial and industrial loans.

The following table presents the maturities of loans outstanding at December 31, 2002 excluding loans to
individuals, real estate mortgages {other than construction loans) and lease financings, and the amount of
such loans by maturity date that have pre-determined interest rates and the amounts that have floating or

adjustable rates.
(000’s except percentages)

After 1
Within 1 But within After 5§
Year 5 years Years Total Percent
Loans:
Real estate — construction ... .............. $40,920 $ 8,857 $ 6,914 $ 56,691 24.0%
Commercial and industrial ................. 53,494 82,634 43,160 179,288 76.0%
Total ... $94,414 $91,491 $50,074 $235,979 100.0%
Rate Sensitivity:
Fixed or predetermined interest rates ........ $ 5,085 $42,773 $37,202 $ 85,060 36.0%
Floating or adjustable interest rates.......... 89,329 48,718 12,872 150,919 64.0%
Total ..o $94,414 $91,491 $50,074 $235,979 100.0%
Percent ...t 40.0% 38.8% 21.2% 100.0%

It is the Company’s policy to discontinue the accrual of interest on loans when, in the opinion of
management, a reasonable doubt exists as to the timely collectibility of the amounts due. Regulatory
requirements generally prohibit the accrual of interest on certain loans when principal or interest is due and
remains unpaid for 90 days or more, unless the loan is both well secured and in the process of collection.

The following table summarizes the Company’s non-accrual loans, loans past due 90 days or more and
still accruing, restructured loans, other real estate owned (“OREQO”) and related interest income not recorded

on non-accrual loans as of and for the year ended December 31:
(000’s except percentages)

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Non-accrual loans at yearend............ $4,758 $3,523 $4,584 $3,855 $ 633
OREQ atyearend ..................... 1,831 2,021 2,117 2,193 2,102
Restructured loans at year end ........... — — — 323 428
Total nonperforming assets .............. $6,589 $5,544 $6,701 $6,371 $3,163
Loans past due 90 days or more and still

ACCTUING .. oo vttt iiee e 1,596 137 469 264 1,442
Additional interest income that would have

been recorded if these borrowers had

complied with contractual loan terms. ... 179 511 763 698 362
Nonperforming assets to total assets at year

end ... . 0.43% 0.40% 0.52% 0.56% 0.34%




At December 31, 2002, the Company had no commitments to lend additional funds to customers with
non-accrual or restructured loan balances. Non-accrual loans increased in 2002 to $4.8 million from
$3.5 million and decreased in 2001 to $3.5 million, from $4.6 million in 2000. Net income is adversely
impacted by the level of non-performing assets caused by the deterioration of the borrowers™ ability to meet
scheduled interest and principal payments. In addition to forgone revenue, the Company must increase the
level of provision for loan losses, incur higher collection costs and other costs assoc1ated with the management
and disposition of foreclosed properties.

At December 31, 2002, loans that aggregated approximately $1.2 million, which are not on non-accrual
status, were potential problem loans that may result in their being placed on non-accrual status in the future.

There were no restructured loans considered to be impaired at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

In accordance with SFAS No. 114, which establishes the accounting treatment of impaired loans, loans
that are within the scope of SFAS No. 114 totaling $4.7 million, $2.5 million and $2.1 million at
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, have been measured based on the estimated fair value of the
collateral since these loans are all collateral dependent. The total allowance for loan losses specifically
allocated to impaired loans was $1,282,000, $307,000 and $125,000 at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The average recorded investment in impaired loans for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000 was approximately $3.5 million, $2.3 million and $2.2 million, respectively. No income was recorded
on impaired loans during the portion of the year that they were impaired.

Allowance for Loan Losses and Provision for Loan Losses
Allowance for Loan Losses

The Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio based on
ongoing quarterly assessments of the estimated losses. The Bank’s methodology for assessing the appropriate-
ness of the allowance consists of several key components, which include a specific component for identified
problem loans, a formula component, and an unallocated component. The specific component incorporates the
results of measuring impaired loans as provided in SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment
of a Loan,” and SFAS No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan — Income Recognition
and Disclosures.” These accounting standards prescribe the measurement methods, income recognition and
disclosures related to impaired loans.

The formula component is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by type, excluding
loans for which a specific allowance has been determined. Loss factors are based on historical loss experience.
New loan types, for which there has been no historical loss experience, as explained further below, is one of
the considerations in determining the appropriateness of the unallocated allowance.

The appropriateness of the unallocated component is reviewed by management based upon its evaluation
of then-existing economic and business conditions affecting the key lending areas of the Bank and other
conditions, such as new loan products, credit quality trends (including trends in nonperforming loans expected
to result from existing conditions), collateral values, loan volumes and concentrations, specific industry
conditions within portfolio segments that existed as of the balance sheet date and the impact that such
conditions were believed to have had on the collectibility of the loan portfolio. Senior management reviews
these conditions quarterly. Management's evaluation of the loss related to these conditions is reflected in the
unallocated allowance. The evaluation of the inherent loss with respect to these conditions is subject to a
higher degree of uncertainty because they are not identified with specific problem credits or portfolio
segments.
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A summary of the components of the allowance for loan losses, changes in the components and the
impact of charge-offs/recoveries on the resulting provision/credit for loan losses for the dates indicated is as
follows:

(000’s)

December 31, Change December 31, Change December 31,
2002 During 2002 2001 During 2001 2009

Components:
Specific ... $ 1,282 $ 475 $ 807 $ 682 $ 125
Formula................................. 1,328 817 511 120 391
Unallocated ........... ... ..o iiiin.. 8,900 2,200 6,700 2,400 4,300
Total allowance . .............ccoviuivn.... $11,510 $8,018 $4,816
Netchange ............cooiii i, 3,492 3,202
Net recoveries/ (charge-offs) ................ (410) (1,178)
Provision (credit) amount.................. $3,902 $ 4,380
Change December 31, Change December 31, Change December 31,

During 2000 1999 During 1999 1998 During 1998 1997
Components;
Specific ......... ... . ... $ 68 $ 57 $(21) $ 78 $ (65) $ 143
Formula.................. (476) 867 124 743 50 693
Unallocated ............... 1,177 3,123 841 2,282 (415) 2,697
Total allowance............ $4,047 $3,103 $3,533
Net change ............... 769 944 (430)
Net recoveries/ (charge-offs) (375) 344 (130)
Provision (credit) amount...  $1,144 $600 $(300)

The changes in the specific component of the allowance for loan losses are the result of our analysis of
impaired loans and our determination of the amount required to reduce the carrying amount of such loans to
estimated fair value.

The changes in the formula component of the allowance for loan losses are the result of the application of
historical loss experience to outstanding loans by type. Loss experience for each year is based upon average
charge-off experience for the prior three year period by loan type.

The changes in the unallocated component of the allowance for loan losses are the result of manage-
ment’s consideration of other relevant factors affecting loan collectibility. Due to the inherent uncertainty in
the process, management does not attempt to quantify separate amounts for each of the conditions considered
in estimating the unallocated component of the allowance. Management periodically adjusted the unallocated
component to an amount that, when considered with the specific and formula components, represented its best
estimate of probable losses in the loan portfolio as of each balance sheet date. The following factors affected
the changes in the unallocated component of the allowance for loan losses each year:

2002

» Economic and business conditions — The decline in the economy during the year ended December 31,
2002 as evidenced by increased unemployment and increased bankruptcy filings throughout the
country and in the Company’s market area has, in management’s judgement, caused a slowdown in
economic and business activity within the Company’s primary market, caused a softening in demand
for certain commercial real estate, which has negatively impacted valuations of the Company’s primary
collateral for loans, and has created greater uncertainty regarding the ability of borrowers to repay their
loans. Therefore, consideration of events that trigger economic uncertainty is a part of the determina-
tion of the unallocated component of the allowance.
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« Concentration — Concentration in commercial and industrial loans increased to 27.4 percent of the
portfolio from 23.1 percent at the prior year end, an increase of $38.7 million. These types of loans
generally have a higher degree of risk than other types of loans which the Bank makes since repayment
of the loans is largely dependent on the borrowers’ ability to successfully operate their businesses. An
increase in such concentration, and the associated increase in risk, is not reflected in the formula
component of the allowance due to the lag caused by using three year historical losses in determining
the loss factors. Therefore, consideration of increases in concentration is a part of the determination of
the unaliocated component of the allowance.

 Credit quality — Non-accrual loans and loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing increased at
December 31, 2002 by $2.7 million, or 73.6 percent to $6.4 million from $3.7 million at December 31,
2001, Further, as the result of the Bank’s regular periodic loan review process, certain loans were
downgraded due to potential deterioration of collateral values, the borrower’s cash flows or other
specific factors that negatively impact the borrower’s ability to meet their loan obligations. Certain of
these loans are also considered in connection with the analysis of impaired loans performed to
determine the specific component of the allowance. However, due to the uncertainty of that
determination, such loans are also considered in the process of determining the unallocated component
of the allowance.

« New loan products — The Bank began financing business equipment leases during the fourth quarter
of 2000. Any probable losses with respect to business equipment leases are not reflected in the formula
component of the aliowance for loan losses since there is no loss history.

As a result of our detailed review process and consideration of the identified relevant factors, management
determined that an increase in the unallocated component of the allowance of $2.2 million reflects our best
estimate of probable losses which have been incurred as of December 31, 2002.

2001

« Economic and business conditions — The decline in the economy during the year ended December 31,
2001 as evidenced by increased unemployment and increased bankruptcy filings throughout the
country and in the Company’s market arca and the sudden and unprecedented destruction of the World
Trade Center on September 11, 2001 has, in management’s judgement, caused a slowdown in
economic and business activity within the Company’s primary market, caused a softening in demand
for commercial real estate, which has negatively impacted valuations of the Company’s primary
collateral for loans, and has created greater uncertainty regarding the ability of borrowers to repay their
loans. Therefore, consideration of events that trigger economic uncertainty is a part of the determina-
tion of the unallocated component of the allowance.

+ Concentration — Net loans increased by $94.3 million to $600.4 million during the year ended
December 31, 2001 from $506.1 million as of December 31, 2000. This represented 43.7 percent of
total assets as of December 31, 2001, up from 39.2 percent as of the prior year-end. Although the
concentration in commercial real estate decreased to 34.6 percent of total loans as of December 31,
2001 from 35.5 percent as of the prior year-end, commercial loans increased $29.1 million. Concentra-
tion in construction loans increased to 8.6 percent of total loans as of December 31, 2001 from
6.4 percent as of the prior year-end, an increase of $19.6 million. These increases have created greater
exposure to volatility in real estate values in a limited geographic area. Increases in such concentrations
are not reflected in the formula component of the allowance due to the lag caused by using three-year
historical losses in determining the loss factors. Therefore, consideration of increases in concentrations
is a part of the determination of the unallocated component of the allowance.

» Credit Quality — Non accrual loans and loans past due 90 days or more were $3.7 million after net
loan charge-~offs for the year of $1.2 million. Certain other loans are also considered in connection with
the analysis of impaired loans performed to determine the specific component of the allowance.
However, due to the uncertainty of that determination, such loans are also considered in the process of
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determining the unallocated component of the allowance. The increase in charge-off experience will
result in future increases of the formula component of the allowance.

» New loan products — The Bank began financing business equipment leases during the last quarter of

2000. Any probable losses with respect to business equipment leases are not reflected in the formula
_component of the allowance for loan losses since there is no loss history.

As a result of our detailed review process and consideration of the identified relevant factors, management
determined that an increase in the unallocated component of the allowance of $2.4 million reflects our best
estimate of probable losses which have been incurred as of December 31, 2001.

2000

Concentration — Concentration in commercial and industrial loans increased to 21.6 percent of the
portfolio from 18.5 percent at the prior year end, an increase of $33.3 million. These types of loans
generally have a higher degree of risk than other types of loans which the Bank makes since the
repayment of the loans is largely dependent on the borrowers’ ability to successfully operate their
businesses. An increase in such concentration, and the associated increase in risk, is not reflected in the
formula component of the allowance due to the lag caused by using three year historical losses in
determining the loss factors. Therefore, consideration of increases in concentration is a part of the
determination of the unallocated component of the allowance.

Credit quality — Non-accrual loans and loans past due 90 days or more increased by $0.9 million.
Certain of the loans are also considered in connection with the analysis of impaired loans performed to
determine the specific component of the allowance. However, due to the uncertainty of that
determination, such loans are also considered in the process of determining the unallocated component
of the allowance.

Change in underwriting criteria — The Bank increased its loan to value ratio guidelines on all loans
secured by real estate (except for loans secured by 1-4 family residential real estate) to remain
competitive for such loans.

New loan products — The Bank began financing business equipment leases during the period. Any
probable losses with respect to business equipment leases are not refiected in the formula component of
the allowance for loan losses since there is no loss history.

Economic and business conditions — Increasing interest rates negatively affected the general ability of
borrowers to repay their loans.

As a result of our detailed review process and consideration of the identified relevant factors, management

~ determined that an increase in the unallocated component of the allowance of $1.2 million reflects our best
estimate of probable losses which have been incurred as of December 31, 2000.

1999

o Concentration — The Bank’s concentration in construction loans increased to 6.3 percent of the

portfolio from 3.9 percent of the portfolio at the end of the prior year, an increase of $14.2 million. The
Bank has had no charge-offs of such loans during the past three years, and therefore, there is no
formula component of the allowance for loan losses for construction loans.

Credit quality — Non-accrual loans and loans past due 90 days or more increased by $2.0 million.
Other loans aggregating approximately $2.5 million, which are not in a non-accrual status, were
identified at December 31, 1999 as potential problem loans. An analysis of impaired loans is performed
to determine the specific component of the allowance. However, due to the uncertainty of that
determination such loans are also considered in the process of determining the unallocated component
of the allowance.

New loan products — Automobile lease financing, with which the Bank has no historical loss
experience, increased by $20.1 million. Any probable losses with respect to automobile lease financing
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are not reflected in the formula component of the allowance for loan losses since there is no loss
history.

The Bank introduced an SBA loan product, and hired an employee designated to originate such loans.
While the Bank has made several SBA loans in the past, this new emphasis is designed to aggressively
increase these types of loans. While these loans contain a guarantee from the SBA for a major portion
of the loan, there is increased exposure due to the credit profile of the businesses that generally obtain
such loans. In addition, the Bank’s general lack of familiarity with such loans, including the extensive
documentation and compliance process that, if deficient, could void the SBA: guarantee, adds to
increased risk.

o Geographic expansion — The Bank made construction loans on Long Island, New York, a geographic
area with which the Bank has little experience. In addition, the Bank established a physical presence in
Bronx County, New York, through the opening of a full service branch and, as a result, expanded its
general lending activities in a new market.

¢ Increase in Loans to One Borrower limits — The Bank increased its lending limits to select customers
to as high as the Bank’s legal lending limit. This increased the Bank’s exposure to certain customers
and increased concentrations to certain customers.

e Economic and business conditions — Increasing collateral values resulting from a favorable real estate
market were partially offset by the effect of increasing interest rates on the general ability of borrowers
to repay their loans.

As a result of our detailed review process and consideration of the identified relevant factors, management
determined that an increase in the unallocated component of the allowance of $841,000 reflects our best
estimate of probable losses which have been incurred as of December 31, 1999.

1998

e Credit quality — Non-accrual loans and loans past due 90 days or more decreased by $1.1 million.
Certain of the loans are also considered in connection with the analysis of impaired loans performed to
determine the specific component of the allowance. However, due to the uncertainty of that
determination such loans are also considered in the process of determining the unallocated component
of the allowance.

e New loan products — The Bank introduced limited new loan products during 1998.

 Economic and business conditions — Declining interest rates increased the general ability of borrowers
to repay their loans.

As a result of our detailed review process and consideration of the identified relevant factors, management
determined that a decrease in the unallocated component of the allowance of $415,000 reflects our best
estimate of probable losses which have been incurred as of December 31, 1998.
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A summary of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, is as follows:
(009’s except percentages)

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Net loans outstanding at end of year . ... $642,438 $600,377 $506,101 $412.914 $308,131
Average net loans outstanding during the
VAT . vttt e e 619,098 560,584 446,843 355,628 279,378
Allowance for loan losses:
Balance, beginning of year............. $ 8,018 $ 4,816 $ 4,047 $ 3,103 $ 3,533
Provision {credit) charged to expense . .. 3,902 4,380 1,144 600 (300)
11,920 9,196 5,191 3,703 3,233
Charge-offs and recoveries during the
year:
Charge offs:
Real estate:
Commercial ..................... — — — — —
Construction .................... — — — — —
Residential . ..................... — — (29) (11) (70)
Commercial and industrial .. ......... (290) (1,407) (378) (85) (250)
Lease financing and individuals. ... ... (189) (21) (21) (14) (18)
Recoveries:
Real estate:
Commercial ..................... — — — 381 36
Construction .................... — — — —_ —
Residential ...................... — 6 — — 35
Commercial and industrial ........... 66 242 49 73 135
Lease financing and individuals....... 3 2 4 — 2
Net (charge-offs) recoveries during the
VOAT vttt e (410) (1,178) (375) 344 {130)
Balance, end of year .................. $ 11,510 $ 8,018 $ 43816 $ 4,047 $ 3,103
Ratio of net charge-offs to average net
loans outstanding during the year .. ... 0.07% 0.21% 0.08% — 0.05%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross
loans outstanding at end of the year. .. 1.76% 1.31% 0.94% 0.97% 1.00%
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The distribution of our allowance for loan losses at the dates indicated is summarized as follows:

(000’s except percentages)

2002 2601 2000
Percent Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans of Loans
in each in each in each

Amount of Loan Category Amount of Loan Category Amount of Loan Category
Loan Loss Amounts by by Total Loan Loss Amounts by by Total Loan Loss Amounts by by Total
Allowance Category Loans Allowance Category Loans Allowance Category  Loans

Real Estate:

Commercial ........... $ 375 $231,411 3531% § 807 $210,840 34.57% — $181,735 35.48%

Construction. . ......... 100 56,691 8.65 189 52,496 8.61 $ 125 32,869 6.42

Residential ............ 12 164,287 25.07 41 174,859 28.67 27 155,449 30.35
Commercial and industrial 2,116 179,288 27.36 239 140,573 23.05 322 110,555 21.58
Lease financing and

individuals ............ 7 23,733 3.61 42 31,106 5.10 42 31,647 6.17
Unallocated ............. 8,900 — — 6,700 — — 4,300 — —
Total ................... $11,510  $655,410  100.00% $8,018 $609,874  100.00% $4,816 $512,255  100.00%

(000’s except percentages)

1999 1998
Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans
in each Loan in each
Amount of Loan Category Amount of Amounts Category
Loan Loss Amounts by by Total Loan Loss by by Total
Allowance  Category Loans  Allowance Category Loans
Real Estate:
Commercial ...........o o i — $153,823 3677% $ 180 $111,397 35.68%
ConStIUCHION . oottt ettt e et e — 26,526 6.34 —_ 12,311 394
Residential .. ... .. ... i i $ 167 127,959 30.58 148 114,020 36.52
Commercial and industrial. . ................... ... . ... 520 77,276 18.47 437 65,923 21.12
Lease financing and individuals. ..................... ... 237 32,823 7.84 56 8,556 2.74
Unallocated .. ... .. ... . . e 3,123 — — 2,282 — —
Total. ... e $4,047 $418,407 100.00% $3,103 $312,207 100.00%

Actual losses can vary significantly from the estimated amounts. The Bank’s methodology permits
adjustments to the allowance in the event that, in management’s judgment, significant factors which affect the
collectibility of the loan portfolio as of the evaluation date have changed. By assessing the estimated losses
inherent in the loan portfolio on a quarterly basis, the Bank is able to adjust specific and inherent loss
estimates based upon any more recent information that has become available.

Management believes the allowance for loan losses is the best estimate of probable losses which have
been incurred as of December 31, 2002. There is no assurance that the Company will not be required to make
future adjustments to the allowance in response to changing economic conditions or regulatory examinations.
During 2002, the FDIC, and during 2001, the New York State Banking Department, completed examinations
of the Bank. In 1999, the Federal Reserve completed an off-site examination of the Company. The regulatory
agencies concluded that the process of internal asset review and the allowance for loan losses were adequate.

Provision for Loan Losses

The Bank recorded a provision for loan losses of $3,902,000 during 2002, compared to $4,380,000 during
2001 and $1,144,000 during 2000. The provision for loan losses is charged to income to bring the Bank’s
allowance for loan losses to a level deemed appropriate by management based on the factors previously
discussed under “Allowance for Loan Losses.”
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Deposits

The Company’s fundamental source of funds supporting interest earning assets is deposits, consisting of
non interest bearing demand deposits, checking with interest, money market, savings and various forms of
time deposits. The maintenance of a strong deposit base is key to the development of lending opportunities and
creates long term customer relationships, which enhance the ability to cross sell services. Depositors include
various sized businesses, professionals, not-for-profit organizations, municipalities and individuals. To meet
the requirements of a diverse customer base, a full range of deposit instruments are offered, which has allowed
the Company to maintain and expand its deposit base despite intense competition from other banking
institutions and non-bank financial service providers.

The following table presents a summary of deposits at December 31:

(000’s)
2002 2001 2000

Demand deposits . .........o ottt $ 446,370 $342,112 $274,738
Money market accounts ............ ... .. .. " 272,141 194,306 145,294
Savings accounts .............ii i 60,398 53,998 51,623
Time deposits of $100,000 ormore ................... 92,605 155,650 288,094
Time deposits of less than $100,000 .................. 73,078 77,644 60,541
Checking withiinterest.............................. 82,584 64,667 59,285
Total ... $1,027,176 $888,377 $879,575

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, certificates of deposits and other time deposits of $100,000 or more
totaled $92.6 million and $155.7 million, respectively. At December 31, 2002, such deposits classified by time
remaining to maturity were as follows:

(800’s)
3 MONtHS OF 1888 . o oottt $ 63,539
Over 3 through 6 MOnths . . ... ... e e 15,880
Over 6 through 12 months.......................... [ 12,858
Over 12 months....... e e e e e e e 328
31 U $ 92,605

Total deposits at December 31, 2002 increased 15.6 percent to $1,027.2 million, from $888.4 million at
December 31, 2001, an increase of 1.0 percent from $879.6 million at the end of 2000. Average deposits
outstanding increased 7.5 percent in 2002 and 3.6 percent in 2001. Excluding municipal CD’s, which are
acquired on a bid basis, total deposits increased 24.8 percent and 15.7 percent, and average deposits increased
24.6 percent and 9.4 percent in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Average non interest bearing deposits increased 27.8 percent or $82.8 million for 2002 compared to 2001,
and 16.4 percent or $41.8 million in 2001 compared to 2000, due to the Company’s continuing emphasis on
developing this funding source. Average interest bearing deposits in 2002 decreased 3.5 percent or $20.4 mil-
lion reflecting increases in checking with interest accounts, money market accounts, savings accounts and
consumer time deposits offset by decreases in time deposits of $100,000 or more. Average interest bearing
deposits in 2001 decreased 1.9 percent or $11.3 million, reflecting increases in money market accounts,
consumer time deposits and savings account offset by decreases in time deposits of $100,000 or more.

Average money market deposits increased $95.6 million in 2002 and $6.4 million in 2001, due in part to
new customer accounts, increased activity and, particularly in 2002, due to the addition of three new branches.

40




Average checking with interest deposits increased $15.1 million in 2002 primarily as a result of new
customer accounts and increased activity in existing accounts. Average checking with interest deposits were
virtually unchanged in 2001, compared to the prior year.

Average time deposits decreased $135.7 million and $18.9 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. These
decreases resulted primarily from decreases in average time deposits of over $100,000, including municipal
CD’s, of $135.3 million in 2002 and $28.9 million in 2001. The decreases in average municipal CD’s, which
are generally short term and are acquired on a bid basis, were principally the result of reduced emphasis on
obtaining this type of deposit, due to significant increases in non-interest bearing and other lower cost deposits
and a shift to longer term borrowings as part of the Company’s ongoing management of interest rate risk.

Average savings deposit balances reflect moderate growth, increasing $4.6 million and $1.5 million in
2002 and 2001, respectively.

In general, deposit rates decreased in both 2002 and 2001 due to a steadily declining interest rate
environment.

Time deposits of over $100,000, including municipal CD’s, decreased $63.0 million and $132.4 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, compared to the prior year end balances. Municipal CD’s are used
to expand or maintain lower cost municipal deposits, fund securities purchases and for capital leveraging.
These CD’s are primarily short term and are acquired on a bid basis. Non municipal time deposits over
$100,000 increased in 2002 by $1.5 million compared to 2001 and decreased $30.0 million in 2001 compared
to 2000. Time deposits of over $100,000 generally have maturities of 7 to 180 days.

The Company also utilizes wholesale borrowings, brokered deposits and other sources of funds
interchangeably with time deposits in excess of $100,000 depending upon availability and rates paid for such
funds at any point in time. Due to the generally short maturity of these fundings, the Company can experience
higher volatility of interest margins during periods of both rising and declining interest rates. The Company
does not generally acquire brokered deposits.

The following table summarizes the average amounts and rates of various classifications of deposits for
the periods indicated:

(000’s except percentages)
Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Average Average Average
_Amount  Rate  Amount  Rate  _Amount ~  Rate
Demand deposits — Non interest
bearing.................... $380,015 — $297,197 — $255,386 —
Money market accounts ....... 250,634 1.37% 155,058 2.45% 148,663 2.91%
Savings accounts ............. 57,629 0.60 52,988 1.15 51,472 1.51
Time deposits ................ 184,723 1.93 320,408 4.18 339,305 5.84
Checking with interest......... 76,759 0.69 61,697 1.07 62,049 1.35
Total ....................... $949,760 0.83% $887,348 2.08% $856,875 3.00%

Borrowings

Borrowings with original maturities of one year or less totaled $139.2 million and $143.5 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Such short-term borrowings consisted of securities sold under
agreements to repurchase and borrowings from the FHLB and other correspondent banks. Other borrowings
totaled $188.2 million and $209.2 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, consisting of
borrowings from the FHLB with stated maturities of ten years and 1 to 4 year call options.

Interest expense on all borrowings totaled $15.1 million, $14.1 million and $15.0 million in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. The following table summarizes the average balances, weighted average interest rates
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and the maximum month-end outstanding amounts of securities sold under agreements to repurchase and
FHLB borrowings for each of the years:

(000’s except percentages)

2002 2001 2060
Average balance: Short-term $148,555 $154,311 $165,993
Other borrowings 208,886 160,255 89,011
Weighted average interest rate (for
the year): Short-term 1.6% 3.3% 6.1%
Other borrowings 6.1 S.1 5.5
Weighted average interest rate (at ‘
year end): Short-term 1.3% 1.8% 6.1%
Other borrowings 4.7 4.8 5.6
Maximum month-end outstanding
amount: Short-term $161,757 $164,222 $197,889
Other borrowings 209,191 209,191 94,229

In December 2002, the Company prepaid $21 million of its long term borrowings as part of its ongoing
asset liability management. A prepayment penalty of $2.6 million was incurred as a result of the transaction
and is included in interest expense on other borrowings. This increased the average cost of other borrowings for
2002 to 6.1 percent. Excluding this transaction, the average cost of other borrowings in 2002 decreased to
4.9 percent, compared to 5.1 percent in 2001.

In addition, at December 31, 2002, the Bank had available unused lines of credit of $120 million from the
FHLB, and $25 million from correspondent banks. Also, the Bank has $110 million in available borrowings
under Retail CD Agreements with two major investment banking firms, all of which are subject to various
terms and conditions.

Capital Resources

Stockholders’ equity increased to $136.8 million or 20.7 percent at December 31, 2002 from $113.3
million at December 31, 2001, which was an increase of 21.4 percent from $93.3 million at December 31,
2000. In each year, stockholders’ equity was increased by net income and the exercise of stock options, offset
by cash dividends of $7.7 million and $6.4 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively, and repurchases of
outstanding shares of stock. Stockholders’ equity also increased by $7.8 million at December 31, 2002 and
increased by $5.5 million at December 31, 2001 as a result of the effect of the net unrealized gains on
securities available for sale, net of tax.

The Company paid its first cash dividend in 1996, and the Board of Directors authorized a quarterly cash
dividend policy in the first quarter of 1998. The Bank’s payment of dividends to the Company, the Company’s
primary source of funds, is subject to limitation by federal and state regulators based on such factors as the
maintenance of adequate capital, which could reduce the amount of dividends otherwise payable. See
“Business — Supervision and Regulation.”

The various components and changes in stockholders’ equity are reflected in the Consolidated Statements
of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 included
elsewhere herein.

Management believes that future retained earnings will provide the necessary capital for current
operations and the planned growth in total assets.

All banks and bank holding companies are subject to risk-based capital guidelines. These guidelines
define capital as Tier 1 and Total capital. Tier 1 capital consists of common stockholders’ equity and qualifying
preferred stock, less intangibles; and Total capital consists of Tier 1 capital plus the allowance for loan losses
up to certain limits, preferred stock and certain subordinated and term-debt securities. The guidelines require
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a minimum total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0 percent, and a minimum Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of
4.0 percent.

The risk-based capital ratios at December 31, follow:
2002 2001 2000
Tier 1 capital:

COMPANY . .ottt ittt et e 17.0% 154% 14.8%

Bank . 17.0 15.3 14.9
Total capital:

COMPANY .ot e e e 183% 16.5% 15.6%

Bank .. e e 18.3 16.5 15.7

Banks and bank holding companies must also maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 4 percent, which
consists of Tier 1 capital based on risk-based capital guidelines, divided by average tangible assets (excluding
intangible assets that were deducted to arrive at Tier 1 capital).

The leverage ratios were as follows at December 31:
2002 2001 2000

COmMPANY . .ot 83% 79% 1.3%
Bank . ... e 8.3 7.9 7.4

To be considered “well-capitalized” under FDICIA, an institution must generally have a leverage ratio of
at least 5 percent, Tier 1 ratio of 6 percent and a Total capital ratio of 10 percent. The Bank exceeds all current
regulatory capital requirements and was in the “well capitalized” category at December 31, 2002. Manage-
ment plans to conduct the affairs of the Bank so as to maintain a strong capital position in the future.

Liquidity

The Asset/Liability Strategic Committee (“ALSC”) of the Board of Directors of the Bank establishes
specific policies and operating procedures governing the Company’s liquidity levels and develops plans to
address future liquidity needs, including contingent sources of liquidity. The primary functions of asset liability
management are to provide safety of depositor and investor funds, assure adequate liquidity and maintain an
appropriate balance between interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities. Liquidity management
involves the ability to meet the cash flow requirement of depositors wanting to withdraw funds or borrowers
needing assurance that sufficient funds will be available to meet their credit needs. Interest rate sensitivity
management seeks to manage fluctuating net interest margins and to enhance consistent growth of net interest
income through periods of changing interest rates.

The Bank’s liquid assets, at December 31, 2002, include cash and due from banks of $48 million, Federal
funds sold of $29 million, and $150 million of short term U.S. Treasury securities with remaining maturities of
less than 30 days. Federal funds sold represents the Bank’s excess liquid funds that are invested with other
financial institutions in need of funds and which mature daily.

Other sources of liquidity include maturities and principal and interest payments on loans and securities.
The loan and securities portfolios are of high credit quality and of mixed maturity, providing a constant stream
of maturing and re-investable assets, which can be converted into cash should the need arise. The ability to
redeploy these funds is an important source of medium to long term liquidity. The amortized cost of securities
available for sale, excluding short term securities discussed in the preceding paragraph, having contractual
maturities, expected call dates or average lives of one year or less amounted to $254.6 million at December 31,
2002. This represented 44.6 percent of the amortized cost of that portion of the securities portfolio. Excluding
installment loans to individuals, real estate loans other than construction loans and lease financing, $94.4
million, or 14.4 percent of loans at December 31, 2002, mature in one year or less. The Bank may increase
liquidity by selling certain residential mortgages, or exchanging them for mortgage-backed securities that may
be sold, in the secondary market.
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The Bank is a member of the FHLB. The Bank has a borrowing capacity of up to $120 million under two
lines of credit at December 31, 2002, at various terms secured by FHLB stock owned and to be purchased and
certain other assets of the Bank. The Bank had no advances under these lines from the FHLB at
December 31, 2002. The Bank borrowed $138.2 million under securities sold under agreements to repurchase
at December 31, 2002, and had securities totaling $63.6 million at December 31, 2002 that could be sold
under agreements 1o repurchase, thereby increasing liquidity. In addition, the Bank has agreements with two
investment firms to borrow up to $110 million under Retail CD Brokerage Agreements and has agreements
with two correspondent banks for purchasing Federal funds up to $15 million. Additional liquidity is provided
by the ability to borrow from the Federal Reserve Bank’s discount window, which borrowings must be
collateralized by U.S. Treasury and government agency securities.

The Bank also has outstanding, at any time, a significant number of commitments to extend credit and
provide financial guarantees to third parties. These arrangements are subject to strict credit control
assessments. Guarantees specify limits to the Bank’s obligations. Because many commitments and almost all
guarantees expire without being funded in whole or in part, the contract amounts are not estimates of future
cash flows. The Bank is also obligated under leases for certain of its branches and equipment. A summary of
lease obligations and credit commitments at December 31, 2002 follows:

After 1 Year After 3 Years
Within but Within but Within After
1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 5 Years Total

Lease Obligations
Operating lease obligations § 596 $ 180 § 223 § 1,630

$ 59 $ 180 $§ 223 § 1,630

Credit Commitments

Awvailable lines of credit ................ $64,086 $25,593 $1,999 $10,452  $102,130
Other loan commitments ............... 27,312 —_ — — 27,312
Lettersof credit............ .. ... ...... 4727 560 — — 5,287
Total ..o $96,125 $26,153 $1,999 $10,452  $134,729

The Bank pledges certain of its assets as collateral for deposits of municipalities and other deposits
allowed or required by law, FHLB borrowings and repurchase agreements. By utilizing collateralized funding
sources, the Bank is able to access a variety of cost effective sources of funds. The assets pledged consist of
certain loans secured by real estate, U.S. Treasury and government agency securities, mortgage-backed
securities, certain obligations of state and political subdivisions and other securities. Management monitors its
liquidity requirements by assessing assets pledged, the level of assets available for sale, additional borrowing
capacity and other factors. Management does not anticipate any negative impact to its liquidity from its
pledging activities,

Non interest bearing demand deposits and interest bearing deposits from businesses, professionals, not-for-
profit organizations and individuals are a relatively stable, low-cost source of funds. The deposits of the Bank
generally have shown a steady growth trend as well as a generally consistent deposit mix. However, there can be
no assurance that deposit growth will continue or that the deposit mix will not shift to higher rate products.

Another source of funding for the Company is capital market funds, which includes common stock,
preferred stock, convertible debentures, retained earnings and long-term debt qualifying as regulatory capital.

Each of the Company’s sources of liquidity is vulnerable to various uncertainties beyond the control of the
Company. Scheduled loan and security payments are a relatively stable source of funds, while loan and
security prepayments and calls, and deposit flows vary widely in reaction to market conditions, primarily
prevailing interest rates. Asset sales are influenced by general market interest rates and other unforeseen
market conditions. The Company’s ability to borrow at attractive rates is affected by its financial condition and
other market conditions.
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Management considers the Company’s sources of liquidity to be adequate to meet any expected funding
needs and also to be responsive to changing interest rate markets.

Quarterly Results of Operations
Set forth below are certain quarterly results of operations for 2002 and 2001.

(000’s except per share data)

2002 Quarters 2001 Quarters
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Interestincome . ................... $19,862 $21,946 3$21,891 $21,044 $21,252 $22,683 $22,766 $23,177
Net interest income ................ 12,615 16,795 16,613 15738 16,712 13,770 13,839 {3,040
Provision for loan losses. . ........... 383 813 1,906 800 1,916 1,404 710 350
Income before income taxes ......... 4,977 9,419 7,702 8,646 6,845 7,980 6,300 7,251
Netincome ....................... 3919 6,393 5,263 6,009 4,324 5,122 4,200 5,235
Basic earnings per common share . ... 0.66 1.09 0.90 1.04 0.75 0.89 0.73 0.92
Diluted earnings per common share. . . 0.63 1.07 0.88 1.01 0.73 0.87 0.71 0.89

Forward-Looking Statements

The Company has made, and may continue to make, various forward-looking statements with respect to
earnings, credit quality and other financial and business matters for periods subsequent to December 31, 2002.
The Company cautions that these forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and
uncertainties, and that statements relating to subsequent periods increasingly are subject to greater uncertainty
because of the increased likelihood of changes in underlying factors and assumptions. Actual results could
differ materially from forward-locking statements.

In addition to those factors previously disclosed by the Company and those factors identified elsewhere
herein, the following factors could cause actual results to differ materially from such forward-looking
statements:

» competitive pressure on loan and deposit product pricing;

» other actions of competitors;

» changes in economic conditions;

o the extent and timing of actions of the Federal Reserve Board;

* a loss of customer deposits;

 changes in customer’s acceptance of the Banks’ products and services;

» increases in federal and state income taxes and/or the Company’s effective income tax rate; and

» the extent and timing of legislative and regulatory actions and reform.

Item 7A — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk is the potential for economic losses to be incurred on market risk sensitive instruments arising
from adverse changes in market indices such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity
prices. Since all Company transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars with no direct foreign exchange or
changes in commodity price exposures, the Company’s primary market risk exposure is interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is the exposure of net interest income to changes in interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity
is the relationship between market interest rates and net interest income due to the repricing characteristics of
assets and liabilities. If more liabilities than assets reprice in a given period (a liability-sensitive position or
“negative gap”), market interest rate changes will be reflected more quickly in liability rates. If interest rates
decline, such positions will generally benefit net interest income. Alternatively, where assets reprice more
quickly than liabilities in a given period (an asset-sensitive position or “positive gap”’), a decline in market
rates could have an adverse effect on net interest income. Excessive levels of interest rate risk can result in a
material adverse effect on the Company’s future financial condition and results of operations. Accordingly,

45




effective risk management techniques that maintain interest rate risk at prudent levels is essential to the
Company’s safety and soundness.

The Company has no financial instruments entered into for trading purposes. Federal funds, both
purchases and sales, on which rates change daily, and loans and deposits tied to certain indices, such as the
prime rate and federal discount rate, are the most market sensitive and have the most stable fair values. The
least sensitive instruments include long-term fixed rate loans and securities and fixed rate savings deposits,
which have the least stable fair value. On those types falling between these extremes, the management of
maturity distributions is as important as the balances maintained. Management of maturity distributions
involve the matching of interest rate maturities, as well as principal maturities, and is a key determinant of net
interest income. In periods of rapidly changing interest rates, an imbalance (“gap™) between the rate sensitive
assets and liabilities can cause major fluctuations in net interest income and in earnings. The Company’s
management of liquidity and interest rate sensitivity has been successful in the past, as evidenced by the
continued net interest income growth. Continuing to establish patterns of sensitivity which will enhance future
growth regardless -of frequent shifts in the market conditions is one of the objectives of the Company’s
asset/liability management strategy.

Evaluating the Company’s exposure to changes in interest rates is the responsibility of ALSC and
includes assessing both the adequacy of the management process used to control interest rate risk and the
quantitative level of exposure. When assessing the interest rate risk management process, the Company seeks
to ensure that appropriate policies, procedures, management information systems and internal controls are in
place to maintain interest rate risk at appropriate levels. Evaluating the quantitative level of interest rate risk
exposure, requires the Company to assess the existing and potential future effects of changes in interest rates
on its consolidated financial condition, including capital adequacy, earnings, liquidity and asset quality.

The Company uses two methods to evaluate market risk to changes in interest rates, a “Static Gap”
analysis and a “Simulation” analysis. The Static Gap analysis shows the Company as asset-sensitive in the
one-year time frame as of December 31, 2002. The simulation analysis also indicates an asset-sensitive
position at that same date. The Company believes the simulation analysis is a more accurate analysis of
interest rate risk.

The “Static Gap” as of December 31, 2002 and 200! is presented in the tables below. Balance sheet
items are appropriately categorized by contractual maturity, expected average lives for mortgage-backed
securities, or repricing dates, with prime rate indexed loans and certificates of deposit. Checking with interest
accounts, savings accounts, money market accounts and other borrowings constitute the bulk of the floating
rate category. The determination of the interest rate sensitivity of non contractual items is arrived at in a
subjective fashion. Savings accounts are viewed as a relatively stable source of funds and are therefore
classified as intermediate funds.

At December 31, 2002, the “Static Gap” showed a positive cumulative gap of $217.8 miilion in the one
day to one year repricing period, as compared to a negative cumulative gap of $0.9 million at December 31,
2001. The cumulative gap at December 31, 2002 is due principally to mortgage backed and other securities
included in the one day to one year repricing categories, and the treatment of deposit accounts and other
borrowings, as discussed above. The change in the cumulative static gap between December 31, 2002 and
December 31, 2001 reflects increased expectation of prepayments and calls of securities with such provisions,
thereby shortening the estimated repricing dates, as well as increases in other short term securities, reflecting
management’s efforts to exercise caution in redeploying maturing funds. These shifts in estimated and actual
repricing dates resulted from the effects of continued declines in interest rates during 2002 and 2001.
Management believes that this strategy, together with additional restructuring of the average life of the
securities portfolio, has enabled the Company to be well positioned for the next rising rate cycle. Consistent
with this strategy, in the first quarter of 2003, the Company sold approximately $100 million of rapidly
prepaying securities, realized a $4.0 million pre-tax gain on disposition, and redeployed the proceeds into
securities with more predictable cash flows.

The Company uses the simulation analysis to estimate the effect that specific movements in interest rates
would have on net interest income. This analysis incorporates management assumptions about the levels of
future balance sheet trends, different patterns of interest rate movements, and changing relationships between
interest rates (i.e. basis risk). These assumptions have been developed through a combination of historical
analysis and future expected pricing behavior. For a given level of market interest rate changes, the simulation
can consider the impact of the varying behavior of cash flows from principal prepayments on the loan portfolio
and mortgage-backed securities, call activities on investment securities, balance charges on non contractual
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maturity deposit products (demand deposits, checking with interest, money market and savings accounts),
and embedded option risk by taking into account the effects of interest rate caps and floors. The impact of
planned growth and anticipated new business activities is not integrated into the simulation analysis. The
Company can assess the results of the simulation and, if necessary, implement suitable strategies to adjust the
structure of its assets and liabilities to reduce potential unacceptable risks to net interest income.

The Company’s policy limit on interest rate risk is that if interest rates were to gradually increase or
decrease 200 basis points from current rates, the percentage change in estimated net interest income for the
subsequent 12 month measurement period should not decline by more than 5.0 percent. Net interest income is
forecasted using various interest rate scenarios that management believes are reasonably likely to impact the
Company’s financial condition. A base case scenario, in which current interest rates remain stable, is used for
comparison to other scenario simulations. The table below illustrates the estimated exposures under a rising
rate scenario and a declining rate scenario calculated as a percentage change in estimated net interest income
from the base case scenario, assuming a gradual shift in interest rates for the next 12 month measurement
period, beginning December 31, 2002 and 2001. For 2002, a 100 basis point downward change in interest rates
was substituted for the 200 basis point downward scenario, as management believes that a 200 basis point
downward change is not meaningful in light of the current interest rate levels.

Percentagé Change in  Percentage Change in
Estimated Net Interest Estimated Net Interest

Income from Income from
Gradual Change in Interest Rates December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
4200 basis POINLS ... .ot 55% - (0.3)%
—200 basis points (—100 basis points in 2002) ........ 3.1)% (0.9)%

The percentage change in estimated net interest income for the subsequent 12 month measurement
period from December 31, 2002 in the 4200 basis points and — 100 basis points scenarios of 5.5% and
(3.1%), respectively, are within the Company’s policy limit of (5.0%).

As with any method of measuring interest rate risk, there are certain limitations inherent in the method of
analysis presented. Actual results may differ significantly from simulated results should market conditions and
management strategies, among other factors, vary from the assumptions used in the analysis. The model
assumes that certain assets and liabilities of similar maturity or period to repricing will react the same to
changes in interest rates, but, in reality, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates.
Specific types of financial instruments may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while
other types of financial instruments may lag behind changes in market interest rates. Additionally, other
assets, such as adjustable-rate loans, have features which restrict changes in interest rates on a short-term
basis and over the life of the asset. Furthermore, in the event of a change in interest rates, expected rates of
prepayments on loans and securities and early withdrawals from time deposits could deviate significantly from
those assumed in the simulation.

Cne way to minimize interest rate risk is to maintain a balanced or matched interest rate sensitivity
position. However, profits are not always maximized by matched funding. To increase net interest earnings, ’
the Company selectively mis-matches asset and liability repricing to take advantage of short-term interest rate
movements and the shape of the U.S. Treasury yield curve. The magnitude of the mismatch depends on a
careful assessment of the risks presented by forecasted interest rate movements. The risk inherent in such a
mismatch, or gap, is that interest rates may not move as anticipated.

Interest rate risk exposure is reviewed in quarterly meetings in which guidelines are established for the
following quarter and the longer term exposure. The structural interest rate mismatch is reviewed periodically
by ALSC and management.

Risk is mitigated by matching maturities or repricing more closely, and by reducing interest rate risk by
the use of interest rate contracts. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments extensively.
However, as circumstances warrant, the Company purchases derivatives such as interest rate contracts to
manage its interest rate exposure. Any derivative financial instruments are carefully evaluated to determine
the impact on the Company’s interest rate risk in rising and declining interest rate environments as well as the
fair value of the derivative instruments. Use of derivative financial instruments is included in the Bank’s
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Asset/Liability policy, which has been approved by the Board of Directors. Additional information on
derivative financial instruments is presented in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The tables below set forth the interest rate sensitivity analysis by repricing date at year end 2002 and

2001.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis By Repricing Date

December 31, 20602

Assets:

Loans,net .....................
Mortgage-backed securities . . . . ...
Other securities. . ...............
Other earning assets.............
Other assets ...... e
Total assets ....................
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity:
Interest bearing deposits..........
Other borrowed funds ...........
Demand deposits ...............
Other liabilities. . ...............

Net interest rate sensitivity gap. .. ..
Cumulative gap ................

Cumulative gap to interest-earning
ASSELS . ...

December 31, 2001

Assets:

Loans,net .....................
Mortgage-backed securities . . ... ..
Other securities. ................
Other earning assets.............
Other assets ...................
Total assets ....................
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity:
Interest bearing deposits..........
Other borrowed funds ...........
Demand deposits ...............
Other liabilities.................
Stockholders’ equity . ............

Total liabilities and stockholders’
equity ... ...

Net interest rate sensitivity gap. . ...
Cumulative gap ................

Cumulative gap to interest-earning
assets ... i

(000’s except percentages)

Over One
Day to Over Three  Over One Non-
Three Months to Year to QOver Five Interest
One Day Months One Year  Five Years Years Bearing Total
— $ 280,365 $ 48,283 $229,841 $ 79,191 $ 4,758 § 642,438
—_ 67,333 112,708 123,394 20,463 — 323,898
— 172,481 70,011 89,039 98,914 — 430,445
$ 29,393 — — — 312 — 29,705
_ _ — — — 80,397 80,397
29,393 520,179 231,002 442,274 198,880 85,155 1,506,883
— 373,559 50,935 12,564 143,748 — 580,806
43,409 72,478 22,434 104 188,958 — 327,383
— — — — — 446370 446,370
_ _ — — — 15,517 15,517
— — — — — 136,807 136,807
43,409 446,037 73,369 12,668 332,706 598,694 1,506,883
$(14,016) $§ 74,142 $157,633 $429,606 $(133,826) $(513,539) —
$(14,016) $ 60,126 $217,759 $647,365 §$ 513,539 — —
(0.98)% 4.21% 1527%  45.38% 36.00%
(000’s except percentages)
Over One
Day to Over Three  Over One Non-
Three Months to Year to Over Five Interest
One Day Months One Year  Five Years Years Bearing Total
— $ 256,517 $ 45,328 $197,809 §$ 100,723 — § 600,377
— 27,233 61,182 137,942 121,759 — 348,116
— 31,859 58,877 108,734 87,083 — 286,553
$ 76,300 — — — — — 76,300
— — — — — $ 61,107 61,107
76,300 315,609 165,387 444,485 309,565 61,107 1,372,453
— 364,322 51,437 10,893 119,613 — 546,265
38,401 103,984 22 30,371 179,942 — 352,720
— — — — — 342,112 342,112
— — — — — 18,014 18,014
— — — — — 113,342 113,342
38,401 468,306 51,459 41,264 299,555 473,468 $1,372,453
$ 37,899 $(152,697) $113,928 $403,221 $ 10,010 $(412,361) —
$ 37,899 $(114,798) $ (870) $402,351 § 412,361 — —
2.89% (8.75)% (0.07)% 30.68% 30.98%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Hudson Valley Holding Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and its
subsidiary, Hudson Valley Bank, (collectively the “Company”), as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the
related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and its subsidiary at December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

DEeLoiTTE & ToucHE LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
January 27, 2003
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HUDSON VALLEY HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSCOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts

2002 2001 2600

Interest Income:
Loans, including fees ......... .. i $48,469 $48,042 $42,272
Securities:

Taxable. ... 27,098 33,804 37,336

Exempt from Federal income taxes ................c.covvvnnn... 7,774 7,273 6,923
Federal funds sold. . ... oo 1,364 759 735
Deposits in banks ... 38 — —
Total interest INCOME .. ... it e e e 84,743 89,878 87,266
Interest Expense:
D ePOSItS . ot e e 7,885 18,450 25,742
Securities sold under repurchase agreements and other short-term

BOTTOWINGS .. . oottt e 2,317 5,855 10,181
Other bOTTOWINES . . - .ot e et e e e 12,780 8,212 4,862
Total interest XpensSe . . ... v et 22,982 32,517 40,785
Net Interest Income .. ... .. ... .. i 61,761 57,361 46,481
Provision for loan losses .. ... ... i 3,902 4,380 1,144
Net interest income after provision for loan losses . .................. 57,859 52,981 45,337
Non Interest Income:
Service Charges . ..ottt 1,599 1,192 1,127
Realized gain (loss) on sales of securities, net ...................... 54 (180) 692
O ICOIMIE . ot vt ottt et e e et e e 1,748 1,419 729
Total non interest INCOME .. .. ..o ittt it 3,401 2,431 2,548
Non Interest Expense:
Salaries and employee benefits .......... ... .. o 17,118 15,262 14,780
OCCUPANCY .« v v ettt e et e e e e e e e e 2,501 2,307 2,257
Professional SEIVICES ... ..ot vit i e 2,934 2,212 2,560
Equipment . ... ..o 1,936 1,887 1,723
Business development .. ... .. 1,490 1,119 948
FDIC a8S€5SMENt . oottt it ittt e e et et 164 166 165
Other operating eXpenses . . ... vvuern ettt 4,373 4,083 3,469
Total non INTErest EXPENSE . . oo vttt et ittt 30,516 27,036 25,902
Income Before Income Taxes ... ...t .. 30,744 28,376 21,983
Income Taxes . ... ..ot i e e 9,160 9,495 5,825
Net Income .. ... . e $21,534 $18,381 $16,158
Basic Earnings Per Common Share. . ............................. $ 3.69 $ 329 $ 285
Diluted Earnings Per Commen Share . ............................ $ 3.59 $ 320 $ 277

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HUDSON VALLEY HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
Dollars in thousands

2002 2001 2008
Net Income $21,584 $18,881 $16,158

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale arising during
the year 12,182 9,307 22,847

Income tax effect (4,340) {3,867) (9,365)
7,842 5,440 13,482

Reclassification adjustment for net (gain) loss realized on securities
available for sale (54) 180 (692)

Income tax effect 22 (75) 284
(32) 105 (408)
Unrealized holding gain on securities, net 7,810 5,545 13,074
Minimum pension liability adjustment (235) (17) (17)
Income tax effect 98 7 7

(137) (10) (10)

Other comprehensive income 7,673 5,535 13,064

Comprehensive Income $29,257 $24,416 $29,222

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HUDSON VALLEY HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Dollars in thousands, except per share and share amounts

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks . .. ... .
Federal funds sold . ... ..o i

Securities available for sale, at estimated fair value (amortized cost of
$721,933 in 2002 and $614,385in 2001) ... ... ... . . .

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) stock ...................

Loans (net of allowance for loan losses of $11,510 in 2002 and $8,018 in
2001) . v v e

Accrued interest and other receivables . ......... .. ... ... ... .
Premises and equipment, net ... ... o e
Other real estate owned . ... ... .. i e
Other A88ES . .. i e e

TOTAL ASSETS ...

LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Non interest-bearing ............ . ... i e
Interest-bearing ...... ..o e
Total deposits . ...ttt e
Securities sold under repurchase agreements and other short-term borrowings
Other BOTTOWINES . . .o\ttt et et e e e
Deferred InCOme taxes, IMet . ...t ut i et e e
Accrued interest and other liabilities .. ...... .. ... .. i
TOTAL LIABILITIES . ... e

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock, $0.20 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares; outstanding
5,887,600 and 5,260,158 shares in 2002 and 2001, respectively ............

Additional paid-in capital ................. P
Retained earmings. .. oo oottt
Accumulated other comprehensive income . .............. oo oL
Treasury stock, at Cost. ... .. .ot
Total stockholders’ equity ......... oot

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY ...............

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2002 2001
$ 48350 $ 29,821
29,393 76,300
743,884 624,209
10,459 10,459
642,438 600,377
9,043 8,976
12,629 12,129
1,831 2,021
8,856 8,161
$1,506,883  $1,372,453
$ 446,370  $ 342,112
580,806 546,265
1,027,176 888,377
139,212 143,529
188,171 209,191
825 3,958
14,692 14,056
1,370,076 1,259,111
1,366 1,232
146,393 125,057
894 4,829
12,688 5,015
(24,534) (22,791)
136,807 113,342
$1,506,883  $1,372,453




HUDSON VALLEY HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
Dollars in thousands, except share amounts

Accumulated
Number of Additional Other
Shares Common  Treasury Paid-In Retained  Comprehensive
Qutstanding  Stock Stock Capital Earnings  Income (Loss) Total

Balance at Janwary 1, 20006 ......... 4,223,599 $1,011 $(20,083) § 87,011 $ 13,955  $(13,584) §$ 68,310
Netincome.........c.oovvuinonn. 16,158 16,158
Exercise of stock options, net of tax .. 85,112 17 2,209 2,226
Purchase of treasury stock .......... (40,897) (1,436) (1,436)
Sale of treasury stock .............. 6,825 166 68 234
Stock dividend .................... 428,021 86 15,537  (15,623) —
Cash dividends .................... (5,211) (5,211)
Minimum pension liability adjustment . . (10) (10)
Net unrealized gain on securities

available forsale................. . 13,074 13,074
Balance at December 31, 2000....... 4,702,660 1,114  (21,353) 104,825 9,279 (520) 93,345
Netincome ..., 18,881 18,881
Exercise of stock options, net of tax .. 112,646 23 3,155 3,178
Purchase of treasury'stock .......... (48,677) (1,819) (1,819)
Sale of treasury stock .............. 15,225 381 192 573
Stock dividend .................... 478,304 95 16,885  (16,980) —
Cash dividends . ................... (6,351) (6,351)
Minimum pension liability adjustment . . (10) (10)
Net unrealized gain on securities

available forsale................. 5,545 5,545
Balance at December 31, 2001....... 5,260,158 1,232 (22,791) 125,057 4,829 5,015 113,342
Netincome ....................... 21,584 21,584
Exercise of stock options, net of tax .. 132,706 27 3,565 3,592
Purchase of treasury stock .......... (48,672) (1,949) (1,949)
Sale of treasury stock .............. 8,001 206 96 302
Stock dividend .................... 535,407 107 17,675  (17,782) —
Cash dividends . ................... (7,737) (7,737)
Minimum pension liability adjustment . . (137) (137)
Net unrealized gain on securities

available forsale................. 7,810 7,810
Balance at December 31, 2002. ..., .. 5,887,600 $1,366 $(24,534) $146,393 $894 § 12,688  $136,807

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HUDSON VALLEY HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2601 and 2000
Dollars in thousands

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2002 2001 2000
Operating Activities:
......................................................... $ 21,584 ¢ 18881 § 16,158
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

Provision for loan losses ....... ... . 3,902 4,380 1,144

Depreciation and amortization........... ... .. .. . . . e 1,703 1,841 1,697

Realized (gain) loss on security transactions, net ........................ (54) 180 (692)

Amortization of premiums on securities, net ............ ... i, 1,340 1,217 188

Realized gains on sale of loans held for sale, net .................. ...t — — (3)

Stock option expense and related tax benefits ... .............. .. ... . 592 321 —
Originations of loans held forsale............. ... ... ... ... . ... — — (612)
Proceeds from sale of loans held forsale ................................. - — 617
Deferred taxes (benefit) ...... PP (7,353) (1,629) 4,207
Increase (decrease) in deferred loan fees................................. (17) 141 (108)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest and other receivables................ (67) 5,628 (5,048)
Increase in Other 88SetS. . ..ottt it e (693) (894) (1,238)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest and other

.......................................................... 636 (598) 4,039
Other changes, Net ... ... ... it e (45) 79 169
Net cash provided by operating activities ................................ 21,526 29,547 20,516
Investing Activities:
Net (increase) decrease in short-term investments. ........................ 46,907 (69,000) 13,600
Increase in FHLB stock .. ... oo e et — (998) (100)
Proceeds from maturities of securities available forsale .................... 788,712 311,796 79,330
Proceeds from sales of securities available forsale ......................... 775 47,835 44,320
Purchases of securities available forsale ................................. (898,320)  (320,721)  (121,047)
(Increase) decrease in receivable for securities sold........................ — 44,326 (44,326)
Increase (decrease) in payable for securities purchased..................... — (14,913) 14,913
Netincrease in loans ............ . i i (45,946) (98,797) (94,223)
Net purchases of premises and equipment...... .. ... ... i oo, (2,203) (625) (1,310)
Net cash used in investing activities..................................... (110,075)  (101,097)  (108,843)
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ........ ... ... ... .., 3,000 2,857 2,133
Proceeds from sale of treasury Stock. . ... ... e 302 573 234
Net increase in deposits ... ..ot i e 138,799 8,802 124,729
Cash dividends paid ... ... .. ... i e e e (7,737) (6,351) (5,211)
Repayment of other borrowings . ... (21,020) (18) (30,275)
Proceeds from other borrowings ....... ... oo i — 121,250 24,000
Net decrease in securities sold under repurchase agreements and other short-

TEIMN DOITOWINES . . o oottt et et e e e e (4,317) (54,343) (21,612)
Purchase of treasury stock . ... ... i e (1,949) (1,819) (1,436)
Net cash provided by financing activities. . ............................ ... 107,078 70,951 92,562
Increase (decrease) in Cash and Due from Banks ........................ 18,529 (599) 4,235
Cash and due from banks, beginning of year............... ... ... ... 29,821 30,420 26,185
Cash and due from banks, end of year........... ... ... ... .. i $ 48,350 $ 29,821 § 30,420
Supplemental Disclosures:

......................................................... $ 23452 $ 34021 § 39,053
Income tax Payments . . ..o vttt e e e 17,332 10,031 4331
Change in unrealized gain on securities available for sale —net of tax ......... 7,810 5,545 13,074




HUDSON VALLEY HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY

NQOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dollars in thousands, except per share and share amounts

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Qperations and Basis of Presentation — The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hudson Valley Bank (the
“Bank”), (collectively the “Company”}. The Bank offers a broad range of lending and depository products to
businesses, individuals and government units through 13 branches and a business center in Westchester
County, New York, two branches in Bronx County, New York and one branch in Manhattan, New York. All
inter-company accounts are eliminated. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities as of the idate of the consolidated balance sheet and income and expenses for the period. Actual
results could differ significantly from those estimates. An estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant
change in the near term relates to the determination of the allowance for loan losses. In connection with the
determination of the allowance for loan losses, management utilizes the work of professional appraisers for
significant properties.

Securities — Securities are classified as either available for sale, representing securities the Bank may sell
in the ordinary course of business, or as held for investment, representing securities the Bank has the ability
and positive intent to hold until maturity. Securities available for sale are reported at fair value with unrealized
gains and losses (net of tax) excluded from operations and reported in other comprehensive income. Securities
held for investment are stated at amortized cost (specific identification). There were no securities held for
investment at December 31, 2002 and 2001. The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts is
determined by using the level yield method to the earlier of the call or maturity date. Securities are not
acquired for purposes of engaging in trading activities. Realized gains and losses from sales of securities are
determined using the specific identification method.

Loans — Loans are reported at their outstanding principal balance, net of charge-offs, and deferred loan
origination fees and costs. Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and
recognized over the life of the related loan or commitment as an adjustment to yield, or taken directly into
income when the related loan is sold or commitment expires.

Loans Held for Sale — Loans held for sale are valued at the lower of cost or market, decreases in the
carrying value, if any, are reported in earnings. Realized gains or losses on sales of loans are reported in
earnings in the period the sale occurs. There were no loans held for sale at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Interest Rate Contracts — The Company, from time to time, uses various interest rate contracts such as
forward rate agreements, interest rate swaps, caps and floors, primarily as hedges against specific assets and
liabilities. Statement of Financial Accounting (SFAS) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities-Deferral of the Effective Date of SFAS Statement No. 133,” which became effective on January 1,
2001, requires that all derivative instruments, including interest rate contracts, be recorded on the balance
sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are recorded each period in current
earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether a derivative is designated as part of a hedge
transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge transaction. The Company has two interest rate floor contracts, one
with a notional value of $25 million with a 4.5% strike rate and one with a notional value of $25 million with a
4.0% strike rate, which do not qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, the contracts
were accounted for at fair value with the resulting net gain of $1,105,000 and $832,000 included in other
income as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Under prior accounting, these contracts were
accounted for as hedges, with the premiums paid for them being amortized against interest income over the
life of the contract. The transition adjustment resulting from the adoption of SFAS No. 133 as of January 1,
2001 was not significant.
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HUDSON VALLEY HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Allowance for Loan Losses — The Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses to absorb losses inherent
in the loan portfolio based on ongoing quarterly assessments of the estimated losses. The Bank’s methodology
for assessing the appropriateness of the allowance consists of several key components, which include a specific
component for identified problem loans, a formula component, and an unallocated component. The specific
component incorporates the results of measuring impaired loans as provided in SFAS No. 114, “Accounting
by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” and SFAS No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a
Loan-Income Recognition and Disclosures.” These accounting standards prescribe the measurement meth-
ods, income recognition and disclosures related to impaired loans. A loan is recognized as impaired when it is
probable that principal and/or interest are not collectible in accordance with the loan’s contractual terms. A
loan is not deemed to be impaired if there is a short delay in receipt of payment or if, during a longer period of
delay, the Company expects to collect all amounts due including interest accrued at the contractual rate
during the period of delay. Measurement of impairment can be based on the present value of expected future
cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of
the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material
estimates that may be susceptible to significant change. If the fair value of the impaired loan is less than the
related recorded amount, a specific valuation allowance is established within the allowance for loan losses or a
writedown is charged against the allowance for loan losses if the impairment is considered to be permanent.
Measurement of impairment does not apply to large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans that are
collectively evaluated for impairment such as the Company’s portfolios of home equity loans, real estate
mortgages, installment and other loans.

The formula component is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by type. Loss factors
are based on historical loss experience. New loan types, for which there has been no historical loss experience,
as explained further below, is one of the considerations in determining the appropriateness of the unatlocated
component.

The appropriateness of the unallocated component is reviewed by management based upon its evaluation
of then-existing economic and business conditions affecting the key lending areas of the Bank and other
conditions, such as new loan products, credit quality trends (including trends in nonperforming loans expected
to result from existing conditions), collateral values, loan volumes and concentrations, specific industry
conditions within portfolio segments that existed as of the balance sheet date and the impact that such
conditions were believed to have had on the collectibility of the loan portfolio. Senior management reviews
these conditions quarterly. Management’s evaluation of the loss related to these conditions is reflected in the
unallocated component. Due to the inherent uncertainty in the process, management does not attempt to
quantify separate amounts for each of the conditions considered in estimating the unallocated component of
the allowance. The evaluation of the inherent loss with respect to these conditions is subject to a higher degree
of uncertainty because they are not identified with specific credits or portfolio segments.

Actual losses can vary significantly from the estimated amounts. The Bank’s methodology permits
adjustments to the allowance in the event that, in management’s judgment, significant factors which affect the
collectibility of the loan portfolio as of the evaluation date have changed.

Management believes the allowance for loan losses is the best estimate of probable losses which have
been incurred as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. There is no assurance that the Company will not be required
to make future adjustments to the allowance in response to changing economic conditions, particularly in the
Bank’s service area, since the majority of the Bank’s loans are collateralized by real estate. In addition, various
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of the examination process, periodically review the Bank’s allowance
for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additions to the allowance based on their
judgments at the time of their examination.

Loan Restructurings — Loan restructurings are renegotiated loans for which concessions have been
granted to the borrower that the Company would not have otherwise granted. Restructured loans are returned
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HUDSON VALLEY HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAE STATEMENTS — {Continued)

to accrual status when said loans have demonstrated performance, generally evidenced by six months of
payment performance in accordance with the restructured terms, or by the presence of other significant
factors.

Income Recognition on Loans — Interest on loans is accrued monthly. Net loan origination and
commitment fees are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of yield over the lives of the related loans.
Loans, including impaired loans, are placed on a non-accrual status when management believes that interest or
principal on such loans may not be collected in the normal course of business. When a loan is placed on non-
accrual status, all interest previously accrued, but not collected, is reversed against interest income. Interest
received on non-accrual loans generally is either applied against principal or reported as interest income, in
accordance with management’s judgment as to the collectibility of principal. Loans can be returned to
accruing status when they become current as to principal and interest, demonstrate a period of performance
under the contractual terms, and when, in management’s opinion, they are estimated to be fully collectible.

Premises and Equipment — Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets, generally 3 to 31.5 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the term of
the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Other Real Estate Owned — Real estate properties acquired through loan foreclosure are recorded at the
lower of cost or estimated fair value, net of estimated selling costs, at time of foreclosure. Credit losses arising
at the time of foreclosure are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent valuations are
periodically performed by management and the carrying value is adjusted by a charge to expense to reflect any
subsequent declines in the estimated fair value. Routine holding costs are charged to expense as incurred. Any
gains on dispositions of such properties reduce OREQ expense.

Income Taxes — Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
the change is enacted.

Transfers of Financial Assets — In September 2000, FASB issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”, replacing SFAS No. 125.
SFAS No. 140 revises the standard for accounting and reporting for transfers and servicing of financial assets
and extinguishments of liabilities, providing consistent guidelines for distinguishing transfers of financial assets
that are sales from transfers that are secured borrowings. SFAS No. 140 is effective for transfers, servicing, or
extinguishments occurring after March 31, 2001, except for certain provisions relating to the accounting and
disclosure for secured borrowings and collateral, for which the effective date was December 15, 2000. The
adoption of the remaining provisions of this statement did not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

Business Combinations — In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combination”
(“SFAS No. 141”). SFAS No. 141 requires the purchase method of accounting for business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the pooling-of-interests method. The adoption of SFAS No. 141
by the Company on July 1, 2001 did not have a significant impact on its financial position or results of
operations.

Stock-Based Compensation — The Company has stock option plans that provide for the granting of
options to directors, certain officers and to all ¢ligible employees. SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation,” encourages but does not require companies to record compensation cost for stock-
based employee compensation plans at fair value. In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,
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HUDSON VALLEY HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB State-
ment No. 123 (“SFAS No. 148”).” SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation. Prior to 2002, the
Company accounted for stock-based employee compensation plans under the recognition and measurement
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interpretations. Accordingly, no stock-based employee compensation cost was
recorded in 2001 or 2000 as all employee options granted during those years had an exercise price equal to the
market value of the underlying common stock on the dates of grant. Non-employee stock options were
expensed as of the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123 prospectively for all stock options granted, modified or settled on or after
January 1, 2002. Certain stock options under the Company’s plans vest over a five year period commencing
one year from date of grant. Therefore, the cost related to stock-based employee compensation included in the
determination of 2002 net income is less than that which would have been recognized if the fair value method
had been applied to all stock options granted since the original effective date of SFAS No. 123. The following
table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the fair value based method had been
applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in each period.

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Net income, asreported. .. ...... ... $21,584 $18,881  §$16,158
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in

reported net income, net of related tax effects .............. 204 — —
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under the fair value based method for all awards,

net of related tax effects. ........... ... ... ... . .. (256) (222) (351)
Proformanetincome. ...... ...t $21,532  $18,659  $15,807
Earnings per share:

Basic—asreported ......... ... ... $ 369 $ 329 § 285

Basic—proforma .......... ... . i 3.68 3.25 2.79

Diluted —asreported. .. ... $ 359 § 320 $ 277

Diluted —proforma......... ... ... i 3.58 3.16 2.71

The fair value (present value of the estimated future benefit to the option holder) of each option grant in
2002, 2001 and 2000 is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively: dividend yield of
3.8%, 3.5% and 3.5%; average expected volatility of 9%, 10% and 10%; average risk-free interest rates of 4.11%,
4.36% and 5.05% and expected life of 5 years for 2002, and 6 years for 2001 and 2000. All option grants expire
within 10 years of the date of grant. The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2002, 2001 and
2000 was $2.84, $3.08 and $3.42, respectively.

Earnings per Common Share — SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share,” establishes standards for
computing and presenting earnings per share. The statement requires disclosure of basic earnings per common
share (i.e. common stock equivalents are not considered) and diluted earnings per common share (i.e.
common stock equivalents are considered using the treasury stock method) on the face of the statement of
operations, along with a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of basic and diluted earnings per
share. Basic earnings per common share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. The computation of diluted earnings per common
share is similar to the computation of basic earnings per share except that the denominator is increased to
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include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the dilutive potential
common shares, consisting solely of stock options, had been issued.

Weighted average common shares outstanding used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share were
as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Weighted average common shares:
Basic ... e 5,847,879 5,745,852 5,668,855
Effect of stock options......... ..ot 160,548 154,796 163,816
Diluted ... .. .. e 6,008,427 5,900,648 5,832,671

In December 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Board of Directors of the Company declared 10 percent stock
dividends. Share amounts have been retroactively restated to reflect the issuance of the additional shares.

Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information — SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures
About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” establishes standards for the way business
enterprises report information about operating segments in annual financial statements and requires that those
enterprises report selected information about operating segments in subsequent interim financial reports issued
to shareholders. It also establishes standards for related disclosure about products and services, geographic
areas, and major customers. The statement requires that a business enterprise report financial and descriptive
information about its reportable operating segments. Operating segments are components of an enterprise
about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance. The statement also requires that
business enterprises report a measure of segment profit or loss, certain specific revenue and expense items and
segment assets. It also requires that information be reported about revenues derived from the enterprises’
products or services, or about the countries in which the enterprises earn revenues and holds assets, and about
major customers, regardless of whether that information is used in making operating decisions. The Company
has one operating segment, “Community Banking.”

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets — In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”) which became effective January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 142
requires, among other things, the discontinuance of goodwill amortization as well as provisions for the
reclassification of certain existing recognized intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the useful lives of
existing recognized intangibles and the identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing future
impairments of goodwill. SFAS No. 142 also required a transitional goodwill impairment test six months from
the date of adoption. The adoption of SFAS No. 142 by the Company on January 1, 2002 did not have a
significant impact on its financial positions or results of operations.

Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets — In August 2001, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144”)
which supersedes SFAS No. 121 and portions of APB Opinion No. 30. This statement addresses the
recognition of an impairment loss for long-lived assets to be held and used, or disposed of by sale or otherwise.
This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001
and interim periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 by the Company on January 1,
2002 did not have a significant impact on its financial positions or resuits of operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections” (“SFAS No. 145”). This statement
clarifies guidance related to the reporting of gains and losses from extinguishment of debt and resolves
inconsistencies related to the required accounting treatment of certain lease modifications. The provisions of
this statement relating to the extinguishment of debt become effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
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years beginning after May 15, 2002. The provisions of this statement relating to lease modification are
effective for transactions occurring after May 15, 2002. The adoption of the effective provisions of SFAS
No. 145 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations and the
Company does not believe that the adoption of the remaining provisions will have a significant impact on its
financial position or results of operations.

Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions — In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147,
“Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions” (“SFAS No. 147’) which became effective October 1, 2002.
SFAS No. 147 removes acquisitions of financial institutions from the scope of SFAS No. 72, “Accounting for
Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions” and FASB Interpretation No. 9, “Applying APB
Opinions No. 16 and 17” “When a Savings and Loan Association or Similar Association is Acquired in a
Business Combination Accounted for by the Purchase Method” and requires that those transactions be
accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets.” In addition, SFAS No. 147 amends SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” to include in its scope long-term customer relationship
intangible assets of financial institutions. The adoption of SFAS No. 147 by the Company on October 1, 2002
did not have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Other — Certain 2001 and 2000 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2002 presentation.
Pending Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities — In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” (“SFAS No. 146”). The
statement specifies the accounting for certain employee termination benefits, contract termination costs and
costs to consolidate facilities or relocate employees and is effective for exit and disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 146 by the Company on January 1, 2003 will not have a
significant effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

2 Securities

December 31
2002 2001
Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Yalue
Classified as Available for Sale
U.S. Treasury and government
agencies .......... .. $223,005 $ 1,671 $ 2 $224674 $105,838 $ 1,344 $ 399 $106,783
Mortgage-backed securities ......... 323,898 10,309 208 333,999 348,116 5,052 398 352,770
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions ......... .. . o0 167,346 9,469 4 176,811 155,742 4,275 484 159,533
Other debt securities ............... 6,714 288 — 7,002 3,817 25 40 3,802
Total debt securities ............... 720,963 21,737 214 742486 613,513 10,696 1,321 622,888
Equity securities .................. 970 428 — 1,398 872 449 — 1,321
Total ........... .. .. . $721,933  $22,165 $214 $743,884 $614,385 $11,145 $1,321 $624,209

At December 31, 2002, securities having a stated value of approximately $398,176 were pledged to secure
public deposits, securities sold under agreements to repurchase, and for other purposes as required or
permitted by law.

Gross gains of $34, gross losses of $180 and gross gains of $692 were recorded as a result of securities
available for sale sold or redeemed in 2002, 2001 and 2000 respectively. Applicable income taxes relating to
such transactions were $22, $(75) and $284 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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The contractual maturity of all debt securities held at December 31, 2002 is shown below. Actual
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because some issuers have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Available for Sale

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Contractual Maturity ‘
WIthin 1 year . ... ..o $161,344 $161,450
After 1 but within Syears. ... .. ... i i 50,882 53,558
After 5 but within 10 years.......... ... i 69,959 73,934
After 10 years. ... oo 114,880 119,545
Mortgage-backed Securities .. ...... ... 323,898 333,999
Total .o $720,963 $742,486

3 Credit Commitments and Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Bank has outstanding, at any time, a significant number of commitments to extend credit and also
provide financial guarantees to third parties. Those arrangements are subject to strict credit control
assessments. Guarantees specify limits to the Bank’s obligations. The amounts of those loan commitments and
guarantees are set out in the following table. Because many commitments and almost all guarantees expire
without being funded in whole or in part, the contract amounts are not estimates of future cash flows.

2002 2001
Contract Contract
Amount Amount
Credit COmMMITMENTS .. o0ttt e e e e $129,442 $130,191
Guarantees WItteN . .. .ot vttt $ 5,287 § 4,749

The majority of loan commitments have terms up to one year, with either a floating interest rate or
contracted fixed interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 8.50%. Guarantees written generally have terms up to one
year,

Loan commitments and guarantees written have off-balance-sheet credit risk because only origination
fees and accruals for probable losses are recognized in the balance sheet until the commitments are fulfilled or
the guarantees expire. Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date
if counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted. The credit risk amounts are equal to the
contractual amounts, assuming that the amounts are fully advanced and that, in accordance with the
requirements of SFAS No. 105, “Disclosure of Information about Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-
Sheet Risk and Financial Instruments with Concentrations of Credit Risk,” collateral or other security would
have no value.

The Bank’s pelicy is to require customers to provide collateral prior to the disbursement of approved
loans. For loans and financial guarantees, the Bank usunally retains a security interest in the property or
products financed or other collateral which provides repossession rights in the event of default by the
customer.

Concentrations of credit risk (whether on or off-balance-sheet) arising from financial instruments exist in
relation to certain groups of customers. A group concentration arises when a number of counterparties have
similar economic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic or other conditions. The Bank does not have a significant exposure to any
individual customer or counterparty. A geographic concentration arises because the Bank operates principally
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in Westchester County and Bronx County, New York. Loans and credit commitments collateralized by real
estate including all loans where real estate is either primary or secondary collateral are as follows:

Residential Commercial
Property Property Total

2002
Loans . ... $181,564 $342,360 $523,924
Credit commitments .. ... .. 27,269 76,223 103,492

$208,833 $418,583 $627,416
2001
Loans ... $183,160 $300,082 $483,242
Credit commitments .. .......ovtrinniniinennnn.n. 24,307 78,693 103,000

$207,467 $378,775 $586,242

The credit risk amounts represent the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized at the
reporting date if counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted and any collateral or security
proved to have no value. The Bank has experienced little difficulty in accessing collateral when required.

4 Loans

The loan portfolio is comprised of the following:

DBecember 31

2002 2001

Real Estate:

Commercial ... ... e $231,411 $210,840

CONSITUCHION . .o oo e e 56,691 52,496

Residential . ... ... . . 164,287 174,859
Commercial and industrial . ...... .. ... . 179,288 140,573
Individuals ... ... 14,509 11,824
Lease financing. .. ... ... ..t i 9,224 19,282
Total e 655,410 609,874
Deferred loan fees . ...... ... i e (1,462) (1,479)
Allowance for 10an 10SS€s . ... ... i (11,510) (8,018)
Loans, et ..o $642,438 $600,377

The Bank has established credit policies applicable to each type of lending activity in which it engages.
The Bank evaluates the credit worthiness of each customer and extends credit based on credit history, ability
to repay and market value of collateral. The customers’ credit worthiness is monitored on an ongoing basis.
Additional collateral is obtained when warranted. Real estate is the primary form of collateral. Other
important forms of coliateral are bank deposits and marketable securities. While collateral provides assurance
as a secondary source of repayment, the Bank ordinarily requires the primary source of payment to be based on
the borrower’s ability to generate continuing cash flows.
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A summary of the activity in the allowance for loan losses follows:

December 31
2002 2001 2600
Balance, beginning of year $ 8,018 $ 4,816 $4,047
Add (deduct):
Provision for loan losses 3,902 4,380 1,144
Recoveries .on loans previously charged-off 69 250 53
Charge-offs (479) (1,428) (428)

Balance, end of year $11,510 $ 8,018 $4,816

The recorded investment in impaired loans at December 31, 2002 was $4,672 for which an allowance of
$1,282 has been established. The recorded investment in impaired loans at December 31, 2001 was $2,485, for
which an allowance of $807 had been established. Generally, the fair value of these loans was determined
using the fair value of the underlying collateral of the loan.

The average investment in impaired loans during 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $3,519, $2,317 and $2,154,
respectively. During the years reported, no income was recorded on impaired loans during the portion of the
year that they were impaired.

Non-accrual and restructured loans at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 and related interest income are
summarized as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Non-Accrual Restructured Non-Accrual Restructured Nomn-Accruai Restructured
Loans Loans Loans Loans Loans Loans
Amount ................... T $4,758 — $3,523 — $4,584 —

Interest income recorded ... .. — — —_ —_ —_ —

Interest income that would
have been recorded under
the original contract terms. . 179 — 334 — 586 —

Non-accrual loans at December 31, 2002 and 2001 include $4,172 and $2,485, respectively, of loans
considered to be impaired under SFAS No. 114,

Loans made directly or indirectly to employees, directors or principal shareholders were approximately
$17,192 and $17,239 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. During 2002, new loans granted to these
individuals and the effects of changes in board member composition totaled $688 and payments totaled $73S5.
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5 Premises and Equipment

A summary of premises and equipment follows:

December 31

2002 2001
Land . $ 1,139 $ 1,139
Buildings .. ...oo oo e 10,715 10,452
Leasehold improvements . .. ... ... ... i 2,485 2,106
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ..........c.ovviiiiiinneneinianns., 13,011 11,592
AUtomoObIles . ... . 447 321
Total Lo 27,797 25,610
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .. ..................... 15,168 13,481
Premises and equipment, net ............ ... .. i $12,629 $12,129

6 Berrowings

Borrowings with original maturities of one year or less totaled $139,212 and $143,529 at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively. Such short-term borrowings consisted of securities sold under agreements to
repurchase of $139,212 and $143,529 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Other borrowings totaled
$188,171 and $209,191 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, consisting of borrowings from FHLB
with stated maturities of ten years and 1 to 4 year call options.

Interest expense on all borrowings totaled $15,097, $14,067 and $15,043 in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. In December 2002, the Company prepaid $21 million of it’s FHLB borrowings resulting in a
prepayment penalty of $2.6 million. This penalty is included in interest expense on other borrowings in the
2002 Consolidated Statement of Income. Excluding the aforementioned prepayment penalty, the weighted
average interest rate on other borrowings for 2002 was 4.9%. The following table summarizes the average
balances, weighted average interest rates and the maximum month-end outstanding amounts of securities sold
under agreements to repurchase and FHLB borrowings for each of the years:

2002 2001 2000

Average balance:

Short-term .. ...ttt i $148,555 $154,311 $165,993

Other Borrowings ........... ... i, 208,886 160,255 89,011
Weighted average interest rate:

Short-term . ... e 1.6% 3.8% 6.1%

Other Borrowings ............. . .o i, 6.1 5.1 5.5
Maximum month-end outstanding amount: ‘

Short-term . . oottt $161,757 $164,222 $197,889

Other Borrowings ........ ..., 209,191 209,191 94,229

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, these borrowings were collateralized by loans and securities with an
estimated fair value of $343,752 and $370,356, respectively.

In addition, at December 31, 2002, the Bank had available unused lines of credit of $120 million from
FHLB, and $25 million from correspondent banks. In addition, the Bank has $110 million in available
borrowings under Retail CD Agreements with two major investment banking firms, all of which are subject to
various terms and conditions.
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7 Income Taxes
A reconciliation of the income tax provision and the amount computed using the federal statutory rate is
as follows:

Years Ended December 31
2002 2001 2000

Income tax at statutory rate $10,761 35.0% $ 9,932 35.0% $ 7,474 34.0%
State income tax, net of Federal

3.4 1,036 3.7 472 2.1
Tax-exempt interest income (2,592) (8.4) (2,334) (8.2) (2,032)  (9.2)
Non-deductible expenses and other 47  (0.2) 861 3.0 (89) (04)

Provision for income taxes 29.8% $ 9,495 33.5% $ 5,825 26.5%

The components of the provision for income taxes (benefit) are as follows:

Years Ended December 31
2002 2001 2000

Federal:
$14,194 $ 9,113 $ 866
(6,398) (1,164) 4,218

CUITEN . ettt e e e e 2,319 2,011 206
Deferred . ... {955) (465) 535
oAl . .. e $ 9,160 $ 9,495 $5,825

The tax effect of temporary differences giving rise to the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are
as follows:

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Allowance for Joan losses.......... ... iiivn... $4,652 $3,243
Treasury securities . .............veieineennenn... $ 375
Supplemental pension benefit ..................... 1,519 1,334
Minimum pension liability........................ 579 480
Deferred compensation........................... 702 697
Securities available forsale ....................... $8.,406 4,088
Interest on non-accrual loans ..................... 200 263
Undistributed income from subsidiary .............. 5,345
SFAS 123 compensation cost ..................... 87
Depreciation .......... ..ottt 158 188
Other ... . 21

$7,739 $8,564 $6,038 $9,996

8 Stockholders” Equity and Stock Options

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the
Federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory —
and possibly additional discretionary — actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material
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effect on their financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments
by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the
Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier I capital (as
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as defined) to average

assets (as defined).

Management believes, as of December 31, 2002, that both the Company and the Bank meet all capital
adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

The following summarizes the capital requirements and capital position at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Bank Only
As of December 31, 2001:

Total Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) ..
Tier 1 Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) ..

Tier 1 Capital (To Average Assets)
As of December 31, 2002:

Total Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) ..
Tier 1 Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets) ..

Tier 1 Capital (To Average Assets)

Consolidated

As of December 31, 2001:
Total Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets)

Tier 1 Capital (To Average Assets)......

As of December 31, 2002:
Total Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (To Risk Weighted Assets)

Tier 1 Capital (To Average Assets)......

Minimum For

Minimum
To Be Well
Capitalized Under

Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provision
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
$114,590 16.5% $55,667 8.0%  $69,583 10.0%
106,572 15.3 27,833 4.0 41,750 6.0
.. 106,572 7.9 53,992 4.0 67,490 5.0
$131,497 18.3% $57,554 8.0% $71,943 10.0%
122,504 17.0 28,777 4.0 43,165 6.0
.. 122,504 8.3 59,318 4.0 74,148 5.0
Minimum For
Capital
Actual Adequacy Purposes
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
................... $115,059 16.5%  $55,735 8.0%
................... 107,041 154 27,867 4.0
................... 107,041 7.9 54,027 4.0
................... $131,839 18.3% $57,630 8.0%
................... 122,834 17.0 28,815 4.0
................... 122,834 8.3 59,341 4.0

As of December 31, 2002, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well
capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized,
the Bank must maintain minimum total risk based, Tier 1 risk based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in
the table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the

institution’s category.

Stock Dividend

In December 2002 and 2001 the Board of Directors of the Company declared 10 percent stock dividends.
Share and per share amounts have been retroactively restated to reflect the issuance of the additional shares.
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Stock Options

The Company has stock option plans that provide for the granting of options to directors, certain officers,
and to all eligible employees. Options to purchase 466,414 shares of common stock were outstanding at
December 31, 2002 under all plans. The stock options are exercisable at prices that approximate the market
value of the Company’s stock at dates of grant. Certain options become exercisable in up to five annual
installments, commencing one year from date of grant. Other options become exercisable in their entirety,
upon completion of S years of service. Options have a maximum duration of 10 years.

Stock option transactions under the Plans were as follows:

Shares Weighted
Underlying Average Exercise
QCutstanding Options Options Price Per Share
As of January 1, 2000 ... ... .0t 348,932 $13.89
Granted . . ... 186,729 24.11
Cancelled orexpired ........ ... .. ... i (5,326) 21.70
Exercised ....... ... . (112,814) 18.91
As of December 31,2000 .. ...... ... .. i 417,521 17.01
Granted . . ... e 174,463 28.01
Cancelled orexpired ........ ... ... . ... i (4,301) 25.51
Exercised . ... ... i (135,796) 21.03
As of December 31, 2001 ... .. ... ... ... 451,887 19.96
Granted . .. ... e e 164,335 32.29
Cancelled or expired ... ... (4,854) 31.24
Exercised ........coo i (144,954) 20.70
Asof December 31,2002 ... ... ... . . 466,414 23.96
Exercisable as of December 31,2002 ................ ... ...... 423,323 23.32
Available for future grant ........... ... ... . 703,458

The following table summarizes the range of exercise prices of the Company’s stock options outstanding
and exercisable at December 31, 2002:
Weighted Average

Number of Remaining Exercise
Exercise Price Options Life (yrs) Price
$ 8.49 to $20.98 146,852 37 $14.43
21.02 to 27.91 181,115 7.2 25.78
2792 to 33.21 138,447 8.9 31.69
$ 8.49 to $33.21 466,414 6.6 $23.96
Exercisable ....................... $ 8.49 to $33.21 423,323 6.4 $23.32
Not Exercisable .. ................. $19.40 to $33.21 43,091 8.5 $30.28

9 Benefit Plans

The Hudson Valley Bank Employees’ Defined Contribution Pension Plan covers substantially all
employees. Pension costs accrued and charged to current operations include 5 percent of each participant’s
earnings during the year. Pension costs charged to other operating expenses (including pension costs for
directors) totaled approximately $756, $785 and $400 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Hudson Valley Bank Employees’ Savings Plan covers substantially all employees. The Bank matches
25 percent of employee contributions annually, up to 4 percent of base salary. Savings Plan costs charged to
expense totaled approximately $74, $67 and $64 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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The Company does not offer its own stock as an investment to participants of the Employees’ Savings
Plan. The Company’s matching contribution under the Employees’ Savings Plan as well as its contribution to
the Defined Contribution Pension Plan is in the form of cash. Neither plan holds any shares of the Company’s
Stock.

Additional retirement benefits are provided to certain officers pursuant to supplemental plans. Costs for
the officers’ supplemental pension plan totaled approximately $617, $650 and $605 in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The Bank records an additional minimum pension liability to the extent that its accumulated
pension benefit obligation exceeds the fair value of pension plan assets and accrued pension liabilities. This
additional minimum pension liability is offset by an intangible asset, not to exceed prior service costs and of
the pension plan. Amounts in excess of prior service costs are reflected as a reduction in other comprehensive
income net of related tax benefits.

The following tables set forth the status of the Bank’s plans as of December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year ........... ... ... ... .. $ 5,709 $ 4,995
STVICE COBE. . it e e e 180 223
Interest oSt . ..ot e e 396 356
Actuarial (gain) 1oSs . ... .. . e 813 634
Benefits paid .. ...t e (482) (499)

Benefit obligation at end of year ......... .. ... .. ... .. 6,616 5,709

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year.......................... — —
Actual Teturn Om @SSELS . ... v v vt e — —
Employer contributions . ... ... ..o 482 499
Benefits paid ... ... e (482) (499)

Fair value of plan assets atendof year............................... — —

Funded status . ... . i i (6,616) (5,709)

Unrecognized transition obligation.................... ... ........... 227 318

Unrecognized Prior SEIVICE COSt ... v vttt iin e ciie e 273 317

Unrecognized net 1085 ... ..o e 2,250 1,665

Accrued benefit cost ... ... . e $(3,866)  $(3,409)

Weighted average assumptions:

Discountrate ................. e 6.25% 7.00%

Expected return on plan assets. . .........c.ooveiiiiiiiiii i — —

Rate of compensation inCrease . ............vveiinneinnenenneennn.. 5.00% 4.00%

Components of net periodic benefit cost:

S EIVICE COSE. . vttt e $ 180 $ 223

Interest Cost . ..o 396 356

Expected return on plan @ssets . . ...ttt e — —

Amortization of transition obligation ..................... . . el 91 91

Amortization of prior service cost ........ ... i i 44 44

Amortization of net 10SS ... ... . 220 321

Net periodic benefit cost......... ... oo i i e $ 931 $ 1,035
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Set forth below is a summary of the amounts reflected in the Bank’s balance sheets as of December 31:

2002 2001
Accrued benefit liability .......... ... ... . $(5,795)  $(5,245)
Intangible asset. ... ...ouiui i 500 635
Accumulated other comprehensive income (pre-tax net reduction in
T 133 ) T PO 1,429 1,201
Accrued benefit CoSt . ... ... e $(3,866)  $(3,409)

10 Commitments, Contingent Liabilities and Other Disclosures

The Company is obligated under leases for certain of its branches and equipment. Minimum rental
commitments for bank premises and equipment under noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

Year ending [December 31,

20003 L $ 631
2004 L e 338
2005 258
2006 . e 122
2007 L e e 58
Thereafter ... 223
Total minimum future tentals ... ...ttt $1,630

Rent expense for premises and equipment was approximately $993, $833 and $783 in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. In the normal course of business, there are various outstanding commitments and
contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the consolidated balance sheets. No losses are anticipated as a
result of these transactions.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is party to various legal proceedings, none of which, in
the opinion of management, will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or
results of operations.

At December 31, 2002, the Company was a party to two interest rate floor agreements, as more fully
discussed in Note 1 to these consolidated financial statements. These agreements are subject to the
counterparties’ ability to perform in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

Cash Reserve Reguirements

The Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances under the Federal Reserve Act and
Regulation D issued thereunder. Such reserves totaled approximately $1,559 at December 31, 2002 and $941
at December 31, 2001.

Restrictions on Funds Transfers

There are various restrictions which limit the ability of a bank subsidiary to transfer funds in the form of
cash dividends, loans or advances to the parent company. Under federal law, the approval of the primary
regulator is required if dividends declared by the Bank in any year exceed the net profits of that year, as
defined, combined with the retained net profits for the two preceding years. ‘

11 Segment Information

The Company has one reportable segment, “Community Banking.” All of the Company’s activities are
interrelated, and each activity is dependent and assessed based on how each of the activities of the Company
supports the others. For example, commercial lending is dependent upon the ability of the Bank to fund itself
with retail deposits and other borrowings and to manage interest rate and credit risk. This situation is also
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similar for consumer and residential mortgage lending. Accordingly, all significant operating decisions are
based upon analysis of the Company as one operating segment or unit.

General information required by SFAS No. 131 is disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements
and accompanying notes. The Company operates only in the U.S. domestic market, primarily the counties of
Westchester and Bronx, New York. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, there is no
customer that accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s revenue.

12 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” requires the disclosure of the
estimated fair value of certain financial instruments. These estimated fair values as of December 31, 2002 and
2001 have been determined using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies.
Considerable judgment is required to interpret market data to develop estimates of fair value. The estimates
presented are not necessarily indicative of amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange.
The use of alternative market assumptions and estimation methodologies could have had a material effect on
these estimates of fair value.

December 3]

2002 2001
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(In millions)
Assets:
Financial assets for which carrying value approximates fair
value . .. $ 79.6 $ 79.6 $108.1 $108.1
Securities, FHLB stock and accrued interest. ............ 758.7 758.7 640.1 640.1
Loans and accrued interest ......... ... ... ... ... ... 656.8 660.9 611.1 614.1
Interest Rate Floor Contracts ......................... 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8
Liabilities:
Deposits with no stated maturity and accrued interest. . ... 862.3 862.3 655.8 655.8
Time deposits and accrued interest..................... 166.0 164.5 234.1 233.0
Securities sold under repurchase agreements and other
short-term borrowings and accrued interest............ 139.3 139.3 143.8 143.8
Other borrowings and accrued interest.................. 189.3 176.0 210.3 208.2
Financial liabilities for which carrying value approximates
fairvalue ... ... — — — —

The estimated fair value of the indicated items was determined as follows:

Financial assets for which carrying value approximates fair value — The estimated fair value
approximates carrying amount because of the immediate availability of these funds or based on the short
maturities and current rates for similar deposits. Cash and due from banks as well as Federal funds sold
are reported in this line item.

Securities, FHLB stock and accrued interest — The fair value was estimated based on quoted market
prices or dealer quotations. FHLB stock and accrued interest are stated at their carrying amounts.

Loans and accrued interest — The fair value of loans was estimated by discounting projected cash
flows at the reporting date using current rates for similar loans, reduced by specific and general loan loss
allowances. Additionally, under SFAS No. 114, all loans considered impaired are reported at either the
fair value of collateral or present value of expected future cash flows. Accrued interest is stated at its
carrying amount.

Deposits with no stated maturity and accrued interest — The estimated fair value of deposits with no
stated maturity and accrued interest, as applicable, are considered to be equal to their carrying amounts.
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Time deposits and accrued interest — The fair value of time deposits has been estimated by
discounting projected cash flows at the reporting date using current rates for similar deposits. Accrued
interest is stated at its carrying amount.

Securities sold under repurchase agreements and other short-term borrowings and accrued inter-
est — The estimated fair value of these instruments approximate carrying amount because of their short
maturities and variable rates. Accrued interest is stated at its carrying amount.

Other borrowings and accrued interest — The fair value of callable FHLB advances was estimated
by discounting projected cash flows at the reporting date using the rate applicable to the projected call
date option. Acccrued interest is stated at its carrying amount.

Interest rate floor contracts — The fair value was estimated using quoted market prices or dealer
quotations.

13 Condensed Financial Information of Hudson Vailey Holding Corp.
(Parent Company Only)

Condensed Balance Sheets
December 31, 2002 and 2001
Dollars in thousands

2002 2001

Assets
Cash .o $ 249 $ 444
Investment in subsidiary ....... ... . . e 136,224 112,625
EqUity SECUTTHES . . 1 ¢\t ettt et e e e e 998 896
Total ASSOES ... e $137,471 $113,965
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Other Habillties . . . oo e et e e e e e $ 664 $ 623
Stockholders” equity ... ... i e 136,807 113,342
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ..... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ..., $137,471 $113,965
Condensed Statements of Income
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
Dollars in thousands

2002 2001 2000
Dividends from the Bank .. ... ... . . i $ 6,406 $ 5,058 $ 3,926
Dividends from equity SECUTTHES . . ... ..ottt it 38 56 29
Other IO . . . o v e 1 — 25
OPErating CXPEMBES . . .« v vt ettt et et e e e 200 291 375
Income before equity in undistributed earnings in the Bank ........... 6,245 4,823 3,605
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Bank ......... B 15,339 14,058 12,553
Nl ImCOmMIE . oottt e e e e $21,584 $18,881 $16,158
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
Dollars in thousands

Operating Activities:

Nt INCOMIE . .t ittt et e e e e e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Equity in undistributed earnings of the Bank ...................
Increase in other liabilities. .......... .. ... ... i it
(Increase) decrease in other assets................coovveenn...
Other changes, net ....... ... 0 ittt

Net cash provided by operating activities ........................

Investing Activities:

Proceeds from sales of equity securities . .........................
Purchase of equity securities ... ...,

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities ..................

Financing Activities:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock and sale of treasury stock . .
Purchase of treasury stock . ......... ..o
Cash dividends paid ........ ... .o i,

Net cash used in financing activities ............................

Increase (decrease) in Cash and Due from Banks ................
Cash and due from banks, beginning of year......................

Cash and due from banks, end of year. ..........................
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2002 2001 2000
$ 21,584  $ 18,881  $16,158
(15,339)  (14,058)  (12,553)
41 174 83
— — 26
— — 2
6,286 4,997 3,716
3 — 275
(100) (21) (23)
(97) (21) 252
3,302 3,430 2,367
(1,949) (1,819)  (1,436)
(1,737) (6,351)  (5211)
(6,384) (4,740)  (4,280)
(195) 236 (312)
444 208 520
$ 249 $ 444 $ 208




MANAGEMENT’S REPORT TO THE STOCCKHOLDERS

January 27, 2003
To the Stockholders of Hudson Valley Holding Corp.
Consolidated Financial Statements

The management of Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and its subsidiary, Hudson Valley Bank, (collectively
the “Company”), fis responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of its published
consolidated financial statements and all other information presented in this Annual Report. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and, as such, include amounts based on informed judgments and estimates made by
management. \

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by an independent accounting firm, which was
given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all meetings of the
stockholders, the Board of Directors and committees of the Board of Directors. Management believes all
representations made to the independent auditors during their audit were valid and appropriate.

Interna] Controf

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting, including safeguarding of assets, for financial presentations in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and, for Hudson Valley Bank, in conformity with the
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and
Income (Call Report Instructions). The internal control contains monitoring mechanisms, and actions are
taken to correct deficiencies identified.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of internal control, including the possibility of human
error and the circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal control can provide
only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in
conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may vary over time.

Management assessed the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, including safeguarding of
assets, for financial presentations in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and, for Hudson Valley Bank, in conformity with the Call Report Instructions as of
December 31, 2002. This assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control over financial
reporting, including safeguarding of assets, established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment,
management believes that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting,
including safeguarding of assets, presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and, for Hudson Valley Bank, in conformity with the Call Report Instructions, as of
December 31, 2002.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised entirely of outside directors who are
independent of the Company’s management. The Audit Committee is responsible for recommending to the
Board of Directors the selection of independent auditors. The Audit Committee meets periodically with
management, the independent auditors, and the internal auditors to ensure that they are carrying out their
responsibilities. The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing an oversight role by reviewing and
monitoring the financial, accounting and auditing procedures of the Company in addition to reviewing the
Company’s consolidated financial reports. The independent auditors and the internal auditors have full and
free access to the Audit Committee, with or without the presence of management, to discuss the adequacy of
internal control over financial reporting and any other matters which they believe should be brought to the
attention of the Audit Committee.
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Compliance With Laws and Regulations

Management is also responsible for ensuring compliance with the federal laws and regulations concerning
loans to insiders and the federal and state laws and regulations concerning dividend restrictions, both of which
are designated by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) as safety and soundness laws and
regulations.

Management assessed Hudson Valley Bank’s compliance with the designated safety and soundness laws
and regulations and has maintained records of its determinations and assessments as required by the FDIC.
Based on this assessment, management believes that Hudson Valley Bank has complied, in all material
respects, with the designated safety and soundness laws and regulations for the year ended December 31, 2002.

James J. Landy Stephen R. Brown
President & Senior Executive Vice President,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer &

Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Hudson Valley Holding Corp.

We have examined management’s assertion, included in the accompanying Management’s Report to
Stockholders, that Hudson Valley Holding Corp. and its subsidiary, Hudson Valley Bank (collectively the
“Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting, including safeguarding of assets,
presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and,
for Hudson Valley Bank, in conformity with the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council
Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income as of December 31, 2002 based on the criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiza-
tions of the Treadway Commission (the COSO report). Management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assertion
based on our examination. '

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, testing, and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Because of inhierent limitations in any internal control, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaliation of internal control over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the tisk that the internal control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assertion that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting, including safeguarding of assets, presented in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and, for Hudson Valley Bank, in conformity with the
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and
Income as of December 31, 2002, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in
the COSO report.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
January 27, 2003
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ITEM 9 — CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 14, CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information the Company must
disclose in its reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported on a timely basis. Within 90 days prior to
the filing of this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in bringing to their attention on a timely
basis information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that the Company files or submits under
the Exchange Act. Also, since the date of the evaluation, there have not been any significant changes in the
Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect those controls, including any
corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(A)1l. Financial Statements

The following financial statements of the Company are included in this document in Item 8 — Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data:

+ Independent Auditors’ Report
» Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

s Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000

» Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2002 and 2001

+ Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000

» Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

e Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(A)2. Financial Statement Schedules
Financial Statement Schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required

information is shown elsewhere in the document in the Financial Statements or Notes thereto, or in
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

(B) Reports on Form 8-K Filed During the Quarter ended December 31, 2002

None
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(C) Exhibits Required by Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-K

Number

Exhibit Title

3.1
3.2
3.3
4.1

4.2

10.1
10.2

10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
i1
21
23
99.1

99.2

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hudson Valley Holding Corp."
By-Laws of Hudson Valley Holding Corp.t"

Specimen of Common Stock Certificate'")

Specimen Stock Restriction Agreement Between the Company and a Shareholder Granted Stock
Options”

Specimen Stock Restriction Agreement Between the Company and a Shareholder who Acquired
Such Shares from a Shareholder Subject to the Agreement'"

Hudson Vialley Bank Directors’ Retirement Plan*®

Hudson Valley Bank Restated and Amended Supplemental Retirement Plan, effective

December 1, 1995*(Y

Hudson Valley Bank Supplemental Retirement Plan of 1997+

2002 Stock Option Plan*'¥

Specimen Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement*("

Specimen Incentive Stock Option Agreement*(")

Consulting Agreement Between the Company and Director John A. Pratt, Jrx)

Statements re: Computation of Per Share Earnings®

Subsidiaries of the Company®

Consents of Experts and Counsel™®

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002t

* Management compensation plan

(1) Incorporated herein by reference in this document to the Registration Statement on Form 10 initially
filed on May 1, 2000

(2) Incorporated herein by reference in this document to Appendix A and Exhibit A to Appendlx A to the
Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

(3) Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HUDSON VALLEY HOLDING CORP.

March 27, 2003 By: /s/ JaMEes J.-LANDY

James J. Landy
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
on March 27, 2003 by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

/s/{ JaMES J. LANDY

James J. Landy
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

/s/ STEPHEN R. BROWN

Stephen R. Brown

Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Operating
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Director
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/  WIiLLIAM E. GRIFFIN

William E. Griffin
Chairman of the Board and Director

/s/ James M. CooGaN

James M. Coogan
Director

/s/  GREGORY F. HOLCOMBE

Gregory F. Holcombe
Director

/s/  ANGELO R. MARTINELLI

Angelo R. Martinelli
Director

/s/  RoNALD F. PoOE

Ronald F. Poe
Director

/s/ _JouN A. PrRATT JR.

John A. Pratt Jr.
Director

/s/ CEeciLE D. SINGER

Cecile D. Singer
Director

/s/ CRAIG S. THOMPSON

Craig S. Thompson
Director
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, James J. Landy, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hudson Valley Holding Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report,

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disciosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and
have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ James J. LANDY

James J. Landy
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 27, 2003
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1, Stephen R. Brown, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hudson Valley Holding Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and
have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/  STePHEN R. BROwWN

Stephen R. Brown
Senior Executive Vice President, Chief
Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 27, 2003
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Corporate Office
21 Scarsdale Road
Yonkers, NY 10707
(914) 961-6100

Subsidiaries

Hudson Valley Bank

Hudson Valley Investment Corp.
HVB Leasing Corp.

HVB Employment Corp.

HVB Realty Corp.

Grassy Sprain Real Estate Holdings, Inc.

Stock Transfer Agent &
Registrar

Hudson Valley Bank

21 Scarsdale Road
Yonkers, NY 10707

(914) 961-6100
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Bank of New York
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J- P Morgan Chase & Co.
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HUDSON VALLEY BANK:
18 BRANCHES

Westchester: 15 Branches

Etmsford

37 East Main Street
Elmsford, NY 10523
(914) 592-1214

Mount Kisco

664 Main Street
Mount Kisco, NY 10549
(914) 241-7135

Mount Vernon

403 East Sandford Boulevard
Mount Vernon, NY 10550
(914) 668-2655

New Rochelle

5 Huguenot Street

New Rochelle, NY 10801
(914) 576-9780

Peekskill

1835 East Main Street
Peekskill, NY 10566
(914) 736-9416

Port Chester

500 Westchester Avenue
Port Chester, NY 10573
(914) 937-9747

Thornwood

233 Marble Avenue
Thornwood, NY 10594
(914) 769-8661

White Plains

328 Central Avenue
White Plains, NY 10606
(914) 948-4400

Church Street Branch
40 Church Street

White Plains, NY 10601
(914) 961-6100
(Opening Summer 2003)

Yonkers

Main Branch

35 East Grassy Sprain Road
Yonkers, NY 10710

(914) 771-3275

Getty Square Branch
61 South Broadway
Yonkers, NY 10701
(914) 968-8375

Lake Avenue Branch
150 Lake Avenue
Yonkers, NY 10703
(914) 968-9191

McLean Avenue Branch
865 Mclean Avenue
Yonkers, NY 10704
(914) 237-7800

Rockledge Branch
512 South Broadway
Yonkers, NY 10705
(914) 965-5621

Scarsdale Road Branch
21 Scarsdale Road
Yonkers, NY 10707

(914) 768-6876

Bronx: 2 Branches

Allerton Branch
975 Allerton Avenue
Bronx, NY 10469
(718) 655-0227

Tremont Branch

3130 East Tremont Avenue
Bronx, NY 10461

(718) 892-4830

Manhattan: 1 Branch

Lincoln Building Branch
60 East 42nd St.

Suite 1836

New York, NY 10165
(212) 949-1974
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